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Ogoooood
12 31 12 31
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
145,545 124,839 104,813 89,711 77,092
(2,395,671) (2,054,850) (1,725,222) (1,476,643) (1,268,934)
41,740 41,454 39,717 31,385 30,844

(687,040)  (682,333) (653,742) (516,597)  (507,692)

41,158 40,692 39,175 31,032 30,819
(677,461)  (669,790)  (644,821)  (510,787)  (507,281)
582 762 542 353 25
(9,580)  (12,543) (8,921) (5,810) (412)

317,740 259,677 225,601 198,356 174,496
(5,230,000) (4,274,283) (3,713,392) (3,264,940) (2,872,204)
48,935 46,787 46,787 46,787 46,787
(805,470)  (770,114)  (770,114) (770,114)  (770,114)
5,122,292 4,138,815 3,641,193 2,959,939 2,765,881
(84,312,926)(68,124,895) (59,934,037) (48,720,596 (45,526, 401)

( ) 6.49 5.55 4.82 4.24 3.73
(107) (91) (79) (70) (61)

( ) 0.88 0.87 0.84 0.66 0.71

(14) (14) (14) (11) (12)

(20,835) 34,150  (136,228)  (55,426) 300,104

(-342,944)  (562,109)(-2,242,313) (-912,312) (4,939,712)
(142,554)  (48,285)  (10,324) (101,352)  (10,598)
(-2,346,439) (-794,771) (-169,933)(-1,668,254) (-174,443)
154,229 44,394 11,722 14,508 17,880
(2,538,609)  (730,725)  (192,944)  (240,283)  (294,305)
226,364 228,375 199,643 336,828 479,083
(3,725,951) (3,759,053) (3,286,124) (5,544,189) (7,885,706)

56,489 50,735 46,822 41,365 37,195
(ROAA) 0.90% 1.07% 1.20% 1.10% 1.27%
(ROAE) 14.26% 16.77% 18.48% 16.65% 20.92%
G
Tierl 9.12% 8.93% 8.78% 9.29% N/A
Tierl 9.17% 8.99% 8.78% 9.29% N/A

11.87% 12.33% 11.24% 12.42% N/A
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N/A N/A 12.12% 13.44% 12.27%
N/A N/A 9.05% 9.89%% 9.91%
N/A N/A 6.34% 6.86% 6.46%

CBRC 2013
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cITIC 1987 cITIC
cITIC cITIC
1985 1987

cITIC 800
(1)2005 CITIC cITIC
(22006 11 16  CIFH cITIC

2006 11 22 cITIC BBVA BBVA
®) 2006 12 31
(4)2007 27
(5)2009 10 23 CIFH 70.32%
(6)2011
25.786
5,273,622,484 2,480,360,496 46,787,327,034
31,905,164,057 14,882,162,977
)
1.00 2,462,490,897
4.84
2014 12 16 2014 2014
2014 2015 30

4.84 5.55 2,462,490, 897 2,147,469,539

2015 CBRC CSRC
1501428 2015 12 31 11,918, 455,941.45
11,888,695,194.53
2016 20 2,147,469,539
48,934,796,573
34,052,633,596 14,882,162,977 cITIC

CITIC
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+
+
2015
48.55% 67.983 13.19%
5.104
()
2015
553,900 11.45% 12.64% 2.529.291
90
A% 800
)
2015
189.826 12.45% 1,714.792
187.138 13.27% 1,597.900
150 16
SINOTF.com
2015
2015
2015 57.9792 16.18%
465.535 649.764 2.53%
20.66% ) 17.51%  1,078.765
42.15% 2,932.503
220.10%
533.862 141.34%  27.405
32.373 23.12%
17.198 44.43%

)
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ciTic 139 6) 67.13%
2016 20
2016 20 CITIC 31,406,992,773
64.18%
CIFH 7,503 100%
amic 27
2701-9
89
CNCB 1,889 99.05%
21 2106
200 51%
777
crme CBD 4,000 100%
2-310

27 28
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2015 12 31 56,489
49,915 6,574
9,863 42,720 2,593 10,027
17.75% 37,597 66.56% 8,865
15.69% 760

11
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2015
2015
GDP
PPI1 5.2
467.5
15.0
11.7 94.0
1.4 6.2284
2015
CBRC
2015
21.44% 95.023
36.59% 41.112
2015
11.69% 3.182775
2015
36.050
13.45

0.03
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EU
6.9
2015 M2
15.4
135.7 2015
2015
SLF
NPC
LCR (NSFR)
1.15%
10.23%
23.76%
15.58 2.528780
7.59
0.13
167.81
2.39
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OooooOodd
2015 2014 %
104,433 94,741 9,692 10.23
41,112 30,098 11,014 36.59
145,545 124,839 20,706 16.59
(50,602) (46,796) 3,806 8.13
(40,037) (23,673) 16,364 69.13
54,986 54,574 412 0.75
(13,246) (13,120) 126 0.96
41,740 41,454 286 0.69
41,158 40,692 466 1.15
2015 16.59 145545
4.1 71.8 4.1
28.2
2015 2014 2013
71.8% 75.9% 81.8%
28.2% 24.1% 18.2%
100.0% 100. 0% 100. 0%
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2015 9.692 10.23 104.433
2015 2014
(0 (%)
2,327,333 136,077 5.85 2,074,393 130,975 6.31
471,232 18,190 3.86 347,377 13,992 4.03
510,289 7,502 1.47 506,580 7,554 1.49
221,356 4,250 1.92 276,146 9,834 3.56
102,603 3,998 3.90 231,483 12,194 5.27
878,034 45,638 5.20 503,898 31,087 6.17
8,284 6 0.07 3,916 3 0.08
4,519,131 215,661 4.77 3,943,793 205,639 5.21
3,003,860 64,749 2.16 2,766,590 67,268 2.43
981,227 36,534 3.72 764,241 37,818 4.95
23,057 561 2.43 23,280 839 3.60
71,480 2,957 4.14 13,693 654 4.78
7,365 121 1.64 12,497 236 1.89
101,304 5,304 5.24 75,244 3,726 4.95
28,549 1,002 3.51 9,618 357 3.71
4,216,842 111,228 2.64 3,665,163 110,898 3.02
104,433 94,741
(€)) 2.13 2.19
@ 2.31 2.40
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2015 2014
15,961 (10,859) 5,102
4,991 (793) 4,198
55 (107) (52)
(1,951) (3.633) (5,584)
(6,792) (1,404) (8,196)
23,084 (8.,533) 14,551
3 - 3
35,351 (25,329) 10,022
5,766 (8.285) (2,519)
10,741 (12,025) (1,284)
) (270) (278)
2,762 (459) 2,303
(97) (18) (115)
1,290 288 1,578
702 (57) 645
21,156 (20,826) 330
14,195 (4,503) 9,692
2015 0.09 2.31
0.06 2.13
2015 215.661 10.022 4.87
- 2014  3,943.793
2015 575.338 14.59 4,519.131
2015 5.102 3.90
4.328 3.40
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oOoOooodn
2015 2014
D) (%)
1,178,627 65,540 5.56 1,158,337 73,784 6.37
1,148,706 70,537 6.14 916,056 57,191 6.24
2,327,333 136,077 5.85 2,074,393 130,975 6.31
2015 2014
D) (%)
1,154,142 64,712 5.61 1,135,848 72,830 6.41
1,039,810 66,736 6.42 828,859 54,290 6.55
2,193,952 131,448 5.99 1,964,707 127,120 6.47
2015 2014
D) (%)
1,630,940 97,956 6.01 1,508,473 96,338 6.39
89,753 3,214 3.58 74,347 3,782 5.09
606,640 34,907 5.75 491,573 30,855 6.28
2,327,333 136,077 5.85 2,074,393 130,975 6.31
2015 2014
D) (%)
1,521,013 94,192 6.19 1,421,570 93,169 6.55
82,866 2,842 3.43 66,107 3,516 5.32
590,073 34,414 5.83 477,030 30,435 6.38
2,193,952 131,448 5.99 1,964,707 127,120 6.47
2015 4.198 30.00% 18.190
2014 347.377 2015 35.65% 471.232
2015 52 0.69 7.502
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2015

4,216.842

5.584 56.78
54.790

2014

330

3,665.163

128.880
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4.250
1.64
8.196 67.21 3.998
1.37
14.551 45.638
0.30 111.228
551.679 15.05 2015
0.38
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2015 2.519 3.74 64.749
2.579 3.95
62.700 0.27
2015 2014
(%) (%)
1,499,194 46,324 3.09 1,350,745 46,486 3.44
999,091 7,454 0.75 896,846 6,550 0.73
2,498,285 53,778 2.15 2,247,591 53,036 2.36
352,878 10,453 2.96 395,557 13,788 3.49
152,697 518 0.34 123,442 444 0.36
505,575 10,971 2.17 518,999 14,232 2.74
3,003,860 64,749 2.16 2,766,590 67,268 2.43
2015 2014
(%) (%)
1,427,532 45,206 3.17 1,291,735 45,223 3.50
973,182 7,429 0.76 874,670 6,525 0.75
2,400,714 52,635 2.19 2,166,405 51,748 2.39
302,079 9,576 3.17 354,200 13,111 3.70
136,070 489 0.36 110,370 420 0.38
438,149 10,065 2.30 464,570 13,531 2.91
2,838,863 62,700 2.21 2,630,975 65,279 2.48
2015
1.284 3.40 36.534
1.23 216.986
2015 278 33.13 561

1.17
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2015 2.303 352.14
2.957 2015
2015 115 48.73 121
5.132
2015 1.578 42.35 5.304
2015
2015 645
180.67 1.002
2015 11.014 36.59 41.112
2015 2014 %
35,674 25,313 10,361 40.93
3,635 3,437 198 5.76
1,192 834 358 42.93
1 @ 3 -
610 516 94 18.22
41,112 30,098 11,014 36.59
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2015 10.361 40.93 35.674
39.55 37.639
2015 2014 %
13,419 8,358 5,061 60.55
6,972 5,638 1,334 23.66
1,747 2,213 (466) (21.06)
5,808 3,958 1,850 46.74
3,711 1,795 1,916 106.74
2,228 1,522 706 46.39
3,131 3,178 ) (1.48)
623 310 313 100.97
37,639 26,972 10,667 39.55
(1,965) (1,659) (306) 18.44
35,674 25,313 10,361 40.93
2015 198 5.76 3,635

2015 2014 %
1,288 827 461 55.74
576 1,658 (1,082) (65.26)
1,531 913 618 67.69
240 39 201 515.38
3,635 3,437 198 5.76
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2015 16.364 69.13 40.037
13.046 59.10 35.120
2015 2014 %
35,120 22,074 13,046 59.10
(95) 4 (99) -
53 @ 60 -
) 4,959 1,602 3,357 209.55
40,037 23,673 16,364 69.13
2015 3.806 8.13 50.602
5.82 12.61
2015 2.72 34.77
2015 2014 %
22,387 21,156 1,231 5.82
8,763 7,782 981 12.61
9,419 9,031 388 4.30
40,569 37,969 2,600 6.85
10,033 8,827 1,206 13.66
50,602 46,796 3,806 8.13
) 34.77% 37.49% 2.72
) 27.87% 30.41% 2.54
2015 126 0.96 13.246
0.05 24.09
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2015 23.76 5,122.292
24.05 4,802.606
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
% %
2,468,283 48.2 2,136,332 51.7
1,112,207 21.7 653,256 15.8
€)) 580,896 11.3 415,740 10.0
511,189 10.0 538,486 13.0
199,579 3.9 162,171 3.9
138,561 2.7 135,765 3.3
@ 111,577 2.2 97,065 2.3
5,122,292 100.0 4,138,815 100.0
3,182,775 66.3 2,849,574 73.6
1,117,792 23.3 707,940 18.3
71,168 1.5 41,609 1.1
289,135 6.0 133,488 3.4
® 141,736 2.9 138,858 3.6
4,802,606 100.0 3,871,469 100.0
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2015 15.58 2,528.780
48.2 3.5
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
() (D)
1,767,422 69.9 1,565,318 71.6
92,745 3.7 68,043 3.1
668,613 26.4 554,547 25.3
2,528,780 100.0 2,187,908 100.0
(60,497) (51,576)
2,468,283 2,136,332
2015 14.59% 2,364.556
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) )
1,627,573 68.8 1,465,078 71.0
87,219 3.7 59,888 2.9
649,764 27.5 538,512 26.1
2,364,556 100.0 2,063,478 100.0
(59,682) (51,136)
2,304,874 2,012,342
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2015 459.680 70.35
1,113.092
2015 12 31 2014 12 31

(D) ()
139,971 12.6 108,535 16.6
825,016 74.1 452,319 69.2
147,605 13.3 78,859 12.1
- - 13,199 2.0
500 - 500 0.1
1,113,092 100.0 653,412 100.0

(885) (156)

1,112,207 653,256

26.4%
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2015 165.219 39.73
581.097
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
() (D)
179,971 31.0 177,998 42.8
297,580 51.2 183,382 44.1
8,536 1.5 12,746 3.1
2,457 0.4 838 0.2
488,544 84.1 374,964 90.2
446 0.1 462 0.1
1 - 2 -
447 0.1 464 0.1
580 0.1 1,769 0.4
976 0.2 870 0.2
1,556 0.3 2,639 0.6
15,226 2.6 13,923 3.3
75,314 12.9 23,888 5.8
90,540 15.5 37,811 9.1
10 - - -
10 - - -
581,097 100.0 415,878 100.0
(201) (138)
580,896 415,740
180,341 169,845
2015 113.580 30.29 488.544
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
(%) (%)
162,834 33.3 147,570 39.4
165,203 33.8 85,258 22.7
50,994 10.4 44,306 11.8
4 - 68 -
109,509 22.5 97,762 26.1
488,544 100.0 374,964 100.0

2015 12 31 2014 12 31
(%) (%)
460,526 94.3 362,717 96.7
28,018 5.7 12,247 3.3
488,544 100.0 374,964 100.0

2015 6.274 40.741
22.20 1.393
25 164

56/408



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)
oOoOooodn

2015 12 31
%)
4,000 2017 28 4.20 -
4,000 2029 18 5.98 -
3,186 2017 23 4.11 -
2,682 2019 23 4.32 -
2,210 2017 1.83 -
2,047 2018 17 3.12 -
2,000 2017 14 3.45 -
1,931 2018 17 3.59 -
1,795 2024 20 6.60 -
10 1,794 2017 2.71 -
25,645
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
138 205
1 53 ©)
@ 10 (60)
201 138
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
604,523 1,291 995 298,961 977 754
1,600,764 11,489 10,119 978,918 6,406 6,208
23,985 1,008 304 50,769 843 385
2,229,272 13,788 11,418 1,328,648 8,226 7,347

57/408



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)
oOoOooodn

2014 12 31 2015 12 31
8,667 136,077 (134,401) 10,343
6,485 18,190 (16,793) 7,882

11,190 45,638 (43,865) 12,963
1,173 15,756 (15,471) 1,458
27,515 215,661 (210,530) 32,646
(1,390) (2,941) 2,197 (2,134)
26,125 212,720 (208, 333) 30,512
2015 12 31 2014 12 31

1,045 446

85 458

137) (156)

(33) ©)

960 739
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2015 333.201 11.69 3,182.775
66.3 7.3
2015 12 31 2014 12 31 2013 12 31
D) () (%)
1,194,486 37.5 969,511 34.0 938,894 35.4
1,446,939 45.5 1,365,914 48.0 1,198,043 45.2
101,333 3.2 102,886 3.6 99,205 3.7
2,641,425 83.0 2,335,425 82.0 2,136,937 80.6
178,917 5.6 147,658 5.2 127,430 4.8
362,433 11.4 366,491 12.8 387,311 14.6
541,350 17.0 514,149 18.0 514,741 19.4
3,182,775 100.0 2,849,574 100.0 2,651,678 100.0
2015 295.229 10.94 2,994 .826
2015 12 31 2014 12 31 2013 12 31
D) (%) (%)
1,163,000 38.9 945,128 35.0 919,663 36.4
1,366,291 45.6 1,300,408 48.2 1,143,519 45.2
100,512 3.4 102,040 3.8 98,340 3.9
2,529,291 84.5 2,245,536 83.2 2,063,182 81.6
160,207 5.3 133,223 4.9 113,377 4.4
305,328 10.2 320,838 11.9 352,929 14.0
465,535 15.5 454,061 16.8 466,306 18.4
2,994,826 100.0 2,699,597 100.0 2,529,488 100.0
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31

Qi *

2,854,718 89.7 2,528,282 88.7

328,057 10.3 321,292 11.3

3,182,775 100.0 2,849,574 100.0

2015 12 31 2014 12 31

() )

809,760 25.4 733,731 25.7

730,304 22.9 662,812 23.3

498,538 15.7 423,903 14.9

472,675 14.9 429,345 15.1

408,822 12.9 373,237 13.1

77,792 2.4 77,525 2.7

184,884 5.8 149,021 5.2

3,182,775 100.0 2,849,574 100.0

12
Q) Q) () QD) ) )
1,154,801  36.3 574,729  18.1 593,216  18.6 317,785 10.0 894 - 2,641,425  83.0
179,314 5.6 244,703 7.7 72,135 2.3 45,106 1.4 92 - 541,350  17.0
1,334,115  41.9 819,432 25.8 665,351  20.9 362,801  11.4 986 - 3,182,775 100.00
12

(&) )] ) D) (&) Q)
1,123,318  37.5 514,617  17.2 573,061  19.2 317,401  10.6 894 - 2,529,291 845
160,604 5.4 191,723 6.4 68,045 2.2 45,071 1.5 92 - 465,535  15.5
1,283,922  42.9 706,340  23.6 641,106  21.4 362,472  12.1 986 - 2,994,826  100.0
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2015
2015
2015 46,787 49,296  (1,833) 69,841 95,586 7,669 267,346
1 - - - - 41,158 582 41,740
2 - - 5,417 - - 227 5,644
3 - (400) - - - (6,395) (6,795)
)
4 2,148 9,740 - - - - 11,888
@
5 - - - 18,076  (18,076) 137 1370
2015 12 31 48,953 58,636 3,584 87,917 118,668 1,946 319,686
2015 8 27 BBVA CIFH 29.68 CIFH
CIFH CNCBI  CNCB 99.05 0.95
CNCB 100
2015 12 31 2,148
11.888

4.39
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
631,431 712,985
133,567 124,008

92,164 134,766
200,933 188,338
149,138 124,106

1,207,233 1,284,203
14,799 14,084
7,232 8,413
143,182 71,219
1,372,446 1,377,919
54.985 20.835
94.269 142 .554
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109.835 154.229

2015 )
(20,835) -
399,532 1.17)
323,142 63.90
(358,952) 51.39
(459, 657) 30.09
(142,554) 195.23
638,920 56.05
(775,111) 73.62
154,229 247.41
310,966 217.88
11,888 -
(153,296) 285,70
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CBRC 2013
2015
2015 Tier 9.12 0.19
Tier 9.17 0.18 11.87
0.46

2015 12 31 2014 12 31 2013 12 31
Tier 316,159 262,786 20.31 228,311
Tier 317,987 264,582 20.18 228,380
411,740 362,848 13.47 292,212
3,468,135 2,941,627 17.90 2,600,494
Tier 9.12% 8.93% 0.19 8.78%
Tier 9.17% 8.99% 0.18 8.78%
11.87% 12.33% 0.46 11.24%

2015 12 31 2014 12 31 2013 12 31
5.26% 5.19% 0.07 4.81%
Tier 317,987 264,582 20.18 228,380
6,044,069 5,096,499 18.59 4,746,753

2013 2011
2014 2015
2015
bank.ecitic.com/eabout/inves/in__4_ 4.shtml IR

IFRS
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2015 )
1,191 189.78
118,776 74.21
13,788 67.61
373,770 78.49
1,112,207 70.26
1,068,544 55.25
49,248 150.65
11,418 55.41
71,168 71.04
289,135 116.60
41,652 59.79
3,584 -

121 (97.93)
35,674 40.93
1,192 42.93
40,037 69.13
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2015 2014
() (%) (%) )
71,300 49.0 19,886 36.2 65,270 52.3 25,372 46.5
34,009 23.4 4,297 7.8 25,233 20.2 1,324 2.4
45,049 31.0 36,977 67.2 36,251 29.0 31,464 57.7
(4,813) (3.4 (6,174)  (11.2) (1,915) (1.5) (3,586) (6.6)
145,545 100.0 54,986 100.0 124,839 100.0 54,574 100.0
2015 12 31 2015
@ ()
(%) () )
1,099,815 21.5 1,090,635 22.7 9,427 17.2
752,965 14.7 751,135 15.6 @157 0.3)
1,114,688 21.8 1,099,277 22.9 11,354 20.6
617,426 12.1 609,986 12.7 8,280 15.1
557,507 10.9 551,901 11.5 5,855 10.6
93,262 1.8 92,311 1.9 198 0.4
2,622,096 51.3 2,354,458 49.0 17,819 32.4
241,411 4.7 215,502 4.5 2,210 4.0
(1,984,859) (38.8)  (1,962,609) (40.8) - -
5,114,311 100.0 4,802,596 100.0 54,986 100.0
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2014 12 31 2014
()
() () (D)
832,355 20.2 828,692 21.4 6,468 11.9
567,700 13.7 564,494 14.6 2,260 4.1
916,047 22.2 906,031 23.4 8,516 15.6
510,466 12.4 503,804 13.0 7,716 14.1
468,004 11.3 460,468 11.9 8,316 15.2
89,173 2.2 88,544 2.3 331 0.6
1,946,061 47.1 1,742,187 45.0 18,135 33.3
199,498 4.8 178,132 4.6 2,832 5.2
(1,399,806) (33.9)  (1,400,883) (36.2) - -
4,129,498 100.0 3,871,469 100.0 54,574 100.0

67/408



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

29

2015 12 31 128 1,353 38
88 1,219

2015 12 31 3,160 11,044
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@
2015 12 31
€H) €))
46,787,327,034  (2)(3)

@
@) 31,905,164,057 14,882,162,977
(3) 2016 20 2,147,469,539

48,934,796,573

2,147,469,539
2015 12 31
1.00 46,787,327,034 (1)

@ (€))

@
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©))
2010 12 31 26,631,541,573 26,631,541,573
438,355
2011 5,273,622,484 5,273,622,484 @
86,804
2011 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057
525,159
2012 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057,
525,159
2013 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057,
525,159
2014 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057,
525,159
2015 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057  (2)
525,159
@ 10 2.2
@ @
2010 12 31 12,401,802, 481 12,401,802, 481
204,134
2011 2,480,360,496 2,480,360,496 )
40,827
2011 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
244,960
2012 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
244,960
2013 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
244,960
2014 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
244,960
2015 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
244,960
@ 10 2.2
®

®)
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®)
2015 12 31 245,475 211,667 33,808
2015 12 31
(D)
cITIC 31,406,992,773 (1)(2) 67.13%
HKSCC 12,112,048,524 (2)(3) 25.89%
199
871,422,670 (1) 1.86%
28
1802
44,390,463,967 94.88%
@
@
(©)
(4)2015 BBVA  HKSCC 1,525,036, 861
3.26%
2015 12 31 o
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10

50

MOF
2012
1.5% 2015 12 31

GAAP IFRS

CBRC Tierl Tierl
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2007 27 2007 27
@
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
5.4680 5.10 5.45 6.22 7.35
76 71 75 86 102
2.93 3.51 3.39 3.62 4.41
41 49 47 50 61
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
5.33 4.73 5.48 8.19 10.5
88 78 90 135 173
3.98 3.49 3.39 3.57 5.41
66 57 56 59 89
@

2015 2015 2015 2015 10 2015 11 2015 12
6.20 5.55 4.82 5.16 5.27 5.08
86 77 67 71 73 70
5.50 4.65 4.41 4.59 4.89 4.75
76 64 61 64 68 66

2015 2015 2015 2015 10 2015 11 2015 12
10.5 7.96 6.67 6.79 8.18 8.47
173 131 110 112 135 139
7.35 5.41 5.77 5.9 6.21 6.93
121 89 95 97 102 114
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2016 26 20
17%
2016 26
2015
12 31
2013
CHANG Zhenming 2011 12 CITIC CITIC
1956 10 2009
2011
2006
10 CIFH
2008
2010 12 2011 12 CITIC
2006 2010 12
2006 12 2011
2006 11
2013
CNCBI
2004 2006
1995 2004
CITIC 1994
1995
1993 1994 1992
10 1993
2012 2014
ZHU Xiaohuang 2013 2014
1956 2014
CITIC
2012 2014
2011 2012
2010 2011
2008 2010
2006
2008
2006
2004 10 2006
2001 2004 10
1993
2001
1982
1993
1982
1985 10
2006
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2014 2014
LI Qingping 2014
1962 10
CITIC
CITIC
CIFH CITIC
2003 2014 CITIC
2009 2009
2007 2008 12
1984 2007
30
2011 10 2011 12
(SUN Deshun) 2014
(1958 11 ) 2014
CNCBI 2010
2011 10
2005 12
2009 12
1984 2005 11
1995 12 2005 11
1999 2004
1981 1984
30
2013
ZHANG Xiaowei CNCBI
1957 10 2012
2002 2011
2000 2002
1995 2000
1991 1995
1984 1991
31

751408
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2009

LI Zheping
1965 1995 2003

1993 1995

1989 1993

2008
2014
€] 2014
11

2012 10
WU Xiaoging 2008 10 2005
1953 10 2008 10

1999 12 2005
1995
1999 12
2012 11
WONG Luen Cheung
Andrew
1957 it
2013 11
DBS
2002
2010
2011

76/408



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

oOoOooodn
2014 2011 12
YUAN Ming 2013 10
1952
2003 12 2012
2003
2003 12
1997 2003
1987 1997
1986
1987 1984 11
1986
1979 1984
11
1975 10 1979
1973 1975 10
1968 12 1973
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2015 12
CAO Guogiang 2015
1964 12 CITIC
2015 12 2013
12 2009 10
CIFH CNCBI 2010
2015 10 2006
2010 2005 2006
1988
1992 PBOC
30
2015 CITIC
SHU Yang
1965 2010 2015
CITIC
CITIC
CITIC USA CITIC
USA CITIC
CITIC USA
CITIC USA
WANG Xiuhong 2003 12 2015
1946 10
2004 10 2010 12
2003 2004
1997 2003
1994
1997

78/408



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

ooooodd
2010 2014
JIA Xiangsen) 2008 2010
1955 1984
2008
ZHENG Wei) 1999
1974
1998
2008
2014
1999 2000
2015 CBRC
CHENG Pusheng 2013 10
1968 2015 2008
2011
2005 2008
2004
2005
1992
1995
PBOC
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2013
WEN Shuping)
1957 2011 2013
2009 2011
2009 2009
2008 2009
2007 11 2008
2003
2007 10
1997 2002 12
1991
1997
1987 10 1991
1985 1987
1980 1985
1978 12
1980
1975
1978 11
2015
MA Haiqing) 2013 2015
1970 12 2012
2013
2009 2012
1994
( )
LI Qingping
1962 10
(SUN Deshun)
(1958 11 )
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2010
ZHANG Qiang
1963
CNCB
2006 2010
2006
2007
2000 2006
1990 2000
1990
30
2013 2014
ZHU Jialin 2014 10
1964 10
CITIC
2005
2013 2004
2005
2000 2004
1998 10 2000
1997 12 1998 10
1997 1997
12
1986 1997
1988 1989
2014
FANG Heying) 2014 11
1966
2014 CNCB
2013
2014
2007
2013
2003 2007
1996 12 2003
1996 1996 12
1992 12 1996
1991 1992 12
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2014
GUO Danghuai) 2014 11
1964
2015 CITIC
2013 2014
2010 2013
2006
2010
2005 2006
2001 2005
2000 11
2001 CITIC
1999 2000 11
1986 1999
2015
YANG Yu 2015 12
1962 12
CITIC
2011 2015
2006
2011
1982 2006
2015
QIAO Wei 2015
1966
2010 2015
2001 12
2010
1994 2001 12
1989
1994
CEIBS MBA
EMBA
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2015
WANG Kang) 2015
1972 2013 2015
2013
2013
2003 2013
2008 2013
2007 2008
2006 2007
2003 2006
2002 2003
2001
2002
1997 2001
1996 1997
EMBA
@
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2015
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2015

2015

2015
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2015

2015
2014
2014 2014 2014 27

2015
2016 16

2015
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2015
2016 16
2015
36.2261
- 67
2015
2015 12 31
2015
2015
2015
BIS IT
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2014

@)
2015
2015
9.30

2015
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00000000000000000000000000000(E05994)
0oooood
2015
2015

6.87
680,000

2015

3.88
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2014 12 31
IFRS

38 59

( 23 103 ) 1 3 7
193

16.46



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

Oo0o0o0
12 31
2015 2014
)
215,661 3,549,780 205,639 3,384,818
(111,228) (1,830,813) (110,898) (1,825,381)
6 104,433 1,718,967 94,741 1,559,437
37,639 619,538 26,972 443,959
(1,965) (32,344) (1,659) (27,307)
7 35,674 587,194 25,313 416,652
8 3,635 59,832 3,437 56,573
9 1,192 19,620 834 13,728
10 1 16 @ (33)
610 10,041 516 8,493
145,545 2,395,671 124,839 2,054,850
11 (50,602) (832,909) (46,796) (770, 262)
94,943 1,562,762 78,043 1,284,588
(35,120) (578,075) (22,074) (363,338)
(4,917) (80,934) (1,599) (26,320)
12 (40,037) (659,009) (23,673) (389,658)
27 444 2 33
53 872 192 3,160
— — 10 165
54,986 905,070 54,574 898,288
13 (13,246) (218,029) (13,120) (215,955)
41,740 687,040 41,454 682,333
4,275 70,367 5,234 86,152
1,364 22,451 (43) (708)
3 49 (€H) (16)
®) (99) (10) (165)
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8 132 — —
5,644 92,900 5,180 85,263
47,384 779,941 46,634 767,596
41,158 677,461 40,692 669,790
582 9,580 762 12,543
41,740 687,040 41,454 682,333
46,575 766,625 45,866 754,954
809 13,316 768 12,641
47,384 779,941 46,634 767,596
0.88 14.48 0.87 14.32
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
)

16 511,189 8,414,171 538,486 8,863,480

17 80,803 1,330,017 93,991
1,547,092
1,191 19,604 411 6,765

18 118,776 1,955,053 68,180
1,122,243

19 26,220 431,581 27,509
452,798
20 13,788 226,950 8,226 135,400
21 138,561 2,280,714 135,765 2,234,692
22 30,512 502,228 26,125 430,018
23 2,468,283 40,627,938 2,136,332 35,164,025
24 373,770 6,152,254 209,404 3,446,790
25 179,930 2,961,648 177,957 2,929,172
26 1,112,207 18,306,927 653,256 10,752,594
27 976 16,065 870 14,320
29 15,983 263,080 14,738 242,587
30 802 13,201 407 6,699
31 325 5,350 280 4,609
32 854 14,057 795 13,086
33 7,981 131,367 9,317 153,358
34 40,141 660,721 36,766 605,168
5,122,292 84,312,926 4,138,815 68,124,895
37,500 617,250 50,050 823,823
36 1,068,544 17,588,234 688,292 11,329,286
37 49,248 810,622 19,648 323,406
38 o — 573 0432
20 11,418 187,940 7,347 120,932

39 71,168 1,171,425 41,609
684,884
40 3,182,775 52,388,477 2,849,574 46,903,988
4 8,302 136,651 11,521 189,636
42 4,693 77,247 5,985 98,513
43 38,159 628,097 37,311 614,139
44 2 33 5 82
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45 289,135 4,759,162 133,488 2,197,212
33 10 165 — —
46 41,652 685,592 26,066 429,046
4,802,606 79,050,895 3,871,469 63,724,380

47 48,935 805,470 46,787 770,114
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28 439 (433) — 34
15 165 (166) — 14
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10,737 18,677 (18,166) (3,781) 7,467
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( ) ( ) ) ( )
9,290 13,957 (13,301) 9,946
23 915 (919) 19
— 1,251 (1,251) _
16 1,017 (1,008) 25
536 628 (455) 709
36 375 (383) 28
11 108 (109) 10
9,912 18,251 (17,426) 10,737
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2.75 4.77
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20,981 (10,924) (8,710) (1,347) —
65,307 16,275 27,538 (4,687) 104,433
6,010 17,077 12,837 (250) 35,674
an 657 4,674 124 5,438
71,300 34,009 45,049 (4,813) 145,545
(881) (295) (918) (360) (2,454)
(22,015) (21,275) 4,714) (144) (48,148)
(28,518) (8,142) (2,440) (937) (40,037)
— — — 27 27
— — — 53 53
19,886 4,297 36,977 (6,174) 54,986
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4,802,606
965,931 149,138 92,164 — 1,207,233
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50,200 20,385 25,661 (1,505) 94,741
9,559 (5,589) (2,660) (1,310) —
59,759 14,796 23,001 (2,815) 94,741
5,431 10,306 9,546 30 25,313
80 131 3,704 870 4,785
65,270 25,233 36,251 (1,915) 124,839
(952) (344) (725) (173) (2,194)
(21,918) (18,805) (3,234) (645) (44,602)
(17,028) (4,760) (828) (1,057) (23,673)
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20,660 14,883 21,270 15,019 13,333 2,328 14,054 2,886 104,433
4,920 2,776 4,857 3,197 3,173 504 15,274 973 35,674
1,326 556 653 437 402 79 844 1,141 5,438
26,906 18,215 26,780 18,653 16,908 2,911 30,172 5,000 145,545
(391) (262) (429) (285) (317) (93) (468) (209) (2,454)
(9,255) (6,009) (8,734) (6,484) (6,002) (1,310) (8,243) 2,111) (48,148)
(7,833) (12,101) (6,263) (3,604) (4,738) (1,310) (3,642) (550) (40,037)
— — — — — — — 27 27
— — — — — — — 53 53
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7,981
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18,262 12,337 17,267 13,420 12,087 2,557 15,510 3,301 94,741
3,842 2,428 3,746 2,371 2,565 535 9,058 768 25,313
935 349 777 293 251 57 1,256 867 4,785
23,039 15,114 21,790 16,084 14,903 3,149 25,824 4,936 124,839
(349) (238) (416) (257) (257) 75) (416) (186) (2,194)
(8,898) (5,729) (8,354) (5,867) (5,399) (1,343) (7,042) (1,970) (44,602)
(7,324) (6,887) (4,504) (2,244) (931) (1,400) (231) (152) (23,673)
— — — — — — — 2 2
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(13,120)
41,454
321 181 237 598 240 446 564 73 2,660

190/408



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o A (=S(0 ST oY)

Oooooood
2014 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
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9,317
4,138,815
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13,788 8,226 10,384 5,638
138,561 135,765 137,210 135,765
30,512 26,125 29,849 25,546
2,468,283 2,136,332 2,304,874 2,012,342
372,758 207,188 328,480 186,517
179,930 177,957 179,930 177,957
1,112,207 653,256 1,109,807 652,916
36,222 21,615 33,439 20,815
5,081,893 4,087,396 4,825,091 3,904,285
1,207,233 1,284,203 1,118,954 1,208,311
6,289,126 5,371,599 5,944,045 5,112,596
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11,693 21 — 84 —

5,608 — — — —
(3,954) — — — —

1,654 — — — —

42,313 — — — —
5,285 — — — —

47,598 — — — —
(5,538) — — — —

42,060 — — — —

2,111,856 693,404 135,765 412,568 653,412
(i) (30,931) — — — (156)
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8,003 — — — —
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32,287 — — — —
6,226 — — — —

38,513 — — — —
(5,513) — — — —

33,000 — — — —

2,291,269 665,747 137,210 533,808 1,110,692
D) (33,241) — — (57) (885)
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(5,524) — — — —

39,836 — — — —
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414,273 16.4 201,490 384,521 17.6 171,481
260,675 10.3 161,575 290,107 13.3 168,279
254,892 10.1 216,414 179,677 8.2 152,514
147,798 5.8 87,060 83,809 3.8 47,054
147,535 5.8 72,340 138,230 6.3 67,508
127,435 5.0 64,321 111,524 5.1 53,463
102,532 4.1 47,940 101,834 4.7 46,484
54,704 2.2 20,219 51,828 2.4 16,480
20,835 0.8 4,880 19,304 0.9 4,624
236,743 9.4 95,296 204,484 9.3 78,505
1,767,422 69.9 971,535 1,565,318 71.6 806,392
668,613 26.4 478,582 554,547 25.3 406,778
92,745 3.7 — 68,043 3.1 —
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224,873 9.5 201,943 160,821 7.8 140,107
146,115 6.2 85,812 83,514 4.0 47,026
144,453 6.1 71,676 136,345 6.6 66,841
120,704 5.1 57,661 111,466 5.4 53,454
101,188 4.3 47,267 100,456 4.9 46,053

49,086 2.1 15,022 51,468 2.5 16,390
20,835 0.9 4,880 19,304 0.9 4,624
171,615 7.2 75,263 147,749 7.2 64,852
1,627,573 68.8 912,749 1,465,078 71.0 773,746
649,764 27.5 461,262 538,512 26.1 391,971
87,219 3.7 — 59,888 2.9 —
2,364,556 100.0 1,374,011 2,063,478 100.0 1,165,717
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2014 12 31
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8,758 4,465 7,435 6,547 (3,456)
11,025 5,424 6,985 9,522 (6,110)
2015 12 31
( ) ) ( ) ) )
10,169 5,340 8,821 9,166 (7,877)
11,901 7,406 6,238 14,016 (12,213)
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348,882 13.8 205,182 306,274 14.0 176,516
340,226 13.5 201,975 292,793 13.4 172,627
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2,443 1,281 5,795
2014 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
7,151 1,962 10,766
9,240 3,766 9,959
5,140 2,685 7,318
3,453 1,042 6,255
1,276 458 4,923
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EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

ooooooo
2015 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
8,869 3,354 12,414
8,789 4,113 9,384
7,482 3,388 8,355
5,212 1,873 7,380
2,443 1,281 5,795
2014 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
7,108 1,919 10,763
9,231 3,765 9,940
4,894 2,655 7,309
3,453 1,042 6,255
1,276 458 4,923
2015 2014 2015 2014
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
( ) ( ) ( DI ¢ )
492,822 392,960 467,932 368,639
493,095 513,735 435,395 469,234
1,169,587 953,053 1,113,612 917,020
280,531 260,117 260,398 248,697
2,436,035 2,119,865 2,277,337 2,003,590
92,745 68,043 87,219 59,888
2,528,780 2,187,908 2,364,556 2,063,478
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)

EDINETOOOO

00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

ooooOoog
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) ( )
8,482 0.34 13,724 0.63
5,310 0.21 6,901 0.32
3,172 0.13 6,823 0.31
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) ( )
8,472 0.36 13,204 0.64
5,310 0.22 6,901 0.33
3,162 0.14 6,303 0.31
2015 12 31
AAA AA A A
126,538 27,025 4,694 6,818 127 165,202
50,416 — 578 — — 50,994
4 — — — — 4
75,632 143,357 16,040 13,040 5,314 253,383
1,714 87,681 13,887 4,181 1,861 109,324
254,304 258,063 35,199 24,039 7,302 578,907
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EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

Ogoooood
2014 12 31
AAA AA A A
85,200 6 52 — — 85,258
43,301 — 1,005 — — 44,306
19 — — 49 — 68
117,288 48,142 11,348 6,646 2,136 185,560
11,711 77,178 3,032 3,546 1,993 97,460
257,519 125,326 15,437 10,241 4,129 412,652
2015 12 31
i AAA AA A A
126,462 22,461 — — — 148,923
50,416 — 578 — — 50,994
4 — — — — 4
74,513 143,357 10,929 1,778 762 231,339
526 87,578 12,713 1,487 195 102,499
251,921 253,396 24,220 3,265 957 533,759
2014 12 31
i AAA AA A A
78,706 — 52 — — 78,758
43,300 — 1,005 — — 44,305
19 — — — — 19
115,747 48,142 11,348 1,725 841 177,803
10,582 77,056 2,599 792 61 91,090
248,354 125,198 15,004 2,517 902 391,975
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oOoOooodn

(b)
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EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

)

)

oOoOooodn
2015 12 31
(GE@D))
( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )

1.47% 511,189 14,567 496,622 — — —
1.22% 80,803 — 74,077 6,726 — —
2.59% 118,776 22 78,139 40,120 — 495
3.90% 138,561 — 138,320 141 100 —
5.20% 1,112,207 3,583 452,100 461,183 183,372 11,969
5.85% 2,468,283 310 1,035,127 990,598 428,157 14,091
3.86% 580,896 1,991 107,371 121,567 216,221 133,746
111,577 109,416 444 1,717 — —
5,122,292 129,889 2,382,200 1,622,052 827,850 160,301
3.50% 37,500 — 13,500 24,000 — —
3.80% 1,068,544 1,632 536,885 528,017 1,010 1,000
1.81% 49,248 — 37,039 11,874 335 —_
2.43% 71,168 — 67,976 3,192 — —
2.16% 3,182,775 16,263 2,137,461 665,174 362,891 986
4.65% 289,135 — 82,007 96,899 39,795 70,434
104,236 101,302 606 2,328 — —
4,802,606 119,197 2,875,474 1,331,484 404,031 72,420
319,686 10,692 (493,274) 290,568 423,819 87,881
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EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

ooooooo
2014 12 31
[GE@D))

( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )
1.49 538,486 7,232 531,254 — — —
3.24 93,991 — 89,799 2,682 1,510 —
3.96 68,180 21 52,611 15,095 — 453
5.27 135,765 — 131,871 3,068 826 —
6.17 653,256 — 165,430 370,548 117,278 —
6.31 2,136,332 238 984,930 974,735 154,359 22,070
4.03 415,740 1,539 79,066 89,141 162,620 83,374
97,065 81,277 5,831 9,957 — —
4,138,815 90,307 2,040,792 1,465,226 436,593 105,897
3.50 50,050 — 50,000 50 — —
5.08 688,292 1,369 571,472 104,872 10,579 —
1.15 19,648 — 14,179 4,406 1,063 —
3.60 41,609 — 39,440 2,169 — —
2.43 2,849,574 13,355 1,883,466 685,792 263,226 3,735
4.55 133,488 — 21,008 13,519 20,260 78,701
88,808 80,147 3,513 4,575 573 —
3,871,469 94,871 2,583,078 815,383 295,701 82,436
267,346 (4,564) (542,286) 649,843 140,892 23,461
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»

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

oOoOooodn
2015 12 31
(GEED))
( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )

1.47% 509,851 14,371 495,480 — — —
1.52% 64,800 — 58,421 6,379 — —
2.94% 98,276 22 60,693 37,066 — 495
3.91% 137,210 — 136,969 141 100 —
5.20% 1,109,807 3,583 452,100 461,123 182,032 10,969
5.99% 2,304,874 — 895,992 969,669 425,132 14,081
3.95% 556,522 22,763 84,013 114,866 203,565 131,315
102,955 102,831 35 89 — —
4,884,295 143,570 2,183,703 1,589,333 810,829 156,860
3.50% 37,400 — 13,500 23,900 — —
3.83% 1,069,630 596 539,007 528,017 1,010 1,000
1.73% 32,399 — 28,540 3,859 — —
2.43% 71,110 — 67,918 3,192 — —
2.21% 2,994,826 6,555 1,983,706 641,107 362,472 986
4.82% 273,262 — 79,598 90,758 32,472 70,434
94,030 91,096 606 2,328 — —
4,572,657 98,247 2,712,875 1,293,161 395,954 72,420
311,638 45,323 (529,172) 296,172 414,875 84,440
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(

)

)

)

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

ooooooo
2014 12 31
cC»
( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )
1.50 536,811 7,022 529,789 — — —
3.43 81,689 — 77,550 2,629 1,510 —
4.70 47,810 21 32,158 15,178 — 453
5.27 135,765 - 131,871 3,068 826 —
6.17 652,916 — 165,430 370,348 117,138 —
6.47 2,012,342 — 873,780 964,493 152,101 21,968
4.08 403,981 10,456 70,858 85,660 154,209 82,798
91,322 75,534 5,831 9,957 — —
3,962,636 93,033 1,887,267 1,451,333 425,784 105,219
3.50 50,000 — 50,000 — — —
5.17 698,362 226 581,485 106,072 10,579 —
2.98 18,703 — 13,785 4,406 512 —
3.79 41,381 — 39,212 2,169 — —
2.48 2,699,597 6,219 1,776,811 651,413 261,419 3,735
5.03 115,592 — 14,433 9,253 16,479 75,427
83,278 74,617 3,513 4,575 573 —
3,706,913 81,062 2,479,239 777,888 289,562 79,162
255,723 11,971 (591,972) 673,445 136,222 26,057
2015 12 31
50,079 2014 12 31 43,496
2015 12 31
46,872 2014 12 31 43,486
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100

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

OooooOodd
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
(2,753) (906) (552) (686)
2,753 906 552 686
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EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

OooooOodd
2015 12 31

( ) ( )y ( )y ( ) )
465,281 45,102 613 193 511,189
37,835 29,019 9,860 4,089 80,803
79,776 29,751 6,615 2,634 118,776
137,210 1,351 — — 138,561
1,109,612 2,595 — — 1,112,207
2,227,366 168,536 63,532 8,849 2,468,283
527,396 24,883 15,299 13,318 580,896
98,924 8,541 3,885 227 111,577
4,683,400 309,778 99,804 29,310 5,122,292
37,500 — — — 37,500
1,028,229 34,148 847 5,320 1,068,544
38,814 9,714 — 720 49,248
71,168 — — — 71,168
2,854,718 192,475 99,888 35,694 3,182,775
273,085 14,350 1,700 — 289,135
89,850 6,748 3,257 4,381 104,236
4,393,364 257,435 105,692 46,115 4,802,606
290,036 52,343 (5,888) (16,805) 319,686
1,053,858 110,380 35,143 7,852 1,207,233
C () (26,270) 8,141 1,257 27,960 11,088
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EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

OooooOodd
2014 12 31

( ) ( ) «( ) ( ) )
526,072 10,145 2,078 191 538,486
17,389 67,694 5,908 3,000 93,991
45,714 21,359 315 792 68,180
135,194 571 — — 135,765
652,033 1,223 — — 653,256
1,918,137 154,673 54,167 9,355 2,136,332
388,142 15,468 8,403 3,727 415,740
90,525 2,797 3,309 434 97,065
3,773,206 273,930 74,180 17,499 4,138,815
50,050 — — — 50,050
661,496 21,950 392 4,454 688,292
5,423 13,218 — 1,007 19,648
41,381 228 — — 41,609
2,528,282 225,951 78,818 16,523 2,849,574
117,576 10,824 2,488 2,600 133,488
80,839 2,379 3,181 2,409 88,808
3,485,047 274,550 84,879 26,993 3,871,469
288,159 (620) (10,699) (9,494) 267,346
1,137,105 113,081 27,163 6,854 1,284,203
C (Y (19,902) (14,798) 25,585 17,848 8,733
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EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

Ogoooood
2015 12 31

( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) I )
464,442 44,817 415 177 509,851
34,439 26,301 650 3,410 64,800
76,912 19,945 1,419 — 98,276
137,210 — — — 137,210
1,107,212 2,595 — — 1,109,807
2,190,187 105,614 2,779 6,294 2,304,874
529,093 10,594 16,570 265 556,522
94,148 8,123 19 665 102,955
4,633,643 217,989 21,852 10,811 4,884,295
37,400 — — — 37,400
1,029,474 34,059 777 5,320 1,069,630
23,025 8,654 — 720 32,399
71,110 — — — 71,110
2,815,265 147,624 6,019 25,918 2,994,826
273,262 — — — 273,262
87,209 5,194 7 1,620 94,030
4,336,745 195,531 6,803 33,578 4,572,657
296,898 22,458 15,049 (22,767) 311,638
1,048,159 61,845 1,594 7,356 1,118,954
C () (26,277) 8,172 1,227 27,967 11,089

215/408



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

OooooOodd
2014 12 31

( ) I ¢ ) ( ) «( ) I ¢ )
524,992 9,775 1,879 165 536,811
17,292 61,336 967 2,094 81,689
32,103 15,510 197 — 47,810
135,194 571 — — 135,765
651,693 1,223 — — 652,916
1,899,740 103,054 1,203 8,345 2,012,342
395,798 7,693 — 490 403,981
85,641 5,124 18 539 91,322
3,742,453 204,286 4,264 11,633 3,962,636
50,000 — — — 50,000
671,786 21,836 286 4,454 698,362
5,063 12,633 — 1,007 18,703
41,381 — — — 41,381
2,496,448 188,554 6,989 7,606 2,699,597
115,592 — — — 115,592
76,598 4,463 191 2,026 83,278
3,456,868 227,486 7,466 15,093 3,706,913
285,585 (23,200) (3.202) (3,460) 255,723
1,131,175 71,045 188 5,903 1,208,311
C () (8,388) 4,322 1,840 11,790 9,564
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©

100

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

OooooOodd
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
407 (18) 139 ®)
407) 18 (139) 3
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EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

@i

oOoOooodn
2015 12 31
(O]
( ( ( ( (

) ) ) ) ) ) )
71,059 — 3,416 — — 436,714 511,189
57,103 16,974 6,726 — — — 80,803

—_ 81,118 37,620 16 —_ 22 118,776

— 138,320 141 100 — — 138,561

— 452,100 461,183 186,955 11,969 — 1,112,207

19,429 504,373 892,359 602,310 418,369 31,443 2,468,283
(i) 296 63,979 113,642 261,416 139,919 1,644 580,896
23,220 14,711 25,133 8,984 8,952 30,577 111,577
171,107 1,271,575 1,540,220 1,059,781 579,209 500,400 5,122,292

— 13,500 24,000 — — — 37,500

225,398 312,518 528,022 1,010 1,000 596 1,068,544
—_ 37,039 11,874 335 —_ —_ 49,248

— 67,976 3,192 — — — 71,168
1,334,115 819,432 665,351 362,891 986 — 3,182,775
—_ 80,028 97,281 41,392 70,434 —_ 289,135

57,151 13,821 19,673 7,926 938 4,727 104,236
1,616,664 1,344,314 1,349,393 413,554 73,358 5,323 4,802,606
(1,445,557) (72,739) 190,827 646,227 505,851 495,077 319,686
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EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

oOoOooodn
2014 12 31
)
( ( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) )
77,398 — — — — 461,088 538,486
70,434 19,365 2,682 1,510 — — 93,991
— 50,799 17,360 — — 21 68,180
—_ 131,709 3,068 988 — — 135,765
— 165,430 370,548 117,278 — — 653,256
G 20,578 469,777 790,021 485,009 336,118 34,829 2,136,332
ii

(iiv) 4,190 33,044 75,585 203,675 96,437 2,809 415,740
17,193 31,338 17,563 1,733 956 28,282 97,065
189,793 901,462 1,276,827 810,193 433,511 527,029 4,138,815
— 50,000 50 — — — 50,050
124,269 448,572 104,872 10,579 —_ — 688,292
— 14,179 4,406 1,063 — — 19,648
— 39,440 2,169 — — — 41,609
1,290,019 591,897 682,497 265,392 19,769 — 2,849,574
— 17,897 14,665 18,593 82,333 — 133,488
42,583 12,738 9,491 18,090 2,380 3,526 88,808
1,456,871 1,174,723 818,150 313,717 104,482 3,526 3,871,469
(1,267,078) (273,261) 458,677 496,476 329,029 523,503 267,346
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EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

ooooooo
2015 12 31
O]

( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) )
70,431 — 3,416 — — 436,004 509,851
42,056 16,365 6,379 — — — 64,800
— 63,688 34,566 — — 22 98,276
— 136,969 141 100 — — 137,210
— 452,100 461,123 185,615 10,969 — 1,109,807
. 17,123 467,133 842,534 548,856 399,482 29,746 2,304,874

1l

(iii) 296 42,285 106,262 247,772 137,488 22,419 556,522
19,813 14,657 25,099 8,484 7,444 27,458 102,955
149,719 1,193,197 1,479,520 990,827 555,383 515,649 4,884,295
— 13,500 23,900 — — — 37,400
225,789 313,218 528,017 1,010 1,000 596 1,069,630
— 28,540 3,859 — — — 32,399
— 67,918 3,102 — — — 71,110
1,283,922 706,340 641,106 362,472 986 — 2,994,826
— 79,598 90,758 32,472 70,434 — 273,262
54,143 11,499 19,611 7,652 557 568 94,030
1,563,854 1,220,613 1,310,443 403,606 72,977 1,164 4,572,657
(1,414,135) (27,416) 169,077 587,221 482,406 514,485 311,638
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EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

oOoOooodn
2014 12 31
)
( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) )
76,737 — — — — 460,074 536,811
56,859 20,691 2,629 1,510 — — 81,689
— 32,611 15,178 — — 21 47,810
— 131,709 3,068 988 — —_ 135,765
— 165,430 370,348 117,138 — — 652,916
G 18,946 437,732 751,392 450,073 320,396 33,803 2,012,342
ii
(iiv) 4,190 26,082 72,563 193,990 95,429 11,727 403,981
14,605 30,730 17,558 1,731 956 25,742 91,322
171,337 844,985 1,232,736 765,430 416,781 531,367 3,962,636
— 50,000 — — — — 50,000
124,494 457,217 106,072 10,579 —_ — 698,362
— 13,785 4,406 512 — — 18,703
— 39,212 2,169 — — — 41,381
1,251,178 500,985 664,246 263,419 19,769 — 2,699,597
— 14,433 9,253 16,479 75,427 — 115,592
40,224 12,336 9,341 18,092 2,380 905 83,278
1,415,896 1,087,968 795,487 309,081 97,576 905 3,706,913
(1,244,559) (242,983) 437,249 456,349 319,205 530,462 255,723
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EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

OooooOodd
2015 12 31
631,431 — — 631,431
149,138 — — 149,138
81,573 50,887 1,106 133,566
90,501 62,712 47,720 200,933
91,406 759 — 92,165
1,044,049 114,358 48,826 1,207,233
2014 12 31
712,985 — — 712,985
124,106 — — 124,106
96,815 25,560 1,633 124,008
87,223 62,412 38,703 188,338
133,009 1,757 — 134,766
1,154,138 89,729 40,336 1,284,203
2015 12 31
628,790 — — 628,790
141,993 — — 141,993
80,215 49,773 1,106 131,094
20,646 58,342 47,716 126,704
89,683 690 — 90,373
961,327 108,805 48,822 1,118,954
2014 12 31
711,552 — — 711,552
117,409 — — 117,409
95,884 25,487 1,633 123,004
27,668 59,978 38,698 126,344
129,922 80 — 130,002
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OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
ooooodn

1,082,435 85,545 40,331 1,208,311

(1) PBOC
(i)
(i)
@
IT
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OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

60

CBRC

CBRC
2013 2012 CBRC

2018 Tier 1
Tier 1 7.50 8.50 10.50
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EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

ooooOoog
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
Tier 1 9.12% 8.93
Tier 1 9.17% 8.99
11.87% 12.33
Tier 1
48,935 46,787
58,636 49,296
3,584 (1,833)
23,362 19,394
64,555 50,447
118,668 95,586
75 4,311
Tier 1 317,815 263,988
Tier 1
(854) (795)
(802) 407)
Tier 1 316,159 262,786
Tier 1 i 1,828 1,796
Tier 1 317,987 264,582
Tier 2
Tier 2 69,299 73,618
24,447 23,123
7 1,525
411,740 362,848
3,468,135 2,941,627
(i) 2015 12 31 Tier 1

53

61
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2015 12 31

)
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EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

oOoOooodn
2015 2014 2015 2014
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )« )
179,930 177,957 185,152 177,856
1,112,207 653,256 1,124,181 656,435
8,705 11,167 8,706 11,193
31,295 16,302 32,381 16,656
77,779 82,333 83,181 83,715
171,356 23,686 171,501 24,978
2015 2014 2015 2014
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) )
179,930 177,957 185,152 177,856
1,109,807 652,916 1,121,853 656,088
31,472 16,479 32,558 16,834
70,434 75,427 75,566 76,566
171,356 23,686 171,501 24,978
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EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

ooooooo
2015 12 31
) ( DI ¢ ) ( )
833 184,319 — 185,152
— 1,124,181 — 1,124,181
— 8,706 — 8,706
— 32,381 — 32,381
7,615 75,566 — 83,181
— 171,501 — 171,501
2014 12 31
) ( ) ( )« )
1,365 176,491 — 177,856
— 656,435 — 656,435
— 11,193 — 11,193
— 16,656 — 16,656
7,149 76,566 — 83,715
— 24,978 — 24,978
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00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

ooooOoog
2015 12 31
) ( ) ( ) I )
833 184,319 — 185,152
— 1,121,853 — 1,121,853
— 32,558 — 32,558
— 75,566 — 75,566
— 171,501 — 171,501
2014 12 31
) ( ) ( ) )
1,365 176,491 — 177,856
— 656,088 — 656,088
— 16,834 — 16,834
— 76,566 — 76,566
— 24,978 — 24,978
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OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

Ogoooood
()
) ) (i)
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2015 12 31
479 8,057 — 8,536
— — 1 1
— 15,226 — 15,226
— 2,457 — 2,457
— 1,288 3 1,291
17 11,472 — 11,489
— 1,008 — 1,008
40,313 257,120 11 297,444
— 352 70 422
671 74,643 — 75,314
— 10 — 10
424 — 22 446
41,904 371,633 107 413,644
— (992) ®) (995)
@ (10,118) — (10,119)
— (304) — (304)
[¢)) (11,414) ©) (11,418)
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O) O) (i)
( ) ( ) ( )« )
2014 12 31
1,616 11,130 — 12,746
— — 2 2
— 13,923 — 13,923
— 838 — 838
— 972 5 977
10 6,396 — 6,406
— 843 — 843
23,055 160,233 12 183,300
— 320 127 447
228 23,660 — 23,888
89 1,548 — 1,637
24,998 219,863 146 245,007
(573) — — (573)
— (744) (10) (754)
) (6,207) — (6,208)
— (385) — (385)
(574) (7,336) (10) (7,920)
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(i O) (i)
( I ¢ ) ( ) ( )
2015 12 31
300 8,057 — 8,357
— 15,226 — 15,226
— 1,766 — 1,766
— 1,039 3 1,042
— 8,334 — 8,334
— 1,008 — 1,008
7,030 256,497 8 263,535
— 352 — 352
— 64,945 — 64,945
48 — — 48
7,378 357,224 11 364,613
— (951) ®3) (954)
— (7,181) — (7,181)
— (304) — (304)
— (8,436) ®3) (8,439)
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(M O) (1))
( ) ( ) ( ) )
2014 12 31
1,609 11,131 — 12,740
— 13,923 — 13,923
— 838 — 838
— 718 5 723
— 4,072 — 4,072
_ 843 — 843
6,832 159,026 9 165,867
— 320 — 320
— 20,650 — 20,650
38 1,548 — 1,586
8,479 213,069 14 221,562
(573) — — (573)
— (703) (10) (713)
— (3,902) — (3,902)
— (385) — (385)
(573) (4,990) (10) (5,573)
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( ( ( ( (

) ) ) ) ) ) ) )

2015 2 5 12 127 — 146 (10) (10)
— (@) — — 22 20 7 7

_ — — an — an — -

— — — (40) — (40) — —

@ — @ — — @ — —

2015 12 31 1 3 11 70 22 107 ®3) )
— [©) — — 22 20 7 7

( ( (

) ) ) ) ) ) ) )

2014 40 12 13 290 357 an an
_ _ ®) — — ®) 12 12

— — — @ (25) (26) — —

_ — — — 15 15 — —

— (40) 1 — (153) (192) ) )

2014 12 31 — 5 12 127 146 (10) (10)
_ — ®) — — ®) 12 12
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5 9 14 10) (10)
@ — @) 7 7
— (€)) (€)) — —
3 8 11 (©) A
— — — 5 5
) ) ( ) ) )
12 9 21 an an
3) 1 @) 12 12
— €)) €)) — —
1 — 1 (5) )
5 9 14 (10) (10)
— — — 4 4
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@
O CITIC
67.13 CITIC
(i) CITIC CITIC
BBVA 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
BBVA 3.12 9.60
2015 12 31
®
2015 12 31
BBVA
( ) ( ) ( )
268 — —
154 — _
(649) — —
— 66 383 8
(673) — —
2014 12 31
BBVA
( ) ( ) ( )
385 — —
423 — _
(1,595) @ —
— 380 (124) —
(848) — —
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2015 12 31

BBVA

69 — —
14,793 1,094 —
(151) — —

14,642 1,094 —
22 — —

61 100 —

406 — 976
9,271 988 —

49,555 — 22
11 112 —
21,887 — —
110 — —
1,550 — —

968 255 —
90 — —
8,574 — —
2,780 39,755 —

2014 12 31

BBVA

6,588 — —
G — —

6,537 — —
183 673 —

28 — —
™ — —

252 — 870
7,759 152 —

26,359 — 30

35,233 470 —
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512 437 —
8 103 —
194 — _
26 — —
204 307 —
258 — —
10 33 —
3,001 19,789 —

©
2015 12 31 11.63 2014

12 31 12.74
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
( ) ( )

13,669 13,051
17,042 19,601
2,729 2,279
33,440 34,931

()]

CITIC
41(b)
Q)
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C))
2015 12 31
2015 12 31
( ( ( ( (

) ) ) ) )
— 10 147,605 147,615 147,615
— — 825,016 825,016 825,016
— — 139,971 139,971 139,971

5,306 8 — 5,314 5,314
— 70 — 70 70

5,306 88 1,112,592 1,117,986 1,117,986

2014 12 31
( ( ( ( (

) ) ) ) )
— — 78,859 78,859 78,859
— — 452,319 452,319 452,319
— — 108,535 108,535 108,535

7,110 9 — 7,119 7,119
— 127 — 127 127

7,110 136 639,713 646,959 646,959
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(®)
2015
5,808 2014 3,958
390 2014 401 2015 12 31
387
2014 12 31 857
2015 12 31
659,118 2014 12 31

393,413

2015 12 31

25,266 2014 12 31
16,800 2015

36,675 2014 39,420

2015 2015 12 31

604.2 2014 393.9
2015
7.52 2014 6.20 2015 12
0.29
2014 12 31 2015 12 31

2015 12 31
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Ogoooood
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
( )
509,851 536,811
64,800 81,689
1,191 411
98,276 47,810
25,349 27,501
10,384 5,638
137,210 135,765
29,849 25,546
2,304,874 2,012,342
328,994 188,537
179,930 177,957
1,109,807 652,916
22,249 9,986
15,448 14,223
801 407
7,930 9,296
37,352 35,801
4,884,295 3,962,636
37,400 50,000
1,069,630 698,362
32,399 18,703
— 573
8,439 5,000
71,110 41,381
2,994,826 2,699,597
7,610 10,871
4,694 5,837
37,422 36,559
2 2
273,262 115,592
35,863 24,436
4,572,657 3,706,913
48,935 46,787
61,359 51,619
4,790 435
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64,350 50,350
108,842 87,138
311,638 255,723
4,884,295 3,962,636
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2014 12
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46,787 51,619 435 19,394 50,350 87,138 255,723
— — — — — 39,672 39,672
— — 4,355 — — — 4,355
— — 4,355 — — 39,672 44,027
2,148 9,740 — — — — 11,888
— — — 3,968 — (3,968) —
— — — — 14,000 (14,000) —
31 48,935 61,359 4,790 23,362 64,350 108,842 311,638
46,787 51,619 4,732) 15,495 44,250 69,937 223,356
— — — — — 38,990 38,990
— — 5,167 — — — 5,167
— — 5,167 — — 38,990 44,157
— — — 3,899 — (3,899) —
— — — — 6,100 (6,100) —

_ _ _ — — (11,790) (11,790)
31 46,787 51,619 435 19,394 50,350 87,138 255,723
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@
2015 12 31

0] — — — — — — — — —

— 700 691 — 392 195 — — 1,978

(i) — — — — — — — — —

(i) — — — — — — — — —

300 — — — — — — — 300

300 — — — — — — — 300

300 — — — — — — — 300

275 — — — — — — — 275

— 600 632 — 378 190 — — 1,800

(i) _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

300 — — — — — — — 300

100 — — — — — — — 100

175 — — — — — — — 175

— 300 1,999 — 227 140 — — 2,666

— 290 1,277 — 25 217 — — 1,809

— 223 2,202 — 282 191 — — 2,898

2015

0) — — — — — — — — —
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— 583 549 — 329 163 — — 1,624
(i) — — — — — — — — —
— 328 2,071 — 316 164 — — 2,879
— 290 1,768 — 254 189 — — 2,501
i
2014 12 31
2014 12 31
Cap.622
— 257 406 — 110 71 — — 844
— 658 1,229 — 419 199 — — 2,505
— 257 406 — 116 70 — — 849
300 — — — — — — — 300
300 — — — — — — — 300
300 — — — — — — — 300
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75 — — — — — — — 75
— 700 1,328 — 409 195 — — 2,632
— 251 1,856 — 262 147 — — 2,516
— 300 2,020 — 278 153 — — 2,751
275 — — — — — — — 275
2014
25 — — — — — — — 25
225 — — — — — — — 225
250 — — — — — — — 250
225 — — — — — — — 225
®
2015 12 31 2014
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
2015
2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

For the pear ended 31 December 2015
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi omless otharmise stated)

¥ear ended 31 December

Motes 2015 2014
Interest income F15,661 205639
Interest expense (111,228) (110,898)
Net intersst income [ 104,433 04,741
Fee and commission income 37,639 26972
Fee and commission expense (1,965) (1,659}
Net fee and commisdon income 7 35,674 25313
Net trading gain ] 3635 3437
Met gain from imvestment securities 9 1,192 834
Met hedging gain/(loss) 10 1 (2
Orther operating income 610 516
Operating income 145,545 124,839
Opemting expenses 11 (50,602) {46,796}
Operating profit before impairment 24,543 TE043
Impairment losses on
— Loans and advances to customers (35,1200 EZZ,{IT@]
— Others (4,217 (1,599}
Total impairment losses 12 (40,037) (23,673)
Revaluation gain on investment properties Fr F
Share of profic of assoclates 53 192
Met gain on disposal of an associate - 10
Profit before tax 54,986 54574
Income tax expense 13 {13, 246) {13, 120)
Profit for the year 41,740 41,454
Oither comprehensive income, net of tax:
Items that iy be reclassified rublu;_u.mﬂy o pmﬂt or loss
when specific conditions are met (net of taxh
Awailable-for-sale Ananclal assets: net movement
in fair value reserve 4,275 5,234
Exchange difference on translating foreign operations 1.364 (43)
Orthers 3 n
Items that will not ke reclasified to profit or loss
(et of axj:
Net changes on the measurement of defined benefic plan (&) (10}
Orthers 8 —
Oither mmpr:h.en:h’: income, net of tax 15 5,044 5,180
Total -mnmpz\eh::ruh\e income for the vear 47,384 46,534
Net profit attributable tos
Equity holders of the Bank 41,158 40,582
Nnn-mnrm]ﬂn.g Inter=sts 582 v}
41,740 41,454
Total comprehensive income ateribute tod
Equity holders of the Bank 46,575 45,866
Nnn-mnrm]ﬂn.g Inter=sts a09 Ta8
47,384 46,634
Basic and diluted carnings per share (RME) 14 LBE 087

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2015
{Amomrts in millions of Renminb! ool othermwise sated)

31 Drecember 31 Diecember
Movtes 2015 2014
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 16 511,189 538,485
Deepasits with banks and non-bank financlal institutions 17 B0LR0F 93,991
Precious metals 1,191 411
Placements with and loans to banks and
non-bank Financial institutions 18 118,776 GE, 1B
Financial assets at fair value through profit or los 19 Db, 20 27500
Diervative fnanclal assets 20 13.7T8E B.226
Financial assets held under resale agreements 21 138,561 135,765
Interest recetvable 22 3,512 26,125
Loans and advances to customers 23 1,468,283 2,136,332
Available-for-sale financial assets 24 A7TRTTO 209 404
Held-to-maturity investments 25 179,930 L7957
Imweztment classified as recebrables 25 1,112,207 553,256
Inwestments in associates el 976 B70
Property, plant and equipment e} 15,943 14,738
Intangible assets 30 f:tied 407
Imwestment properties 3l 325 280
Geodwill 32 854 795
Dieferred tax assets 33 7981 9.317
Orther assets 34 40,141 36,766
Total assets 5 122,292 4,138,815
Liabilities
Bowrowings from central banks 37,500 50,050
Depadr: from banks and non-bank financial institutions 35 1, MR, 544 GER. 292
Placements from banks and non-bank financial institutions 37 49,248 19,548
PFinancial liabilities ar fair value I:hmu.z]:. pmﬂt or loss 38 — 573
Diervative financlal labilities 20 11,418 s
PFinancial assets sold under mp1.|.|:rJ:|.n.|= agreements 39 71,168 41,6500
Dreposits from customers 40 3,182,775 2,849 574
Accrued staff costs 41 B, 302 11,521
Taxes payable 42 4,693 5,965
Interest payable 43 38,159 37311
Provisions 44 2 5
Diebt securities issued 45 289,135 133488
Dieferred tax liabilicies 33 10 —
Orther Habilities 46 41,652 26,066
Total liabilities 4, 802, 6D AT 469

‘China CITIC Bank Corperition Limited @
2015 Ansuwal Report
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi omless otharmise stated)

31 December 31 December
Mates 2015 2014

Equity
Share capital 47 48,935 46,787
Capital reserve 48 58,636 49,296
Other comprehensive income/{loss) 449 3,584 (1.833)
Surplus reserve 50 13,362 19.394
General reserve 51 64,555 50447
Retained eamings 52 118,668 95586
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 37,740 259677
Mon-controlling interests 53 1,46 74550
Total equity 319,686 267 346
Total liabilities and equity 5,122,292 4 138,815

The accompanying noves form an integral part of these consolidated financlal statements.

Approved and authorised for Issue by the board of directors on 23 Manch 2016,

Chang Zhenming Li Clingping Famng Heying Lu Wei Company stamp
Chairman Preidems Viice President Cremeral Manager

im charge of of Fimance awd

fimance fumation Accowmsting Departmews
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the pear ended 31 December 2015
{Amomrts in millions of Renminb! ool othermwise sated)

Eqity attrbatable i equity b bem o the sk Non-conia ag s
Cber Oy (ehereyuity
Sar Oyl osprbede  Gapls Gmenl  Detied mily  [ismat
Bem aapiual e hom rEm MR emis kil bolr  Tuulegiy
Jen | e 0§ L EO - LY 1 ¢ U A | S B
) Kepubi - - - - - # mo i
() Orber omprebensie imcome ] - - 114 - - - w -
Teal cmpbainisom: - - iy - - [3VL1] m m L]
(il Chuperin mooerdhip inewsss n nibadinis
ik e of coninel - o) - - - - (5.1 - L
{1 Proomds froon dhores immace [ AL 1 - - - - - - 158
d Traficsppaperions
A O -
— Apngiceo o e % |
— Divideds pid 10 nm-ownolins e - - - - - - - f1m Lk
Je 11 31 Dhrber 10§ ] Sk L W L m L AR
Fopinysccborsbl: m oy hoblens ol e k. Bommling iverta
(k5 oy Ol iy
Bem apinl nemt iname e L ] lelin bler  Toud epaiy
K | Joan M LI 5 Fen T HE i it -
0 Bl T
——— 1 A S
Toal ke - - W - - am om W
1 ey
Caitd ool by babdns of ey piyinsimmans - - - - - - - [Fi] ]
Fon-canirn iy it of e i 2 by - - - - - - [H] - 1]
(7 Praic sppaperions
A S v S T S
— A ppopriciae v prond e it - - - - Wy ALy - - -
— Appooprcice i iy ol ofie Bk = = - - - - -
— Dividedh pid 2 wa-manolling inderes = = = = = - - ] ]
dgt 51 Dhrmber 214 a4 [ MM Ry dilE R WM

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.

‘China CITIC Bank Corperition Limited @
2015 Ansuwal Report
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the pear ended 31 December 2015
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi omless otharmise stated)

¥ear ended 31 December

2015 2014
O perating activites
Profit before tax 54,986 54574
Adjustments fon
— Revaluation loss/(gain) on investments, derivatives and
Investment properties 519 {1,061)
— Investment gain {111} (1471
— Met lossiigain) on disposal of property. plant and equipment,
intangible assets and other assets ] (1}
— Unrealised ﬂ:unlg.n m’J:.n.u.E\e ]r.unrl:p.iu] 104 ﬁjﬂ]
— Impairment losses 40,037 23,673
— Depreciation and amortisation 2454 2194
— Interest expense on debt securities issued 8,382 4516
— Diividend income from equity investment {1 (131}
— Income tax pn.l.d. {14, 749) {14,265)
21,621 68894
Changes in eperating assets ana Habilities
Diecrease/ (increase) in balances with central banks 20,959 (37.378)
{Increase)/decrease in deposits with banks and
non-bank financial institutions (2, 4000 6,129
{Increase)/decrease in placements with and loans to banks
and non-bank financial institutions (34,393 72073
D:munfﬁncmﬂu}l in financial assets at fair value H:.ruud:. the pmﬂ.r or loss 1,382 {23,918)
{Increase)/decrease in financial assets held under resale agreements (2, 7570 151003
Increase in loans and advances to customers (358.952) (2371113
Increase in imvestment classified as recebrables (459,657) (3%53%:337
Increase in d.:pudl:l from banks and mon-bank financial institutions 380,182 133,624
(Drecrease)fincrease in borowings from central banks (1Z,550) H0050
Increase/{decrease) in placements from banks and
non-bank financial instituticons I%:,350 (22,223}
(Drecrease)fincrease in Anancial liabilicles ar fair value through profic or los (573 573
Increase in financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 29,550 A3 657
Increase in deposits From customers 323,142 197,153
Increase in other opemting assets (29, 169) (36,451)
Increase in other operating liabilities 3,430 1,410
Subtaotal (112,4586) (34.744)
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities (20,B35) 44,150
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

For the pear ended 31 December 2015
{Amomrts in millions of Renminb! ool othermwise sated)

Year ended 31 December

Mote 015 2014

Investing activites
Proceeds from dispasal and redemption of investments 636,920 409,437
Proceeds from dispasal of property, plant and equipment,

land use rights, and other assets 2 26
Cash recetved from equity investment income [ ] 135
Payments on acquisition of investments (775,111} (446.451)
Payments on acquisition of properties and

equipment and other assets (8,427 (11.432)
Cash pn.ld for acquisition ofa |u]:l|idln.q.r 28 (27 —
Met cash flows used in investing activites (142,554 IHE,EES:I
Financing activities
Cash received from capital issuance 47 11,888 —
Cash recetved from debt securdiies fssued F10, 960 97.B26
Cash recetved from other equity instruments issued — 1,825
Cash paid for redemption of debe securities issued (153,296) (39.745)
Interest paid on debt securities issued (B, 420) (3.674)
Dividends paid (137) (11,856)
Cash l::pn.lﬂ,'hfmdrnd for tmnnﬂ'hnlwi‘ﬂ:.mu-mnuuumg imterests B T7T2 18
Met cash flows from financing activities 154,229 44 204
Met (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (@, L&) 30,259
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January L1IE.375 199,643
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 7. 149 (1.527)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 54 26, 364 228,375
Cash flows from operating activities includes
Interest received 207,745 195,142
Interest paid (102, 0:40) (68.891)

The accompamying notes form an integral part of these consclidated financial starements.

‘China CITIC Bank Corperition Limited
2015 Ansuwal Report
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Notes to the Financial Statements
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi omless otharmise stated)

1 Corporate information

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (the *Bank™ or “CHMCE") is a joint stock company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China (the “FRC” or “Mainland China™ on 31 December 2006. Headquartered in Beijing, the Bank’s
registered office is located ar No.9 Chaoyangmen Beidajie, Dongcheng Districe, Beljing, China.

The Bank listed its A shares and H shares on Shanghal Stock Exchange and the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, respectively on 27 Aprl 2007,

As at 31 December 2015, the Group mainly operates in Mainland China with branches covering 31 provinces,
autonomous regions and municipalities. In addition, the Bank’s subsidiaries have operations in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and other overseas countries and reglons.

PFor the purpose of these financial satements, Mainland China refers to the PRC excluding the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of PRC (*Hong Kong™), the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC ("Macau™) and
Taiwan. (herseas refers to countries and regions other than Mainland China.

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively the "Group™) are the provision of corporate and
personal banking services, conducting treasury business, the provision of asset management, finance leasing and other
non-banking financial services.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank on 23 Manch 2016,

2 Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The consclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries
and the Group’s interest in associates,

(a) Accounting year
The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December.

i(b) Functional currency and presentation currency

The fanctional currency ofthe Bank is Renminbi. The fanctional currencies of overseas subsidiaries are determined
in accordance with the primary economic environment in which they operate, and are translated into Renminki
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements according to Mote 4(b)(ii). The financial statements
of the Group are presented in Renminbi and, unless otherwise stated, expressed in millions of Renminbi.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
{Amomrts in millions of Renminb! ool othermwise sated)

Statement of compliance

These financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards ("TFRSs") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("LASB"), and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). These financial satements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements have been prepared under the histarical cost convention, as medified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale Anancial assets, and financial assets and financial liabilitles {including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss and investment properties, which are carried ar fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estlmates.
It also requires management to exercise s judgement in the process of applying the Grmoup’s accounting policies. The

areas Involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Mote 4.

{a) MNew and amended standards adnprc-:l 1:-}' the Group
The following standards have been adopted by the Group for the first time during the financial year ended 31

Diecmm ber 2015:

(i Amendments to [AS 19 Employee benefits — To Plans that Require Employes or
{as revised in 2001) Third Parties to Contribute Towards the Cost of Benefits

(i) Amendments to [FRSs Annual Improvements to [FRSs 20010 — 2012 Cycle

(il} Amendments to [FRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle

(] Amendment to [AS 19 — Employes benefits applies to defined benefic plans where employess or thind
parties are required to bear some of the cost of the plan. The amendment clarifies the accounting by
entities with plans that require contributions linked only to service in each period. Entities with plans

that require contributions that vary with service pericd will be required to recognise the benefic of those
coneributions over employees’ service period.

(i) Amendments from annual improvements to [FRSs — 20010 - 2012 Cycle, on IFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’,

1AS 16, Property, plant and equipment’ and IAS 38, Intangible assets” and IAS 24, “Related pany
disclosures’.

l::il.i:l Amendments from u.ntulimpmm:nhtc[FRSl—Eﬂll —2013 er.]:, on IFRS A, "Pusiness combinations’,
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement” and IAS 40, Tnvestment property”.
{b) MNew Hong Kong Companics Ordinance (Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 "Accounts and Audit™ of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) came into operation during the financlal year ended 31 December 201 %, as a result, there are changes
to presentation and disclosures of certain Information in the consolidared financial statements.
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3  Statement of compliance (Continued)

ic) Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before
their effective dates by the Group in 2015

The Gmoup has not adopted the following new and revised IFR.Ss that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Effective for annual
perlods beginalng
on or after
i IFRS 14 Repulatnry Defemal Account 1 Jumuary 2016
[i] Amendmentsco JFRS 11 Acquisition of Interssts in Joint Opentions 1 Jaruary 2016
[itf] Amendmenisco 4516 Clarficarion of Acceprable Mechods of 1 Jamuary 2016
and [45 & Dlpm:i.l.dnn und Amortizcion
()  Amendmenisco 14527 Equicy Methed in Separate Financial Stacemencss 1 Jamary 2016
v} Amendments co IFRSs Annual improvements to [FRSs 2012 — 2014 cpde 1 Jamuary 2016
[vi) Amendmenis co IFRS 10, Lvestment Entities Applying che 1 January 2016
[ERS 12 and JAS 28 Consalidation Excepticn
[vii) Amendments co 145 1 Disclesure In'ciarive 1 January 2016
[viii} IFRS 15 Reverme from Contracts with Cusmmers 1 January 2018
[m) IFRS% Financial [nstruments 1 January 2018
[z} IFRS 16 Leaes 1 Jurmary 2019
[zi) Amendments co JFRS 10 Sale cr Contribution of Assets berween An The amendments were originally intended to be
and [AS 28 Lovestor and [ Amodate or Joine Venure effecirve for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 Janmary 2016 The effective date has
now been defecredremored.
[zii} Amendments co JA5 12 Income Taxes 1 January 2017
[ziii) Amendmenis co 145 7 Sturemen: of csh fows 1 January 2017

i) IFRS 14: Repulatory Deferral Account

The [ASE has issued IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts, an interim standard on the accounting
for certain balances that arise from rate-regulated activites (“regulatory deferal accounts™. IPRS 14 is
only applicable to entities that apply IFRS 1 — Pirst-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards as frst-time adopters of [FRS. It permits such entities, on adoption of IFRS, to continue to
apply their previous GAAP accounting policies for the recognition, measurement, impairment and de-
recognition of regulatory defernl accounts. The interim standard also provides guidance on selecting and
changing accounting policles {on first-time adoption or subsequently) and on presentation and disclosure.
The Group anticipates that the adoption of this new standard should not have any impact on the Group’s
consalidated financial statements.

i} Amendments to IFRS 11: Acquisition of Interests in Joie Op et

The amendments to IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements provide specific guidance on accounting for the
acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that is a business. The amendments require an imestor to
apply the principles of business combination accounting when It acquires an interest in a joint operation
that constitutes a business. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a
slgnificant impact on the Group’s consclidated fnancial statements.

{iifl Amendments to [AF 16 and A5 38; Chdfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortizm tion

The amendments to IAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment, clarify thar depreciation of an item of
property, plant and equipment based on revenue generated by wsing the asset Is not appropriate. The
amendments to [AS 38 — Intangible Assets, establish a reburtable presumption that amortization of an
intangible aset based on revenue penerated by using the asset is inappropriate. The presumption may
only be rebutted in certain limited clircumstances. The Group anticipates that the adoption of these
amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consclidated financial statements.
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3  Statement of compliance (Continued)

ic) Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before
their cffective dates by the Group in 2015 (Continned)

(i) Amendments to [AS 27 Equity Method in Sepamte Financial Statements

The [ASE has amendsd TAS 27 — Sepunte Financial Statements. The amendment allows entities to use
equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their sepanate
fimancial statements. The Group has early adopted this amendment in 2015 and choose to use equity
method to account for investment in joint ventures and assoclates in separate financial statement. The
adoption of this new amendment does not have a significant impace on the Group’s consolidared financial
StabemeEnts.

v Amendments to IFRSs Annval Improvements to [FRSs 2002 — 2004 cycle

The Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle include a number of amendments o various
IFR.Ss, lnrJ.u.dLu,g the amendments [FRS § — Mon-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinuwed
Oiperations regarding methods of disposal, the amendments to IFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures
regarding servicing contracts, the amendments to IAS 19 — Employee Benefits reparding discount rates,
the amendments to [AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting regarding disclasure of information. The Group
anticipates that the adoption of these amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group’s
consalidated financial statements.

(vi) Amendments to [FRS 10, IFRS 12 and TAS 28 I t Entitiess Applying the Consolidat

FException

The amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that the exception from preparing consolidated Financial statements
is available to intermediate parent entities which are subsidiaries of investment entities. The exception
is available when the investment entity parent measures its subsidiaries at fair value. The intermediate
parent would also need to meet the other criteria for exception listed in IFRS 10, The amendments also
darify that an imvestment entity should consolidate o subsidiary which is not an imvestment entity and
which provides services in support of the investment entity’s investment activitles, such that it acts as an
extension of the investment entity. Howewver, the amendments also confirm that if the subsidiary is iself
an investment entity, the imvestment entity parent should measure Its investment in the subsidiany at
fair value through profic or loss. This approach is required regardless of whether the subsidiary provides
imvestment-related services to the parent or to third parties.

The amendments to IAS 28 allow an entity which is not an imvestment entlty, but has an interest in an
assoclate or a joint venture which is an investment entity, a relief to retain the fir value measurement
applied by the investment entity assoclate or joint veniure, or to unwind the fir value measurement and
instead perform a consolidation at the level of the investment entity associate or joint venture for their
subsidiaries when applying the equity method.

The Group anticipates that the adoption of these amendments will not have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial starements.

(v Amendments to [AF Ir Disclosore [nitiative

The amendments clarify guidance in IAS 1 on materality and agpregation, the presentation of subtotals,
the structure of financial satements and the disclosure of accounting policies. Although the amendments
do not require specific changes, they clarify o number of presentation issues and highlight that preparers
are permitted to tailor the formar and presentation of the financlal statements to their croamstances and
the needs of users. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amend ments will not have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financlal statements.
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3  Statement of compliance (Continued)

ic) Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before
their effective dates by the Group in 2015 (Contnged)

(viii) IFRS I5: Revenoe from Contracts with Costomers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining when to recognise revenue and how
much revenue to recognise through a 5step appmach. The core principle is that a company should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the customer in an amount thar
reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods ar
services. It moves away from a revenue recognition model based on an “eamings processes’ to an “asser-
liability” approach based on transter of control. IFRS 15 provides specific guidance on capitalization of
contract cost and license arangements. also includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements about the
nature, amount, timing and wncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entiny’s contraces
with customers. The (Group anticipates that the adoption of these amendments will not have a significant
impact an the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

{ix} IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

The complete version of [FRS 9 — Financial Instruments was issued in July 2014, It replaces the guidance
in IAS 39 — Financial Inscruments: Recognition and Measurement that relates to the classificarion and
measurement of financial instruments. [FRS 9 retains but :Impll.ﬁ:l the mixed measurement model and
establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost, Fair value through
other comprehensive income (FOCI7) and fair value theough profit or loss, The basis of classification
depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow characterstics of the financial asset.
Investments in equity instruments are required to be measured at fair value through profic or loss with the
irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value in OCI in which case the accumulated fair
value changes in OC] will not be recycled to the profit or loss in the future. A new expected credit losses
micdel will replace the incurred loss impairment model used in LIAS 39. For financial liabilities there were
no changes to classification and measurement, except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in
other comprehensive income for liabilities designated ar fair value through profic or loss. IFRS 9 relaxes
the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It requires
an economic relationship between the hedged item and hedging instrament and for the hedged mtic’
to be the same as the one management actually use for rsk management purposes. The Group is in the
process of assessing the impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements from this new standard.

{x)  IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 provides updated guidance on the definition of leases, and the guidance on the combination
and separation of cantracts. Under IFRS 18, a contract Is, or contains, a lease if the contract OIS the
rdght to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. [FRS 16
requires lessees to recognise lease liability reflecting Future lease payments and a “right-ofuse-asset’ for
almost all lease contracts, with an exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of lowvalue assets.
The lessars accounting stays almast the same as under [AS 17. However, the new accounting model for
lessees Is expected to impact negotations between lessors and lessees. The Group is in the process of
assessing the impact on the Group's consolidated financlal statements from this new standard.

iri)] Amendments to [FRS 10 and [A5 28: ('n the Sale or Contdbution of Assets between An Iavestor and
Tts Associate or Joint Venture

These amendments address an inconsistency beoween the requirements in IFRS 10 — Consolidared
Financlal Statements and those in IAS 28 — Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures in the sale and
contribution of assets between an imvestor and its associate or joint venture. A full gain orloss is recognissd
when a transaction imwolves a business. A partial gain or loss s recognised when o transaction involves
assets that do not constitute o business, even if those assets are in a subsidiary. The Group anticlpates
that the adoption of these amendments will ot have a significant Impact on the Group’s consolidared
fnancial statements.
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3  Statement of compliance (Continued)

ic) Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before
their cffective dates by the Group in 2015 (Continned)

(mil Amendments to [AS I2: [ncome Taxes

These amendments on the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses clarifiy how to account
for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value. The Group anticipates that the
adoption of these amend ments will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated fnancial
StabemeEnts.

(df] Amendments to [AS 7r Statement of Cash Flows

The IASE has issued an amendment o [AS 7 lntmdu.n:l.ng an additional disclosure that will enable wsers
of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arsing from financing activities. The amendment
is part of the [ASE"s Disclosure Initiathve, which continues to explore how financial statement disclosure
can be improved. The Group anticipates that the adoption of these amend ments will not have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financlal statements.

4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates

{a) Consolidated financial statements
{4 Business combinations fnvolving enterprises nader common controf

A business combination involving enterprises under common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and
after the business combination, and that control is not transitory. The assets acquired and Habilities
assumed are measured based on their carrying amounts in the financial satements of the acquiree at
the combination date. The difference between the carrying amount of the net assets acquired and the
consideration paid for the combination (or the total face value of shares issued) is ad justed against share
premium in the capiral reserve with any excess adjusted against retained earnings. The issuance costs of
equity or debt securities as a part of the consideration for the acquisition are included in the carrying
amounts of these equity or debt securities upon initial recognition. Other acquisition-related costs are
expensed when incurred. The combination date is the date on which one combining enterprise obtins
control of other combining enterprises.

(§}  Busniness combimations not involving entities under common contral

A business combination imelving entities not under commoen control is a business combination in which
all of the combining entities are not ultimately contralled by the same party or parties before the business
combination. Where (i} the aggregate of the acquisition date fair value of assets transferred (including
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree), liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
securities issued by the acquirer, in exchange for contmol of the acquinee, exceeds (i) the acquirer’s interest
in the acquisition date fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is recognised as
poodwdll (Maote 4(m)). If (1) is less than (ii), the difference is recognised in profit or loss for the cument
period. The isuance costs of equity or debt securities as a part of the consideration for the acquisition
are included in the carrying amounts of these equity or debt securities upon indtial recognition. Cther
acquisition-related costs are included in the conslderation for the acquisition. Any difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the assets transferred as consideration s recognised in profit
or los. The acquiree’s identifiable asser, liabilities and contingent Habilities, if the recognition criteria
are met, are recognised by the Group at their acquisition date fair value. The acquisition date is the date
on which the acquirer obtains control of the acquiree.

For a business combination not imvolving enterprises under common control and achieved in stages, the
Group remeasures its previously-held squicy interest in the acquiree to its fair value ar the acquisition
date. The difference between the fair value and the carrying amount is recognised as investment income
for the current perod; the amount recognised in other comprehensive income relating to the previoush-
held equity interest in the acquire and will be reclassified subsequently to profic or loss, and other changes
in the owners” squity under equity accounting, are transferred to investment income in the period in
which the acquisition socurs
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Contimaed)

{a) (Consolidated financial starements (Continued)
(iifl Consolidated financial state men ts

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based on control and the consolidated financial statements
comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries. The Bank controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, wo
varlable returns from fts invobrement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Bank has power, only substantive rights (held by
the Bank and other pn.rtl.sfl are considered. The financial statements of subsidiares are Included in the
consalidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

MNon-controlling interest is presented separately in the consolidated statement of Anancial position within
owners’ equity. Met profit or loss and total comprehensive income attributable to non-contmolling equine
halders are presented separately in the consclidated statement of profic or loss and other comprehensive

income.

When the amount of loss for the current pericd attributable to the non-contrelling interest of a subsidiary
exceeds the non-controlling interest’s portion of the opening balance of equity holders’ equity of the
subsidiary, the excess is allocated against the non-controlling interests.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of a subsidiary are different from those of the Bank,
the Bank makes necessary adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary based on the Bank’s
own accounting perod or accounting policies. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash Aows, and amy
unrealised profit or loss adsing from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidared
Amancial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is evidence of impairment.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting period, through a business combination imvalving
enterprises under common control, the financial statements of the subsidiary are included in the consclidared
Anmancial statements as if the combination had occurred ar the date the ultimate controlling party frst
obtained control. Therefore the opening balances and the comparative figures of the consolidated financial
statements are restated. In the preparation of the consolidared financlal statements, the subsidiary's assets,
liabilities and results of operations are included in the consolidated starement of financial position and
the consclidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, respectively, based on their
carrying amounts In the consolidated Anancial statements of the ultimate controlling party, from the
date that common control was established.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting period, through a business combination not involving
enterprises under common control, the identifiable assets and labilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the scope of consolidation from the date that contol commences, based on the fir value of
those identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Where the Bank acquires a non-controlling interest from a subsidiany’s non-controlling equiny holders ar
disposes of a portion of an interest in a subsidiary without a change in control, the difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are ad justed and the amount of the consideration paid ar
recebved is adjusted to the reserve (share premium) in the consclidated statement of financial position. If
the credit balance of reserve (share premium) is insufficlent, any excess is adjusted to rerained earnings.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary due to the disposal of a portion of an equity imvestment, the
Group derecognises assets, labilities, non-contmolling interssts and other related items in squine holders’
equity in relation to that subsidiary. The remaining equity investment is remeasured at its Fair value ar
the date when contral is lost. Any gains or losses therefore incurred are recognised as imvestment income
for the aarrent perlod when the control is lost.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

(b) Foreign corrency translations
i) Transhtion of foreign currency transactions

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencles From investors, the capiral is translared to Renminbi
at the spot exchange rate at the date of the receipr. Other foreign currency transactions are, on initial
recognition, translated into Renminbd by applying the spot exchange rates at the dates of the transaction.
Monetary items denominated in forelgn currencies are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate
at the reporting date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary
itrems thar are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated to Renminbi
using the exchange rate ar the transaction date. Mon-monetary ftems that are measured ar fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rate at the date the fair value is determined.
The differences arising from the translation of available-for-sale squity investments is recognised in other
comprehenshre income. Changes in the fir value of monetary assets denominated in forelgn currency
dlassified as available for sale are analysed berween translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the monetary assets and other changes in the carrying amount. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the consolidated income statement, and other
changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

()  Transhtion of finan cial statements denominated in foreipn cumency

The foreign currency financial stements are translated into Renminbi for the prepantion of consalidared
fimancial statements. The assets and liabilities in the foreign currency financial statements are translated
into Benminbi at the spot exchange mates prevailing ar the balance sheet date. The equity items, except
for “retained earnings”, are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates ar the dates on which such
itrems arose. Income and expenses are translated ar exchange rates at the date of the transactions, or a rate
that approximates the exchange rates of the date of the transaction. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income of equity holder’s equity.

Upon disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the translation differences recognised in
equity holders” equity which relates to that foreign operation is transferred to profit or loss in the pericd
in which the disposal occurs.

{c) Financial instruments
{4 Hasslfica tion

The Group classifies financial instruments into different categores at inception, depending on the purpose
for which the assets were acquired or the Habilities were incurmed, and on the contractual terms of the
fimancial instruments. The categories arer financial assets and financial liabilities ar fair value through
the pmﬂt or loss, h.:ld,-te-mn.mrh}r imvestments, loans and recebvables, available—for—sale financial assets
and other financial Habilities.

Fimancial assets at fair valve through che prafic or o

Financial assets at fair value through the profic or lass include those classified as held for trading, and
those designated by the Group upon recognition as at fair value through the profic or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is: (1) acquired or incurred principally for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing it in the near verm; (i} part of a portfolic of identified financial instraments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profie-
uking; or {iil) a derivative (except for a derbvarive that Is a financial puarantes contract or o designated
and effective hedging instrument).

Financial assets are designated at fair value through the profit or loss upon inital recogniton when:
(1) the financlal assets or are managed. evaluated and reported intermally on a fair value basis; (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch in the gain and loss recognition
arising from the difference in measurement bases of the fnancial assets; or (1ii) a contract contalns one or
more embedded derdvatives, i.e. an entire hfbrld. {combined) contrace, unless: ﬁ]l the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the hybrid {combined)
contract; or (1) it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar hybrid {combined) instrument is first
considered that separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Contimaed)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
i) Classification (Continued)
Held-to-maturity investmenss

Held-to-maturity investments are non-dedvative flnanclal assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hald to maturity, other tham
(i) those that the Group, upon initial rmoognition, designates as at fir value through the profic or loss
ar as available-for-sale; (ii) those that meet the definition of loans and recetvables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fized or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market, other than: (i) those that the Group intends to sel immediatdy or in the
near term, which will be classified as held for trading; (il) those that the Group, upon initial recognition,
designates as at fair value through the profit or loss or as available-for-sale, or (i) those where the Group
my not recover substantially all of its initial imvestment, other than because of credit detedaration, which
will be classified as available-for-sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise balances with central banks,
deposits and placements with and loans to banks and non-bank Ananclal institutions, financial assets held
under resale agreements, investment classified as receivables, as well as loans and adwances to customers.

Availableforsale financial aze

Available-for-sale Anancial assets are non-dervative fAnanclal assets that are designated as available-for-sale
or are not classified as: (I} financial assews at fair value through the profic or loss, (i) held-to-maturige
imvestments or (iii) loans and recebrables.

Fimancial Gabilizies ot fair value through the prefit or los

Financial liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss include those classified as held for trading, and
those designated by the Group upon recognition as at fair value through the profic or loss.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is: (i) acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term; (1) part of a portfolic of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
shart-term profic-taking; or (iii) a derbrative (except for a derivative that is a fAinancial guarantes contrace
or a designated and effective hedging instrument).

Financlal liabilicies are designated at fair value through the profic or loss upon initial recognition whem
(i) the financial liabilites or are managed, evaluated and reparted internally on a fic value basis; (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch in the gain and loss recognition
arsing from the difference In messurement bases of the Anancial liabilites; ar Ifl.il::l a contract contains
one or more embedded derbratives, .. an entire hybrid (combined) contract, unless: (i) the embedded
derbvative does not significantly modify the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the hybrid
{combined) contract; or (H) it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar hybrid (combined) instrument
is first considered that separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Oisher fimancial bakilities

Oither financial liabilities are financial liabilities other than those at fair value through the profic or loss,
and mainly comprise bormowings from central banks, deposits and placements from banks and non-bank
Anancial institutions, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements, deposits from customers and
debis securities lssued.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
(&)  Deriatives and embedded denvatives

Deertvatives mainly include forward and swap contracts in foreign currency market and intersst rate
market. The Group uses derivatives to hedge s exposure on foreign exchange and interest rare risks.
The Group adopts hedge accounting in accordance with Mote 4(e) for derivatives designated as hedging
instruments If the hedge is effective. Other dedvatives are accounted for as trading financial asses or
financial liabilities. Dierhvatives are recognised at fair walue upon initial recognition. Positive fair value is
recognised as assets while the negative fair value is recognised as labilities. Gain or loss on re-measurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Certain derivaiive is embedded inio a non-dervative instrument (the host mnl‘m.ct). The embadd=d
derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for as a dervative when (i) the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derbvarive are not closely related to the host contrace; (ii) a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative; and (iil) the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profic or loss. When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract is
acoounted for in accordance with Mote 4(c)(i).

(&i] Recognition and derecognition

Al financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position, when and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset, if the part being considered for derecognition meets one of the
following conditions: (i} the contractual dghts to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire;
or (ii} the contractual dghts to receive the cash flows of the fnanclal asset have been transferred, the
Gn:rl.l.p transhers ||.1b|l'n.u.'|:|nl'|y all the risks and rewards of nwn:nh:lp of the financial asset; or (M) the
Group retains the contractual dghts to receive the cash fows of the financial asset have been retained,
but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to the eventual recipient in an agreement that
meets all the conditlons of derecognition of transfer of cash fows and transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of cwneship of the financial asser.

Where a transfer of a financlal asset in its entirety meets the criteda for derecognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in profic or loss:

— the carying amount of the financial asset transferred;

— the sum of the considemation received from the transfer and any cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised directly in equit.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, but retains contml, the Gmu.p continues to recognise the Hnanclal asset to the ect=nt of
its continuing involrement in the Financial asset. If the Group has not retained control, it derecopnises
the financial asset and recognises separately as assers or liabilities any rghts and obligations created or
retained in the transfer.
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4

Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Contimaed)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(idi)

(iv}

Recognition and derecognition (Continued )
Secwritisasion

As part of its operations, the Group securitises financial assets, penenlly through the sale of these assets
to structured entities which issue seqarities to investors. Purther details on prerequisives for derecognition
of financial assets are set out above. When the securitisation of financial assets that do qualify for
derecognition, the relevant financial assets are derecognised in their entirety and a new financial asset ar
liabilities is recognised regarding the interest in the unconsolidated securitisation vehicles that the Group
acquired. When the securitisation of financial assets that do not qualify for derecognition, the rdevant
financial assets are not derecognised, and the consideration pald by third parties are recorded as a financial
liabilicy; when the securitisation of financial assets that partially qualify for derscognition, the book value
of the transferred asset should be recognised between the derscognised portion and the retained portion
based on their respective relative fir values, and the difference between the book value of the derecognisad
portion and the total consideration paid for the derecognised portion shall be recorded in profic or loss.

Sales off avsets ow condlizion of repurchase

The derscognition of fnancial assets sold on condition of repurchase is determined by the sconomic
substance of the transaction. If a financial asset is sold under an agreement to repunchase the same or
substantially the same asset at o fixed price or at the sale price plus a reasonable return, the Group will
not derecognise the asset. If a financial asset is sold together with an option to repunchase the financial
asset at its Fair value af the time of r:pu.rchnu {in case of transferor sells such Anancial asset), H:chup
will derecognise the financial asset.

Fimancial bakilicy

The Anancial liabiligr is derecognised only when: (i} the undedying present obligation specified in
the contracts is discharged/cancelled, or (H) an agreement between the Group and an existing lender
to exchange the orginal financial Hability with a new financial liability with subsantially different
terms, or a substantial modification of the terms of an exsting fAnancial labilige i accounted for as
an extinguishment of the criginal financial liability and recognition of o new financial labiliy. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial Hability derecognised and the consideration paid
is recognised in profic or loss.

Measurement

Financial instruments are measured initally at fair value plus or minus, in the cse of a financial instrument
not at fair value through the profit or loss, transaction costs that are direcely areributable to the acquisition
or issue of the instruments. Transaction costs for financial instraments at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed immediately.

Subsequent to initlal recognition, held-to- maturity investments, loans and receivables and other financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost under effective interest rate method, while other catepories of
Anancial instrauments are measured at fair value, without any deduction for transaction costs that may
occur on sale or other disposal. Investments in available-for-sale equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost.

Gain or loss on a financial instrument classified as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) Measmrement (Continped)

Galn or loss on an available-for-sale financlal asset is recognised directly as other comprehensive income,
except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains or losses resulted from monetary Anancial assets
which are recognised directly in profic or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, at which time
the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are removed from
ather comprehensive income and recognised in profic or loss. Interest on wvailable-for-sale financial assets
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss. Dividend income from the
available-for-sale equity instraments is recognised in profit or loss when the imvestee declares the dividends.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold, gains or losses on disposal include the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the accumulated fair value adjustments which
are previcusly recognised in other comprehensive income shall be reclassified from other comprehensive

income to the profit or loss.

For financial instrament carried at amortised cost, a gain or loss is recognised in profic or loss when the
financial instrument is derecognised, impaired, or through the amortisation process.

v}  Impaimment

The Group assesses at the reporting date the carrying amount of a financlal asset (other than those at
fair value through pofit or loss). If there is objective evidence that the financial asset is impaired, the
Group will recognise the impairment loss in profic or loss.

Ohbjective evidence that a financlal asset is impaired included but is not limited oo
—  significant Anancial difficuley of the bormower or Issuer;

—  a breach of contrace by the bomower or issuer, such as o default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

— the Group, for economic or legal reascns relating to the borrower's financial dificulty, granting
to the borrower a concession that the Group would not otherwise consider;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial recrpanizations;

—  disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties of the
issuer;

—  observable data indicating that there is 2 measurable decrease in the estimated Rature cash Aows
from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the group, including: adverse changes
in the payment status of borrowers in the goup, an increass in the unemployment nate in the
geographical area of the bomowers, a decrease in propenty prices for mortgages in the relevant
area, or adverse changes in industry conditions that affect the borrowers in the group;

— significant changes with an adverse effect that have tken place in the technological, market,
economic or legal emvironment in which the borrower or issuer operates, Indicating that the cost
of an investment in an equity instrument may not be recovered by the investor,

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost; and

—  other objective evidence indicating there is an impairment of a financial asset.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Contimaed)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
{v)  Impaimment { Continged)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impalrment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not indbridually
significant. If the Group determines that no objecthve evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed flnancial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Financlal assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or contimes to be recognisad
are not included in collective assessment of impairment.

Tmpairment of financial assts carvied at amortised comt

Far financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement when there is objective evidence that the assets are impaired. The impalrment loss Is measurad
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimared future cash Aows
{excluding future credit losses thar have not been incurred) discounted at the financlal asser’s original
effective interest rate. Por financial assets wich wvariable interest rare, the discount rate for measuring amy
impairment loss is the current effective interest ate determined under the contract.

The calculation of present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asser
reflects the cash flows that are expected o result from foreclosure, less the cost of obtalning and selling
the collateral.

Tmpairment reversal awd witten-af

If, in a subsequent period. the amount of the impairment loss on loans and advances, receivables and
held-to-maturity imvestments decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event coourring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss s reversed. The reversal
shall not result in a carrying amount of the Anancial asser that evceeds the amortised cost ar the date
of the reversal, had the impalrment not been recognised. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss.

When the Group determines that a financial assets carried at amortised cost has no reasonable prospect
of recovery after the Group has completed all the necessary legal or other proceedings, the financial assees
carried at amortised cost is written off against its allowance for impairment losses. If in a subsequent
pﬂ.'.lnd the financial assets carried at amortised cost written off is recovered, the amount recovered will

be recognised in profic or loss through impairment losses.

Rescheduled loans

Rescheduled loans are loans that have been restnactured due to deteroration in the borrower's financial
paosition and where the Group has made concessions that it would not otherwise consider. Where
possible, the Group seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may
imvalve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. The group has
analysed derecognition of rescheduled lsans in accordance with Mote 4(c){i1i). Management continuoushy
reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to coour.,
The loans continue to be subject to individual or collective impairment assessment, and the provision is
calculated using the loan’s ariginal effective interest rare
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
vl fmpai ¢ (Continued)
Availeblefor-sale fimancial assets

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss arlsing from decline in fair value
that had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income is remowved from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profic or loss even though the financial asset has not been derecognised. The
amount of the cumulative lass that is removed from other comprehensive income is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on thar financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss. Por investments in
equity Instnaments measured at cost, the amount of any impalrment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash fows
discounted at the current market rate of return for o similar financial asset and recognised in profit or loss.

If ina rl.l.'bmq_w:nt pﬂ:h:d, the fair value of available—for-sale financial assets increasss and the increase
can be objectively related to an event ocourring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impalrment loss shall be treated in accordance with following principle: (i) the impairment loss
on debt instruments dassified as available-for-sale should be reversed, with the amount of the reversal
recognised profic or lass; () the impairment loss on equity Instruments classified as available-for-sale
should not be reversed through profic or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income; or (iil) the impairment loss of availablefor-sale
equity imvestments carried at cost should not be reversed. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
such financial assets are not reversed in a subsequent perod. This is the case even if no loss or 2 smaller
loss would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed only ar the end of the year to which
the interim period relates.

(vi] FPresentation of financial assets and fnancial liabiities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately in the statement of financial position and
are not offser. However, financial assets and financial liabilities are offser and the net amount is reported
in the statement of financlal position when the Group currently has a legally enforceable dght to ser off
the recognised amounts and the transactions are intended to be setiled on a net basis, or by realising the
asset and settling the liabiliey simultaneously.

(vif] Financial assets held under resale and financial assets sold wnder repurchase apreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements are transactions which the Group acquires financial assets
which will be resold at a predetermined price in the futare date under resale agreements. Financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements are transactions which the Group sells Anancial assers which will ke
repurchased at o predetermined price in the future date under repurchase agreements.

Cash advanced or received is recognised as amounts held under resale and repurchase agreements on
the statement of financial position. Asses held under resale agreements are recorded in memorandum
acoounts as off-balance sheet items. Assets sold under repurchase agreements continue to be recognissd
in the statement of financial position.

The difference between the sale and repurchase consideration, and that bereween the purchase and resale
considenation, should be expired over the pericd of the respective transaction using the effective interest
method and are included in interest expense and interest income, respectively.

(vifi] Eguity instrument

The consideration recetved from the issuance of equity instruments net of transaction costs is recognised
in cwners’ equity. Consideration and transaction costs paid by the Bank for repurchasing sel fissued
equity Instruments are deducted from equity holders® equity.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Contimaed)

(d) Precious metals

Preclous metals comprise gold and other precious metals. Preclious metals that are not related to the Group’s
precious metals trading acthvities are initlally measured ar acquisition cost and subsequently measured at the
lower of cost and net pealisable value. Precious metals acquired by the Group for trading purposes are initially
measured at fair value and subsequent changes in fair value are recorded in profit or loss.

(e) Hedging

Hedge accounting is a method which recognises the offsetting effects on profic or loss of changes in the fair
values of the hedging instrament and the hedged item in the same accounting perdod(s).

Hedged items are the ftems that expose the Group to rsks of changes in fir valwe and that are designated as
belng hadmed.

A hedging instrament is a designated derivarive whose changes in fair value are expected to offset changes in
the fair value of the hedged item.

Hedges are assessed by the Group for effectivensss on an ongoing basis and determined to have been highly
effective throughout the accounting pediods for which the hedging relatio nship was designated. The Group only
adopts fair value hedging accounting.

A hedge is considered to be highly effective when it meets both the criteda as follows:

—  the hedging instrument must be expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair
value attributive to the hedged risk during the period for which the hedge is designated.

— the changes in fair value or cash flow must offset sach other in the range of 80 percent to 125 percent.

Fair Value Hedges

A fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised asser or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, Habilicy or firm commitment, that is
attributable to a particular risk and could affect pofic or loss.

The gain or loss from re-measuring the hedging instrument at fir value s recognised in profit or loss. The gain
or loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk adjusts the carrying amount of the hedged item and
Is recognised in profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sald, terminated or exercised, or no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the Group discontinues prospectively the hedge accounting treatments. If the hedged item is a
financial instrument measured at amortised cost, any adjustment to the carying amount of the hedged item is
amortised to profic or loss from the adjustment date to the maturity date using the recalculated effective interest
rare at the adjustment date.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

(i Interests in subsidiaries
Tnitial Recognition

The initlal cost of an imvestment obtained thmugh a business combination imvolving entities under common
control is the Group’s share of the subsidiary’s equity in the consclidated financial statements of the ultimate
contmlling party at the combination date. The difference between the initial imvestment cost and the carrying
amounts of the considenation given Is adjusted to share premium in capitl reserve. If the balance of the share
premium is insufficient, any excess s adjusted to retained earnings.

For an interest in subsidiary obrained through a business combination not imvolving enterprises under common
control and achieved in stages, the initial cost comprises the carying value of previoushy-held equity imvestment
in the acquiree immediately before the acquisition date, and the additional investment cost at the acquisition
date. Amy amounts recognised in other comprehensire income relating to the previously-he d equity interest in
the acquiree, are reclassified to profic or loss as imvestment income when the equity investment is disposed of.

The initial cost of an investment abtained through a business combination invelving entities not under common
contmol, the initial investment cost represents the aggregate of the fair values of assets transferred, labilities
assumed, and equity securities issued by the Group, in exchange for control of the acquires

An interest in a subsidiary acquired other than through a business combination is initially recognised in accordance
with following principles: at the actual consideration paid if the Grouwp acquires the investment by cash, or at
the fair value of the equity securities issued if an imestment is acquired by issuing equity securities.

Measurement and recognition of investment gains or losses
In the Bank’s financial statements, interests in subsidiares are accounted for using the cost method. Diividends
declared by subsidiaries are recognised in investment income.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated ar cost less impairment losses (see Mote 4(o)) in the smtement of financial
position.

(g) Interests in associates

An assoclate Is an enterprise over which the Group has significant influence.

Investment cost in an associate is initially recognised in accordance with the following principles: at the
consideration paid if the Group acquires the investment by cash, or at the fair value of the equity securities
issued if an imvestment s acquired by issuing equity securities.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the squity method, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale.

The Group adopts the following accounting treatments when using the equity method:

—  Where the initial investment cost of an associate excesds the Group’s interest in the fair value of the

investees identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition, the investment is initlally recognised at the
initial imvestment cost. Where the initlal investment cost is less than the Group’s interest in the fair value
of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the dare of acquisition, the investment is initially recognised at
the investor's share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets, and the difference is charged
to profic or loss.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Contimaed)

(g) Interests in associates (Continued)

— Afer the acquisition of the investment, the Group recognises Its share of the investee’s profit or loss and
other comprehenstve income as Investment income or losses and other comprehenstve income respectively,
and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment accordingly. Once the investee declares any cash
dividends or profic distributions, the carying amount of the investment is reduced by that amount
artriburable to the Group. Changes in the Group's share of the imvestee’s owners’ equity, other than those
arsing from the investee’s net profit or loss, other comprehensive income or profic distribution (" other

changes in equity holders’ equity™), is recognised in the Group’s equity, and the carrying amount of the
imvestment is adjusted accordingly.

The Group recognises its share of investee’s net profits or losses, other comprehenshee income and other
changes in equity holders’ equity after making appropriate adjustments to align the accounting policies
or accounting periods with those of the Group based on the fir value of the investee’s identifiable ner
assets at the date of acquisition. Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions berween the
Group and its assoclates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the assoclates. Unrealised
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is evidence of impairment.

— The Group discontinues recognising its share of net losses of investees after the carrying amount of
imvestment to the joint ventures or associates and any long-term interest that in substance forms part of
the Group’s net interest in the associates are reduced to zero, except to the extent that the Group has an
obligation to assume additional losses. Where net profits are subsequently made by the associates, the
Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of
losses not recognised.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an investes
but does not have control or joint control over those policies.

The Group makes provision for impairment of interests in associates in accordance wich the principles described
in Mote ﬁu:l Ifl.’l::l

(h}  Property, p]anr and equipment

Property, plant and squipment is asset held by the Group for the conduct of business and is expected to be used
for more than one year. Construction-in-progress, an item of property, represents property under construction
and is transferred to properties when ready for i intended use,

i) Cost

Property. plant and equipment is stated at cost upon initial recogrition. The cost of a purchased property,
plant and equipment comprises the purchase price, related taxes, and any directly attributable expenditures
for bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. The cost of a self-constructed property,
plant and equipment comprises the construction materials, direct labor costs and those expenditures
necessarily incurred for bringing the asset to working condition for s intended wse.

Subsequent to initlal recognition, property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulared
dep reclation and impairment losses.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.
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{h) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
(&)  Subsequent costs
The Group recognises in the cargying amount of an ivem of property, plant and equipment the cost of
replacing part of such an item when that cost Is incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied with the item will fow to the Group and the cost of the ivem can be measured reliably. All

other costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an expense when incurred.

{#) Depreciation

Deepreciation is calculated to werive off the cost, less residual value if applicable, of property, plant and
equipment and is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
part of an item of property, plant and equipment (Mote 29).

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Estimated wafud lives
Bu.ild.ingl 30— 35 years
Computer equipment and others 3 — 10 years

Mo depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress.

The residual value and useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as of each reporting
date.

(i) Impaimment

Impairment losses on property, plant and squipment are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in Mote 4{o).

vl Ihisposal and retirement

Galns orlosses arising from the disposal or retirement of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cargying amount of the asset and are recognisad
in profic or loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

(i) Land use rights
Land use rights are stated at cost less amordsation. Land use rghts are amortised on a straight-line basis ower
the respective perods of grant.

Impairment lass on land use fghts is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as set our in
Hote ).

{(jl Intangiblc asscts

Software and other intangible assets are initially recognised ar cost. The cost less estimated net residual values
(if amy) of the intangible assets is amortised on a straightline basis over their usefal lives, and charged to profit
or loss. Impaired intangible assets are amortised net of accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment loss on intangible assets is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
Hote 4ia).
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(k) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or bu]]d.‘lngl which are owned and/or held under a leasehald interest to earn
rental income andfor for capital appreciation.

The Group’s investment properties are accounted for using the fair value mode for subsequent measurement
when either of the fallowing conditions is met

—  There is an acthve property market in the location in which the imvestment property is situared;

—  The Group can obtain the market price and other relevant information regarding the same type of or
similar properties from the property market, so as to reasonably estimate the fir value of the imvestment

property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial position at fair value. Any gain or loss adsing from
a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an imvestment property is recognised in profit or loss.

(Il Lease

Alease is classified as either o Ainance lease or an openting lease. A finance lease is alease that transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to cwnership of a leased asset to the lessee, irrespective of whether the legal
title to the asset Is eventually transferred. An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

i) Finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount representing the sum of the minimum
lease receipts and unguarnteed residual value, net of initial direct costs, all discounted ar the implicic
lease rate (the “net lease investment”™), s included in “loans and advances to customers™ on statement of
Anmancial position as a lease receivable. At the commencement of the lease term, the Group recognises
the aggregate of the minimum lease receipts determined ar the inception of a lease and the initial direct
costs as finance lease recetvable. The difference berween the net lease investment and the aggregate of
their present value s recognised as unearned finance income which is included in “loans and advances
to customers” as well. Unrecognised finance income under finance leases is amortised using the effective
interest rate method over the lease term. Hire purchase contracts having the chancteristics of finance
l=ases are accounted for in the same manner as finance leases.

Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in Mote 4{c)iv).

Where the Group Is a lessee under finance leases, an amount equal to the lower of the fir value of the
leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of
the lease, is Included in “property. plant and equipment™ on statement of Anancial position as a leased
asset. An amount equal to the minimum lease payments is included in “other liabilitles™ on statement
of financial position recognised as a long-term payable. The difference between the recorded amount of
the leased asset and the recorded amount of the payable shall be accounted for as unrecognised finance
charge. The Group recognises financlal charge for the current period wsing the effective interest methed.

Drepreciation palicy are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in Mote 4(h)
and impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as ser out in MNaore
#{a). If there is a reasonable certainty that the lessee will obtain cwnership of the leased asset by the
end of the lease term, the leased asser should be depreclated cver its usefal life. Otherwise, leased asser
is depreciated ower the shorter of the lease term and s estimated useful life.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

n Lease (Continued)
(&) Operating leases

Where the Group leases our assets under operating leases, the assets are included in the statement of
fimancial position according to their nature and, where applicable, are depreciated in accordance with the
Group's depreciation policies, as set out in Note 4ih) except whers the asset is classified as an imvestment
property. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in
Maote 4(o). Revenue arising from operating leases s recognised in accordance with the Group’s revenue
recognition policies, as set out in Mote 4{u)(iv).

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased assets. Lease incentives recehved are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

(m) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the Group’s interest in the fir value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Goodwill is not amortised. Goodwill arising from a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit (FCGLF) or group of CGUs, that is ecpected to benefit from the gmergles
of the combination. The Group performs impairment test on goodwill anmually.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
a business combination Is recognised immediately in profic or loss.

On dllpnlnl of the related CGU or Eroup af CGUs, any attributable amount of the purd:.uud En-adwl]l net of
allowance for impairment losses, if any, Is included in the calculation of the profic or loss on disposal.

Impairment loss on goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in Mote (o).

(n) Recposscssed asscis

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take possession of assets held as collateral
through court procesdings or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. Where it is intended to achieve
an ordery realisation of the impaired assets and the Group is no longer seeking repayment from the bormwer,
repossessed assets are reported in “other assets™.

When the Group selres assets to compensate for the losses of loans and advances and interest receivables, the
repossessed assets are indtally recognised ar fair value, plus any taxes paid for the seinure of the assets, litigation
fees and other expenses incurred for collecting the repossessed assets are included in the camying value of

repossessed assets,

When the fir value less costs to sell is lower than a repossessed asset’s carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Repossessed assets
are recognised at the carrying value, net of allowance for impairment losses,

Any gain or loss arising from the disposal of the repossessed asset is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which the item is disposed.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Contimaed)

(o) Allowance for impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period., the Group assesses whether there is any indication that a non-financial asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists that an asset may be impaired, the Goup estimates the reooverable
amount of the asser.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired and it is not possible to estimate the recovennble amount
of an individual asser, the Group determines the recovenble amount of the CGU to which the asset belangs.

CIGL is the smallest identifiable group of assets that penerates cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash flows From other assets or groups of assets.

The recovenble amount of an asset {or CGU, group of GG is the higher of dts fir value less costs to sell and
the present value of the future cash Aows expected to be dedved from the asset {or OGU, group of CGUs). The
Group considers all rlevant factors in estimating the present value of fature cash Aows, such as the expected
future cash flows, the us=ful life and the discount rate.

i) Testing CGU with poodwill for impa irment

Far the purpose of impalrment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the
CGU or group of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU ar group of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment by the Goup
annually, or whenever there is an indication that the CGU or group of CIGUs are impaired, by comparing
the carrying amount of the CGU or group of CGUs, including the goodwill, with the recoverable amount
of the CGL or group of CGLU, The recoverable amount of the CGU or group of CGUs are the estimaresd
hature cash flows, which are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the rsks specific to the CGU or group of OGLT
with allocated poodwdll.

At the time of impairment testing of 2 OGU or group of ©GLs to which goodwill has been allocated,
there may be an indication of an impairment of an asset within the CGU containing the goodwdll. In such
circumstances, the Group tests the asser for impairment first, and recognises amy impairment loss for thar
asset before testing for impairment on the CGU or group of CGLUs containing the goodwill. Similady,
there may be an indication of an impairment of a CGL within a group of CGUs containing the goodwill.
In such circumstances, the Group vests the CGU for impairment first, and recognises any impairment
loss for that CGL, before testing for impairment the group of CGLL to which the poodwill is allocated.

i}  Impaimment loss
If the recovenable amount of an asset is less than s carrying amount, the carring amount of the asser
is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is recognised as an impairment loss and recognissd
in the pofit or loss.

Fora CGU or a group of CIGLs, the amount of impairment loss firstly reduces the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the CGL or group of CGUs, and then reduces the carying amount of other
assets (other than goodwill) within the OGLT or group of OGUs, pro mata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset. The cacrying amount of an asset should not be reduced below the highest of: its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) its value in use (if measurable) zero.

{iifl Reversing an impairment loss

I£, in a subsequent pericd, the amount of impairment loss of the non-financial asset excepr for goodwill
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impalrment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through the profit or loss. A revemsal
of impairment loss s limited to the assef’s carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior perods.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

(p) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be recebved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordedy transaction
in the principal {or most advantagecus) market ar the measurement date under current market conditions (L. an
exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable ar estimated wsing another valuation technique.

iq Emp]cr]ﬂ:c benefits

{4 Short-term employee benefies

Diuring the accounting period when an employes has rendered service to the Group, the Group recognises
the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits as o Hability and as an expense, unless another
IPR.S requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset. Short-term employee benefits
include wages, bonuses and social security contributions such as medical insurance, work-related injury
insurance and maternity insurance, as well as housing provident funds, which are all calculated based on
the regulated benchmark and ratio.

(&}  Post-employment benefits Defined contibution plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, The Group participated in a defined contribution
basic pension Insurance in the social insurance system established and managed by government organisations.
The Group makes contributions to basic pension insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks
and rates stipulated by the povernment. Basic pension insurance contributions are charged to profic or
loss when the reated services are rendered by the employees.

In additicn to the smtutory provision plan, the Bank's employes have joined its annuity scheme (the
“scheme”) which was established by the CITIC Group Corporation ("CITIC Group™ in amordance with
policies regarding the state cwned enterprise annuity policy. The Bank has made annuity contrdbutions
in proportion to its employee’s gross salaries which are expensed in profit or loss when the contributions
are made.

The Group operates a defined contrdbution provident fand and a Mandatory Provident Pund scheme
for Hong Kong staff. Contrdbutions are charged to profit or loss as and when the contribution fall due.

(&i] Post-employment benefits Defined benefit plans

The defined benefic plans of the Group are the supplementary retirement benefits provided to the
domestic employees.

The Group adopts the projected unit credit actuarial cost method, using unblased and mutually compatible
actuarial assumptions to estimate the demographic and financial wariables, to measure the obligation
associated in the defined benefits plan. The discounted present value of the defined benefit obligation,
is recognised as the liabilities of the defined benefic plans.

The Group recognises the obligation of defined benefit plans in the accounting perlod in which the
employess render the related services. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount
mate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is
included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Re-measurement arsing from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged
or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the pericd in which they arise.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Contimaed)

(r] Government grants

Government grants are transfers of MO NEfary assefs o non-monetary assets from the PoVErnment to H:.:Gmup
at no consideration except for amy capital contrbution from the government as an investor in the Group. Special
funds such as investment grants allocated by the government, if cleary defined in officlal documents as part of
“capital reserve” are dealt with as capital contrdbutions, and not regarded as povernment grants.

A government grant Is recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and thar
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to the gant. If a government grant is in the form of a
transfer of @ monetary asser, it &5 measured at the amount that is recebved or receivable. If a government grane
is in the form of a transfer of a non-monetary asset, it s measured ar fts fair value.

Grants related to assets are government grants whose primary condition s that an entity qualifiring for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets. Grants related to income are government
grants other than those related to assets. A government grant related to an asset is recognised initially as deferred
income and amortised to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asser. A grant thar
compensates the Group for expenses to be incurred in the subsequent periods is recognised initially as deferred
income and recognised in profic or loss in the same pericds in which the expenses are recognised. A grant that
compensates the Group for expenses Incurred is recognised in consclidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income immediately.

{s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has o present legal or constructive
obligation arsing as a result of a past event, it is probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. A provision is initially measured at the best estimate
of the expenditure required to setile the related present obligation. Factors pertining to a contingency such as
the risks, uncerminties and time value of money are taken into account as o whale in reaching the best estimate.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the best estimate is determined by discounting the
related future cash cutflows.

A possible obligation arising from past transactions or events whose exlstence can only be confirmed by the
ooowmence of non-occurrence of one or more fature uncertain events; or a present obligation that arises from
past transactions or events and it is not probable that an cutflow of economic benefits is required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably, is disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of cutflow of economic benefits is remote.

() Fiduciary activities
The Group acts in o fiduclary capacity as a custodian, trustee, or an agent for customers. Assets held by the

Group and the related undertakings to return such assets to customers are excluded from the financlal statement
as the risks and rewards of the assets reside with the customers.

Entrusted lending is the business where the Group enters into entrusted loan agreements with customers, whereby
the customers provide funding (the “entrusted funds™) to the Group, and the Group grants loans to thind parties
(the “entrusted loans™) at the instruction of the customers. As the Group does not assume the risks and rewards
of the entrusted loans and the corresponding entrusted hands, entrusted loans and fands are recorded as off
balance sheet items at their principal amounts and no impairment assessments are made for these entrusted loans.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

(u) Income recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefit arising in the course of the Group’s ordinary activities when those
inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. Provided it is
pmobable that economic benefits will Aow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

{4 Interest incoms

Interest income arising from the wse of entity assets by others is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income based on the dumation and the effective interest rate. Interest
income includes the amortisation of amy discount or premium or other differences between the inital
carrying amount of an interesi-bearing instrument and its amount at maturity calculared on an effective
interest rate basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of financial assets and liabilicies
and of allocating the interest income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
mate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expectad
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter perod to the net carying amount of
the fnancial instrument. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash fows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation inchades all fees and interest paid or
recebved between parties to the contrace that are an integral part of the effective interest mate, transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Interest on the impaired financial assets is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount fature
cash flows ("unwinding of discount™ for the purpose of measuring the related impairment loss.

()  Fee and commisson income
Fee and commission income is recognised in profit or loss when the corresponding service is provided.
Crigination or commirment fees recetved by the Group which result in the creation or acquisition of a

financial asset are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate. IFthe commitment
expires without the Group making a loan, the fee is recognised as revenue on expiry.

(&i] [Nvidend income
Dividend income is recognised in profic or loss on the date when the Group’s dght to receive payment
is established.

(&)  Reatal income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised as other operating income in equal instalments
over the periocds covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis s more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asser. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregare net lease payments recelvable

v Finance income from finance lease and Bire purch ase contmct

Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase payments is recognised as interest income
over the perlod of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of return on the
outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting period. Contingent rental income is recognised
as income in the accounting perod in which they are earned.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Contimaed)

(vl Income tax

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to a business
combination or items recognised directly in equity (including other comprehensive income).

Current income tax is the expected tax payables on the taxable income For the year, using tax rates enacted or
subsrantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payables in respect of previous periods.
Dieferred tax is provided for temporary differences berween the carying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Temponry differences also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credics. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable thar
future tazable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised.

At the reporting date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled according to the requirements of tax
laws. The Group also considers the possibilicy of realisation and the settlement of deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in the calculation.

Balances of deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habilities, and movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offier apainst current tax labilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if the Group has the legally enforceable rdght to set off current tax assets against
current tax labilities and mest the additional conditions that deferred tax assets and labilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

(w] Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, with original maturity of three months
or less at acquisition.

(x) Profit discribution

Proposed dividends which are declared and approved after the end of each reporting period are not recognised
as a Hability in the statement of financlal position and are instead disclosed as a subsequent event after the end
of each reporting period in the notes to the financial statements. Dividends payable are recognised as liabilities
in the period in which they are approved.

4] Related partics

If the Group has the power, directly or indivectly, to control, jointly contml or exercise significant influence
over another party, or vice wemsa, or where the Group and one or more parties are subject to commeon control,
jointly contral from another party, they are considered to be related parties. Related parties may be individuals
ar enterprisas.

(z) Operating segments

The identification of operating segments of the Group is on the basis of internal reports that are regularhy
reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision maker in crder to allocate resources to the sepment and assess
its performance. Cin the basis of the operating segments, the Group identifies the reportable segments, using a
combination of factors including products and services, geographical areas, regulatory environments and etc.,
which the management has chosen for organization. The opemating ssgments that meet the specified criteria have
been aggregated, and the opemating segments that meet quantitative thresholds have been reported separately.

The amount reported for each operating segment item Is the measure reported o the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of allocating resources to the segment and assessing Is performance. Inter-segment
revenues are measursd on the basis of actual transaction price for such transactions for segment reporting, and
segment accounting policies are consistent with those for the consolidared financial statements.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

{2a) Significant sccounting estimates and judgements

Preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are beliewed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and associated key assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the peried in which the estimates are revised and in any farure perdods affected.

i) Impairment losses on loans and advances and investment classified as receivables

The Group reviews its financial asser portfolic, which includes loans and advances and investment classified
as receivables, to assess impalrment on a perodic basis during the year. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recognised in the consclidated income statement, the Group makes estimares
and judgments as to whether there is any cbservable data indicating that there is objective evidence of
impairment and the extent, if any, to which it will have 2 measurable decrease in the estimated fature
cash flows related to individually significant loans and advances and investment classified as receivables
or pools of loans and advances and investment classified as recetvables with similar risk characteristics,
as described in Mote 4 (c){v) impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost.

Significant judgments are made in the determination of whether objective evidence of impairment exists
in individually significant loans and advances and investment classified as receivables or peols of smaller
balance loans and advances and investment classified as receivables with similar sk characteristics. Among
ather things, objective evidence of impairment includes deterio ration in the financial condition of specific
bornowers (or specific pools of borrowers) affecting their ability to meet their loan payment obligations,
as well as increasing industry sector over-capacity or ohsolescence, or detericration in national or reglonal
economic conditions that are correlated to Increasing loans and advances and investment classified as
recebvables defaults. These judgments are made both during management’s regular assessments of loans
and advances and investment classified as receivables quality and when other circumstances indicate the
possibiliny that objective evidence of impairment may exist.

Where it is derermined that objective evidence of impalrment exists, significant jud gments and estimares
are made in estimating the adverse impact on future cash flows related to individually significant impalred
loans and advances and imvestment classified as recebvables. The methodology and asumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of fature cash Aows are reviewed regulary to reduce any
differences berween loss estimates and actual loss experience. Factors affecting these estimates include the
avallability and granularity of information related to specific borrowers and issuers, and the clarity of the
correlation between qualitarive factors, such as industry sector performance or changes in regicnal economic
conditicns and loans and advances and imvestment classified as recebrables defaults of related borrowers.

When the decrease may not have been identified individually or the individual leans and advances and
imvestment classified as receivables is not significant, management uses estimates based on historical loss
experience on a collective basis on loans and advances and imvestment classified as recetvables with similar
credit rsk chancteristics to assess the impalrment loss. Significant judgments are also applied to the
calculation of collectively assessed impairment. Critical factors affecting these judgments include medelling
assumptions (e.g., los given default) and levels of correlation between qualitative factors and loans and
advances and imvestment classified as recebrables default. The collective impairment loss is assessed after
tking into account: (i) historical loss experience in portfolics of similar credit risk characteristics; (ii) the
emergence period berween a loss cocurring and that loss being identified; and (iid) the current economic
and credit environments and whether in management’s experlence these indicate that the actual level
of inherent losses is likely to be greater or less than that sugpested by historical experience. The Group
considers the impact of the changes and uncertainty in the ic environment, in which the
Group operates when assessing the methodology and asumptions used for los estimation, as well as
management’s capability in managing loans and advances and investment classified as recebvables partfolic,
and makes adjustments where appropriate.
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4  Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Contimaed)

(aa) Significant accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
(i}  Impairment of available-for-sale equity investments

Far available-for-sale equity imvestments, a significant or prolonged decline in fir value below cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required when determining whether a
decline in fair value has been significant or pmolonged. In making this judgement, the Group considers
historical data of market volatility and historical share price of the specific equity investment as well as
other factors, such as sector performance, and financial information regarding the imvestee.

(iifl  Fair value of financial instruments

Far financial imstruments without actire market, the Group determines fair values wing valuation
techniques which include discounted cash flow medels, as well as other gpes of valuation models.
Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates,
credit spreads and foreign currency exchange rates. Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated cash flows are based on management's best estimates and the discount mate used is a marker
rate at the end of each reporting period applicable for an instrument with similar terms and conditions.
Where ather pricing models are used, inputs are based on observable market data at the end of each
reporting peried. Howeever, where market data are not available, management needs to make estimates
on such unchservable market inpuis based on assumptions. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the estimated fair value of financial instruments,

fiv) Clasification of beld-to-marmrity investments

Non-derivarive financial assets with fized or determinable payments and fAxed maturity are classified as
held-to-maturity imvestments if the Group has the intention and ability to hold them until mataric. In
evaluating whether the requirements to classify a Ainancial asset as held-to-maturity are met, management
malees significant judgements. Failure in correcily assessing the Group's intention and abilicy to hold
specific imvestments until maturicy may result in reclassification of the whole portfolic as available-for-sale.

iv)  Imcome fares

Dretermining Income tax provislons involves jud pement on the Rt re tax treatment of certain transactions.
There are certain transactions and activities for which the ultimate tax determinartion is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and
tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered pedodically
to take into account all changes in tax legislations. Dieferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax credics
can be utilised, management’s jud gement s required to assess the probabiline of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment s constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if ic
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

ivil Emplovee retirement benefit obligations

The Group has established liabilities in respect of the employee’s supplementary retirement benefits.
The amounts of employes benefit expense and these liabilities depends on the assumptions used in
calculating such amounts. The assumptions include discount rates, pension benefit inflation rates, medical
benefit inflation rates, and other factoms. Actual results that differ from the assumptions are recognissd
in the Group’s profit and loss ar the end of each reporting pericd. While management believes thar i
asumptions are appropriate, differences in actual experience or changes in assumptions may affect the
Group’s expense related to its employee retirement benefit obligations.
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Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates (Continued)

{2a) Significant accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
(vif] Dl ination of control over stroctured entities

The Group invests in a mumber of unconsolidated strucoured entities which are sponsored and managed
by other entities for investment return and interest income therefrom. Such structured entities include
wealth management products, investment management products managed by securities companies, trast
investment plans, asset-backed fAnancings and investment funds. The Group also sponsors some stnactured
entities, which are not subject to any guarantee by the Group of the principal invested or interest to be paid.

The Group makes judgment on whether it controls the structured entities and should consolidate them.
When performing this assessment, the Group considers several factors including, among other things, the
scope of its declsion-making autha ity owver the structured entities, the rights held by other parties, the
remuneration to which it is entitled in accordance with the related agreements for the assets management
and other services, the Group’s exposure to vardability of returns from other interests that it holds in the
structured entities. The Group performs re-assessment periodically.

Taxation
The Group's main applicable taxes and tax rates are as follows:

Business tax

Business tax is '.‘_]:H.I.E\Ed at 5% on taxable income

City construction tax
City construction tax is calculated at the range of 1% to 7% of business tax.

Education surcharge and Local education surcharges

Education surcharge and Lowcal education surcharges are calculated as 3% and 2% of business tax respectively.

Income tax

The income tax rate that is applicable to the Bank and its subsidiaries in Mainland China is 25%. Taxation on overseas
operations is charged at the relevant local rates. Tax paid on overseas openations is set off to the extent it is allowed
under the relevant income tax laws of the FRC. All tax exemptions are determined upon approval from the relevant
tax authorities.

Taxation arising from the abowve taxes are presented as “tax payable” in the statement of financial position.
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6  NMet interest income
Year ended 31 December

lll.ﬂ.lqlﬂhhl-.

282/408

2015 2014
Interest income arking from (Note (i)
Dieposits with central banks 7,502 7354
Dieposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions 1,325 4 963
Placements with and loans to banks and
non-bank financial institutions 2,925 4871
Financial assets held under resale agreements 3,998 12,194
I nvestment classified as recetvables 45,638 31087
Loans and advances to customers
— corporate loans 947,956 96,338
— pemnsonal loans 34,907 30,855
— discounted bills 3.F14 3,782
Investments in debt securities 18,190 13992
Orthers [ 3
Subtotal 215,661 205,539
Interest expense adsing froow
Borrowings from central banks (994 (3500
Dq:!ndl: from banks and non-bank Financial institutions (35, 792) (35, 1524)
Placements from banks and non-bank financial institutions (742) (1, 194)
Financial assets sald under mp1.|.|:rJ:|.n.||: agreements (561) (EJH:I
Dreposits from customers (64, 749) (67,268)
Diebt securities isued (B.382) (4.516)
Others (8 L)
Subtotal (111,228) (110, 898)
Met intersst income 104,433 94,741
Nom:
i Inmrmat lncoma includes iomme incone sccoued o indiedoslly sesd mpsiesd. finncis] smeo of AAMB&SS millon for the yar ended 31 Decamhar
2014 {1014: RMBET milinn).
Net fee and commission income
Year ended 31 December
2015 2014
Fee and commisson focome
Bank card fees 13,419 B.358
Gumltn.u.cy and nd\'i.mqr fees 8,972 54538
Commission for wealth management services 5,808 3958
Agency fees and commisslon (Nete (i)) 3711 1.795
Guarantes fees 3131 3,178
Commission For custedian business and other fiduciary 2,228 1.522
Settlement and clearance fees 1,747 2213
Orthiers 623 Alo
Tatal 37,639 26,972
Fee and commission expense (1,965) (1,659}
Met fee and commission income 35,674 25313
Nom:
W Agency Fas and commlmion reprasere fer awned for urdenering bards and fands, aale o produces and provaien. af smrased
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Net trading gain
Year ended 31 December

015 2014
Diebst securities 1,531 913
Foreign currencies 1,288 B27
Dherivatives 376 1,658
Financial instrument designated at fair value through profic or loss 240 39
Tatal 3,635 3437

Net gain from investment securities
Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Met gain from sale of available-for-sale securities L] 2
Met gain from rediscounted bills Gin B2
Orthers 226 {20}
Tatal 1,192 B34

Net hedging gain/(loss)

Year ended 31 Decembear
2015 2014

Met gainf{los) of fir value hedge 1 (2)

Gpel‘ating EIPEI]SES
Year ended 31 Diecember

2015 2014
Staff costs
— salaries and bonuses 15, 360 15,149
— welfare expenses 1,296 1,259
— soclal insurance LO57 9233
— housing fund 1,211 1,023
— labour unlon expenses and employee education expenses 636 631
— housing allowance 439 v
— other short-term benefics 165 134
— post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans 1,291 1,622
— post-employment benefits — defined benefic plans 11 B
— other long-term benefits 21 20
Subeotal 11,387 21,156
Property and equipment expenses
— rent and property management expenses 4,523 3.971
— depreciation 1,540 1,382
— amortisation expenses 914 Bl12
— electronic equipment operating expenses 821 GEE
— maintenance G618 615
— others 7 314
Subtotal 8,763 a7 B2
Business tax and surcharges 10,033 B8,B27
Dther general and administrative expenses
— audit services 16 18
— non-audit services 3 4
— auditors’ emunemtion 19 22
— others 9, 400 9,009
Subtotal G419 9,031
Tatal 50,6402 465,796
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11 Dpemting expenses (Contimed)

(a) Individuals with highest emoluments

Far ithe year ended A1 December 2015, of the § individuals with the hjd:ﬂ't emoluments in the Bank, thers
was mo director (2014 Mil) and four were supervisor (2014 two), whose emoluments are disclosed in Mote 67,
The aggregate of the emoluments before individual income tax in respect of the other one (20014: three) highest
paid individuals of the Bank were as follows:

¥ear ended 31 December

2015 2014

RMB 000 BEM B 000

Salaries and other emoluments S84 2,140
]:P:Il:wtl.un.u}r bonusss 2,007 5,350
Retirement scheme contributions 158 482
Tatal L,749 8972

The emoluments before individual income tax of the one (201 4: three) individuals of the Bank with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
FMEBZ,000,001 — RME3000,000 1 1
BMEBE3.000,001 — RMBE3 500,000 — 2

12 Impairment losses on assets
Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
RMB 000 REMEB 000
Loans and advances to customers 35,120 32074
Dieposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions — (&)
Placements with and loans to banks and
non-bank financial institutions — (Z?fl
Inter=st receivahle 2,941 1,286
HAovailable-for-sale Financial assets 57 =
Held-to-maturity investments [E1] (7}
I nvestment classified as recetvables T4 15&
Repossessed assets 41 82
O balance sheet ttems (95) 4
Crthers 1,248 113
Subtotal 4,917 1,599
Total 40,037 23673
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13 Income tax

{Amomrts in millions of Renminb! ool othermwise sated)

{a) Recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December

Mote 2015 2014

Current tax
— Mainland China 12,992 15,318
— Hong Kong 3 410
— Owvereas 41 20
Dreferred tax 33(b) (91) (2,628)
Income tax 13,246 13.120

Mainland China and Hong Kong income tax have been provided at the mte of 25% and 16.5% respectively.
Ohwerseas tax has been provided ar the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates

respectively,

ib) Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Profic before tax 54,986 54,574
Income tax calculated at starutory tax mate 13,747 13,04
Eftect of different tax rates in ocher regions {196 (25R)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 431 S08
Tax effect of non-taxable income
— interest income arising from PRC government bonds (699 (703}
— others (37) (&1)
Income tax 13,246 13.120

14 Earnings per share

Eamnings per share information for the year ended 31 Diecember 201 § and 2014 is computed by dividing the consolidated
net profit artributable to equity holders of the Bank by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the
year. There was no difference between basic and diluted samings per share as there were no potentially dilutive shares
outstanding during the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Year ended 31 Diecember

Met profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank
Weighted average number of shares (in million shares)
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in RMB)

2015 2014
41,158 40,602
46, T8T 46,787

.88 0.E7
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15 Other comprehensive gain, net of tax
Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific conditions are met
Other comprehensive income of available-for-sale financial assets
— net changes in fair value recognised during the year 5578 5,485
— net amount transferred o pmﬂr ar loss T 490
Income tax relating to other comprehensive income of
available-for-sale financial assets (L. 438) {1,742)
Other comprehensive income for available-for-sale
financial assets, net of toc 4,275 5,234
Emdm.na: ditferences on translation 1,364 (43]
Orthers 3 (1
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actvarial loss on defined benefit p]m: (1] m
Income tax relating to changes on the
measurement of defined benefit plans 2 (3}
cﬂ:.n.u.gzl on the measurement of defined benefit p]n.nl, net of tax (&) {lﬂ]
Orthers 1 —
Oither comprehensive income, net of tax 5,044 5:180
16 Cash and balances with central banks
The Group The Bank
31 December 31 Dhecember 31 December 31 December
Notes 15 2014 2015 2014
Cash T.355 7232 7,158 722
Balances with central banks
— statutory deposic reserve funds i 432,965 457,233 432,207 456,219
— surplus deposit reserve funds (i) 63656 Fo,166 63,273 68,715
— fiscal deposies {iai) o 3855 77 34855
— foreign exchange reserve (i) 3416 — 3416 —
Total 511,189 538486 509,851 536,811
MHome

i Tha Groap places wacarary depess ramrve with i Pesple's Bark of China "PEOC™ and oversas cantral bucks whers & b speraiteas. The sansary
Sepoat reaervas ars nat vallable Far um In the Groug's duly batne.

s a3 Dacerbar 2014, cha siaumry depeatt rererve placed wiith che FBOC wa calodaoed s 1996 (2014: 13K) of sligibls Benninbi depeatin for domarndc
branches =F tha Bank. The Bunk was sho mquiced 1o deposit an wmasne squhalens m $% (2014: 98] oF it forsign cornncy depesin fom domecc
brach cumemam an mwsoucary deporit mmcve. The mamecary AME depeatt cemrve o applicabls 1o Thejlang Lin'sn C1TIC Rurd Bank Cocpomion
Limioed, o subsilary of the Grosp, was st .98 (31 Decamber 2014 146, The amcancs of scsucary depouit ramrres placed wich che caneal banks
[ — ar I by rosp i Tha fersign currsncy musrvs depesics placsd with the FEOC are nea-inssnes bearing,

111} Tha sarplur daparic cemrve la malniaioed with e PBOC for che parpams of claaring.
Ficul depeaier plucedd with tha PEOC thee are nee svadbshle for us in the Group's dully cpersdan, and see mac-tomreee bardng
i The farsign sxchange rsma i muincaned wich the PEOC i aczcedancs wich the nelamd natics tmusd by che FROC oo 31 Asgart 2015, Tha caserva 1s

Fayshh oo o meadily bards ac 2096 of the cocal conenct ameant of cunoman deivn Farvad camacticar In the previcus moneck. Soch. fnign ecchnge
rumarva in neo-Anmeert besrng and will be copaysble in 12 manths sccerding ca dhe Bodcs,
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17 Depaosits with banks and non-bank financial institutions

{a) Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

The Group The Bank
31 Decembar 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
Hote 2015 20014 2015 2014
In Mainland China
— banks 36,194 37.348 33.370 36,731
— non-bank financial
institutions 12,766 3.B% 12,766 3,B%
Subtotal 48,960 41,182 46,136 40,565
Ourside Mainland China
— banks 22,668 43,767 18,664 41,124
— non-bank financial
instituticns 9,175 9,042 — —
Subtotal 3LB43 52,800 18,664 41,124
Gross balance BO,B03 93,991 64,800 B1,689
Less: Allowances for
impalrment losses a5 — — — —
HNet balance EBO.BO3 93,991 64,800 B1,689
(b) Ani]}'sr.d by remaining maturity
The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
MNote 2015 2014 2015 2014
Dremand deposits 57,323 To434 42,057 56,859
Time deposits with
remaining maturity
— within cne month 12,005 4,5% 11,664 4,387
— between one month
and one year 11475 L7495 11079 18,933
— owver one year — 1,510 — 1,510
Subtotal 13,460 23,557 22,743 24,830
Gross balance B0,803 93,991 64,800 81,689
Less: Allowances for
impairment losses a5 — — — —
Met balance 0,803 93,991 4,800 81,689
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18 Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank financial institutions

(a) Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

The Group The Bank
31 Dacember 31 December 31 Dacember 31 December
Mate 2015 2014 2015 014
In Mainland China
— banks 15,320 21,071 974 4243
— non-bank financial
institutions 77,262 32601 TTA62 A2E01
Subteital 921,581 53.672 7B, 436 36,844
DOutside Mainland China
— banks 26,202 14,514 17,910 0,729
— non-bank financial
imstitutions — — 1,938 1,245
Subtotal 26,202 14516 19,848 10974
Gross balance 11E,784 68,188 OB, 284 47,818
Less: Allowances for
impairment losses a5 (8) {EJ (8) {BJ
Met balance 118,776 68,180 98,276 47 810
(b} ."Lna]}rsn:l by remaining matuority
The Group The Bank:
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
Hate 2015 2014 1015 014
Within one month 57,439 39 466 48,197 31,399
BE[’W\BED. one n:||:||:||:|:|.
and one year 61,296 28593 50,057 16,390
Oheer one year 47 29 30 29
Gross balance 118,784 68,188 98, 284 47 818
Less: Allowances for
impairment losses 35 (8] 4] (8) (8
Met balance 118,776 68,180 98,276 47 810
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19 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 Diecember 31 December 31 Diecember
Motes 2015 2014 2015 2014
Held for trading purpose
— debt trading financial assets (a) B,535 12,746 B.357 12,740
— certificates of interbank
depasic () 15,226 13,923 15,226 13,923
— investment funds 1 2 — —
Financial assets designated at
fair value 'ﬂ!.mud:. pmdar ar loss If-:::l 2457 B8 1,75 B3R
Total 26,220 27,509 25,349 27,501

There was no significant limitation on the abiligy of the Group and the Bank to dispose of financial assets at fair value
through the profit or loss.

{a) Held for trading purpose — debe trading financial assets

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
2015 2014 2015 2014
Issued by
In Mainland China
— governments 3BG 1,012 ABG 1,012
— policy banks 1,581 1,365 1,581 1,365
— banks and non-bank
fAnancial institutions 2073 3,503 2,045 3,503
— Corporates 3371 6,823 3345 6,823
Subtotal BA11 12,703 B.357 12,703
Outside Mainland China
— EoveErnments 39 — — —
— banks and non-bank
financial institutions 44 43 — a7
— Corporates 42 — — —
Subtotal 125 43 — ¥
Toial B,536 12,746 B.357 12,740
Listed in Hong Kong oe7 BAZ A BAZ
Listed outside Hong Kong Tr3T 11,302 7709 11,296
Unlisted 102 612 —_ 612
Toial B.536 12,746 B.357 12,740

‘China CITIC Bank Corperition Limited
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19  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

ib) Held for trading purpose — certificates of interbank deposit held for trading were measured
at fair value

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
2015 2014 015 014
lssued by
Banks in Mainland China 15,226 13,923 15,226 13,923
Listed outside Hong Eong 15,226 13,923 15,226 13923

{c) Financial assets d:signatcd at fair value :hmug]': Proﬁ: or loss — debt :rad:in.g financial

ASSTLE

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
2015 2014 2015 2014
Issued by
In Mainland China
— banks 1,764 268 1,766 268
— corpoTates — 570 —_ 570
Subtotal 1,766 838 1,766 838
Outside Mainland China
— corporates 691 — —_ —_
Tatal 457 838 1, T 838
Listed cutside Hong Kong 1,457 838 1,766 &38

Dbt securities traded on the China Domestic Inter-bank Bond Market are included in “Listed outside Hong
Eong™.
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Derivatives

Drerivatives include forward, swap and option transactions undertaken by the Group in foreign exchange, precious
metals and interest rate markets related to trading, asset and liability management and customer initlated transactions.
The Group, through the operations of its branch network, acts as an intermediary for o wide range of customers for
structuring deals to offer risk management solutions to match individual customer needs. These positions are actively
managed through hedging transactions with external parties to ensure the Group’s net exposures are within acceptable risk
levels. The Group alse uses these derivatives for proprietary trading purposes and to manage its own asset and liabilicy
and structural positions. Derivatives, except for those which are designated as hedging instruments (Mote 20(c)), are
held for trading. Deerivatives classified as held for trading are for trading and customer initiated transactions purpose,
and those for risk management purposes but do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting,

The contractualf notional amounts of derivatives provide a basis for comparison with fair values of dervatives roognised
on the consolidated statement of Financial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of hature cash fows
involved or the current Bir values of the derivathves and, therefore, do not indicate the Gmu.p’: ExXposure to credic or
market risks.

The Group
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Mominal MNamiral
amownt Assets Liabilities amount Astets Liahilities
Halging lastramenta (Nose (e
— interest rute derivatives 11,144 137 38 B,128 238 30
Moo-Hedping instruments
— interest rute derivatives 593.379 1,054 57 290,833 739 T4
— currency derivatives 1,600,764 11,489 10,119 978,918 G406 6,208
— precious metal derivatives 18,763 1,008 304 29,762 B43 385
— other derivatives 5.222 — — 21,007 — —
Toral 2,239,272 13,788 11,418 1,328,648 B.226 7.347
The Bunk
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Mominal MNomiral
ameunt Assets Liabilities amount Asses Lisbilicies
Mon-Hedping Instruments
— interest rute derivatives 575,624 1,042 954 247 469 723 713
— currency derivatives 1,234,722 B.334 Tal81 671,630 4,072 5902
— precious metal derivatives 18,763 1,008 304 20,762 B43 385
— ather derivatives 5212 —_ —_ 21,007 —_ —_
Tol 1,834,331 10,384 8439 979,868 5638 §a00
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20 Derivatives (Continued)

{a) MNominal amount analyzed by remaining mamrity

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 51 December
2015 2014 205 2014
Within three months 814,085 536,387 59, 230 392,527
Betrween three months and one year 1,299,448 90,341 1,148,841 481,812
Between one year and five years 113,995 198,783 BE,580 105,450
Oiver five years 1,744 3,137 680 73
Total 4,229,272 1,328,648 1,834,331 179,868

(b} Credit risk weighted amounts

The Group The Bank
31 Pecember 31 December 31 Diecember 31 December
015 2014 2015 2014

Default risk of counter party

— interest race derivatives 683 Taz 519 490
— currency derivatives TGkl 11,252 4,030 &, 006
— precious metal derivatives 911 6ol 11 anl
— other derivatives 4,742 9,200 4,742 9,200
Credit valuation adjustment 4,412 11,064 F,751 9,827
Total 18,708 32840 13959 26,124

The credit risk welghted amount has been computed in accordance with “Regulation Governing Capital of
Commercial Banks (provisional)® promulgated by the China Banking Regulatory Commission ("CBRC™) in the
year of 2012, and depends on the status of the counterparties and the maturity characteristics of the instruments,
inclading those customer-driven back-to-back tramsactions.

{c) Fair valuc hedge

A subsidiary of the Group utilises falr value hedge to diminate the effect of fair value changes of financial assets
and financial liabilities caused by market interest rate fluctuations. Interest rate swap contracts are used for hedging
interest risks arising from awvailable-for-sale debt securities, certificates of deposic and subordinated bonds lssued.
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21 Financial assets held under resale agreements

{a) Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 51 December
015 2014 2015 2014
In Mainland China
— banks 156,959 131,083 136,959 131,083
— non-bank financial instirutions 151 4,111 51 4,111
Subtotal 137210 135,194 137210 135,194
Ouiside Mainland China
— banks 1351 571 — 571
Subtoral 1351 571 — 571
Gross balinee 138561 135,765 137,210 135,765
Lesm Allowances for impairment losses — — — -
Mer balance 138,561 135,765 137210 135,765
ib)  Analysed by types of collateral
The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 51 December
15 2014 X015 2014
Discounted bills 70,788 B4, 550 T0.7EE B4,550
Securities 67,232 48,481 65,882 48,481
Oithers 541 2,934 S40 2,934
Gross balance 138561 135,765 137,210 135,765
Less Allowances for impairment losses —_ — — —
Ner balance 138,561 155,765 LF7.210 135,765
ic) Analysed by remaining maturity
The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
015 2014 015 2014
Within one month 135200 124067 135204 124,067
Between one month and one year 3.261 10,710 1910 10710
More than one year 100 qEE 10 Q88
Gross balance 138,561 135,765 137210 135,765
Lesm Allowances for impairment losses — — — —
Net balance 138,561 135765 137 210 135,765
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22 Interest receivable

The Group The Bank
31 Pecember 31 December 31 December 31 December
Note D15 2014 2015 2014
[ovestment cassified as receivables 12,93 11,190 12,943 11,190
Leans and advances to customers 10,343 BOGT 10,026 8431
Diebt securiries T.BEI 6485 7,657 6,352
Oichers 1458 L173 1,334 962
Gross balance 32,646 27,515 31,980 26,933
Lessi Allowance for impairment losses a5 (2,134) (1,390) (2.131) {1,389)
et balance 512 26,125 29,849 25,546
23 Loans and advances to customers
{a) Analysed by nature
The Gronp The Bank
31 DFecember 31 December 31 Diecember 51 December
Mote 2015 2014 2015 2014
Carporate loans
— loans 1,748,543 1,564,766 1.627,573 1,465,078
— discounted bills 92,745 GE 3 BT.219 59,888
— finance lease receivables 17,879 552 _ —
Subtotal 1,860, 167 1,633,361 1,714,792 1,524,966
PE“I:\H.‘J ]WJ'L‘
— residential mortgages OB, T2 232,117 258,00 4 222,621
— business loans 105, 770 108927 104,795 108,726
— credit cards 175,801 128,133 175:443 125,851
— others 118,116 87,370 111,512 81,314
Subtotal GER,613 554,547 640,704 538,512
Gross balance 1,518,780 2,187.508 1,364,556 2,063,478
Lessi Allowances impairment losses a5
— individually assessed (15.345) (11,153) (15,089) {11,024)
— collectively assemed (45,152) (40,423) 44,593 (40,112)
Subtotal (B0.497) (51,576) (59,682) (51,136)
Met balance 1,468,283 2,136,332 2,304,857 4 2,012, %42
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23 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(b) Analysed by assessment method of allowance for impairment losses

The Group
31 December 2015
Identified impaired loans Gross
Loans and and advances (Noge (1)) lnpni.nd
advances for which loans and
for which for which allowance advances
allowance allowance is as a % of
i= is  individually gross wtal
collectively  collectively assessed loans and
assessed assessed (Miote (i) Total advances
Gross loans and adwances 2,492,730 B011 28,039 2,528,.7TB0O 1.43%
Less: Allowance for
impalrment losses (39, 306) (5,845) (15,345 (60,497 )
Net balance 2,453 424 2,165 12,694 2,468,283
31 December 2014
Identified impaired loans Gross
Loans and and advances (Mote (i)} impaired
advances for which loans and
for which for which allowance advances
allowance allowance Is as a % of
Is is  indbwidually gross total
collectively  collectively assessed loans and
assesed nsmessed (Mote (H)) Totl advances
Gross loans and adwances 2,159,454 5,608 22 Bdi 2,187,908 1.30%
Less: Allowance for
impatrment losses (36,469 (3.954) (11,153) (51.576)
Met balance 2,122,985 1,654 11,693 2,136,332
The Bank
31 December 2015
Identified impaired loans Giross
Loans and and advances (Noge (1)) lnpd.nd
advances for which loans and
for which for which allowance advances
allowance allowance is as a % of
is s individually gross total
collectively  collectively assessed loans and
anzezsad asseszad (Mote (i) Taotal advances
Gross loans and adwances 2,329,782 B003 26,771 2,364,556 1479
Less: Allowance for
impairment losses (38,754 (5:83%) (15,089 (59.682)
Met balance 2,291,028 2,164 11,682 2,304,674
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23 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(b} Analysed by assessment method of allowance for impairment losses |Continued)

The Bank (Continped)
31 December 2004
Identified impaired loans Gross
Loans and and advances (Maote (i) Impaired
advances for which loans and
for which for which allowance advances
allowance allowance is as o % of
is is  indbridually gross total
wollectively  collectively assessed loans and
assessed assessad Mate I:I]::I:I Total advances
Gross loans and advances 2,035,593 5600 22,285 2,053,478 1.35%
Less: Allowance for
impairment losses (36,164) (3.948) (11,024) (51,136)
Met balance 1,999,429 1652 11,261 2,012,342
Haim

[11] H.-naod.mpmdlu_mdm_mcmmm-ﬂm_hm«bmmdwm—mm

borva bewn wsswwd wr basring dgnificen: inpuomme lass which ww aoamed iodividueadly or coll v ip bar af b o Jaam ard
advarcas).
1] Aa a3 Decarmber 201%, losm snd advancen of the Grosp for which Img Il war irdividually aseamed ] i RMBIA 030

millien (31 Decernber 2014: RMBIZ 245 millizn]. Tha sscured snd unsscarsd pardan of dham barn and adverces sars RMBET, 332 millon
@3] Ducernbar 2014: RMES 923 millien) snd RMEN,7LT milicn (3] Decermbar 2014: EMEB1E 923 million) rspectivaly. Tha fair valun of
cedlateral hald aguinn thase leane snd sdance smcaned 10 AAMELY 748 millon (31 Decerbar 2014: RMB 11050 mullizal. The ndividud
tmpuirmare wlassncs msde spsine thas Joans ind sdvancen wars EMBLE 348 millan (3] December 2014: RMEBIL, 153 milbian).

Aa wr 3| Decarnbar 2015, cha loarm ard advarcm of the Bank: for which the impumoene sllewancs war individudly anened snownmed 1
FMBIETFL mullizn (31 Dacembar 2004: AAMBIZ2ES millian). The mcured perilen sred unmcured periten. of thase leane ard sdvancs war
FMBS 27T mullien (3] Decermber Xl4: RMES, 547 millica) snd RMELR.794 milica {31 Decamber 2014: RMELE 73 millica) cerpaceivaly.
n.ﬁ:vduufcpllu-i.bdd.lpnxﬂ-hlulndm wrruneed ea AABLLT1S millica (31 Decarsbar 1014: RAIB 10,558 millea).
Tha p dl mads aguine ham d wd wan AMBLE 0B nuillien {31 Decarabar 2014: REMB11 024 millica).

Fuir vahua af coll 1 wm d by W bawd on the o armmal vlosicar, IF nadbble, adursd by tldng Inca sccount cha
cummi cexlascion expacience as wall an market conditien.

296/408



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
ooOooodn

Notes to the Financial Statements

{Amomrts in millions of Renminb! ool othermwise sated)

23 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

ic) Movements of allowance for impairment losses

The Group
Year ended 31 Diecember 2015
Loans and Impaired loans
advances and advances
for which for which for which
allowance is allowance is allowance is
collectively collectively individaally
d d d Total
Asat 1 January 2015 36,460 3.954 11,153 51,576
Impairment charges on loans 2R1E F,070 B 933 37,421
Feversal cFimpn].l:m.cu.t for the year — (358 (1,943) {2,301)
Unwinding of discount on allowance — — (592 (592)
Transfer cut (Mote (11) 19 — 13 32
Write-offs — (3778) (22,461) (26,239
Recovery of loans and advances
wiritten off in previous year — 358 242 1]
As at 31 December 2015 39,3006 5,846 15, %85 6,497
Year ended 31 December 2014
Loans and Impaired loans
advances and advances
for which for which for which
allowance is allowance is allowance is
callectively collectively individually
assessed assessed assessed Total
Asat 1 January 2014 29,632 2,656 B.966 41,254
I.mpnjrm:nr rJ:.n.rg:l on loans 5,836 3T 15820 25,420
Reversal of impairment for the year — (1) (3.336) (. 3446)
Unwinding of discount on allowance — — (4600 (40}
T ransfer out (More (i1) 1 — 1 2
Write-offs — {1 .466) (10,144) (11.,510)
Recovery of loans and advances
written off in previous year — 10 306 A&
As at 31 December 201 4 A6, 469 3.954 11,153 51,576
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23 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

ic) Movements of allowances for impairment losses (Continusd)

The Bank
Year ended 31 December 2015
Loans and Impaired loans
advances and advances
for which for which for which
allowances is allowances is allowances is
collectively collectively individwally
d | d Total
As at | Jannary 2015 36,164 3,948 11,024 51,136
Impairment charges on loans 2,590 5,645 28,476 36,713
Rewversal of impairment for the year — (353) (1,837) (2,190
Unwinding of discount on allowance — — (582) (582)
Transfer out (Mote (i)} — — z 2
Write-offs — (3,754) (22,218) (25,972)
Recovery of loans and advances
written off in previous year — 353 e 575
As at 31 December 20015 38,754 5839 15,089 59,682
Year ended 31 December 201 4
Loans and Impaired loans
adwances and advances
for which for which for which
the allowances is allowances is allowances s
callectively collecthrehy individually
d d assessed Total
As at 1 Januany 2014 29,373 2,553 8,835 40,861
Impairment charges on loans 6,791 2,746 15,690 25237
Reversal of impairment for the year —_ n (3:296) (% 303)
Unwinding of discount on allowance — — (4570 (4571
Transfer out (Mote (i)} — — 1 1
Write-offs — (1.451) (10,038 {11,489}
Recovery of loans and advances
wrtten off in previous year — T 2B 296
As at 31 December 2014 35,164 3948 11,024 51,136
BMatm
m Transfar cat Includer cha affect of eechangs rom.
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23 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)
i{d) Owerdue loans analysed by overdue period

The Group
31 December 2015
Owerdue Owerdue
Overdue  between three  between one
within three  months and year and  Oherdue over
months ome year three years thres years Total
Unsecured loans 3425 3,063 1,508 07 9,293
Guarantesd loans B,907 5265 5,105 230 19,527
Loans with pledged
assets
— loans sscured
by collateral 21,579 12,142 6, i1 74 40,336
— pledged loans 3,087 1,595 1,000 G2 5,744
Total 36,998 22,085 14,954 B63 74 0D
31 December 2014
Crverdue Ohverdue
Owerdue  berween three bemween one
within three months and year and  Ohwerdue over
months one year three years three years Total
Unsecured loans 34% 3,405 1,437 384 8,685
Guarantesd loans 12,75 7129 3.193 326 23,404
Loans with pledged
assets
— loans sscured
by collateral 21,837 10,342 4292 243 36,714
— pledged loans 4,982 1.277 B45 kT 7.141
Total 43,034 22,153 9,767 90 75,544
The Bank
31 December 2015
Ohrerdue Owerduas
Owerdae between three  between ome
within three  months and year and  Ohverdue over
months oane year three years three years Total
Unsecured loans 3,272 2,991 1,508 97 9,068
Guaranteed loans T T4 5.1E1 5,083 230 18,288
Loans with pledged
assets
— loans secured
by collateral 20,233 11,944 6,119 236 38,532
— pledged loans 1,554 1.584 1,000 62 S 2000
Toial 3E53 21,700 14,710 E215 71,088
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23 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

id) Owerdue loans analysed by overdue period |Continued)

The Bank (Continped)
31 December 20014
Owerdue Owverdue
Owerdue  betwesn three  betwesn one
within three months and year and  Owerdue over
months one year three years three years Total
Unsecured loans 8,172 3.401 1437 aEd B304
Guaranteed loans 12335 6,936 3.109 326 23,708
Loans with pledged
assers
— loans secured
by collateral 20922 10,033 4291 161 35407
— pledged loans 4484 L7 845 a7 6643
Tatal 40,913 21,647 9,582 Q08 73,150

Owerdue loans represent loans of which the principal or interest are overdue one day or more

{e) Finance lease receivables

Finance lease receivables transactions are attriburable to the (G roup’s subsidiaries, CITIC Financial Leasing Limited
("CFLL"} and CITIC International Finance Holdings limited (*CIFH™), include net investment in machines
and equipment leased to customers under finance lease and purchase contracts which having the characteristics
of finance leases. These contracts usually run for an initial period of 5 to 20 years, with an option for acquiring
the leased asser at a contractual price value. The total minimum fnance lease receivables under finance lease
and punchase contracts and their present valwes are as follows:

31 December 2015 31 Drecember 2014
Present value Present value
of mini Mimi of minimum Minimum

fimance leases finance leases  finance leases  finance leases
receivables receivables recetvables recebvables

Within one year {including one year) 3,543 4,388 117 133
Ome year to two years

I:Lu.du.d]ng o }rﬂ.::) 3,680 4,343 L] &80
Two years to three years

I:Lu.du.d]ng threes yﬂ.l:l}l 3,212 34678 42 40
Ower three years 7435 8,171 323 38
Gooss balance 17,879 20,580 552 &30
Less: Allowance for impairment losses

— collectively assessed (214) (1)
HMet balance 17,662 545
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24 Awailable-for-sale financial assets

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Mores 015 2014 2015 2014
Dbt securities (a) 297444 183.300 263535 165,867
Certificates of deposic (k) 75314 213,888 64,945 20650
Equity investments () 580 1,769 162 1,700
— measured at fair value 446 1,637 48 1,586
— measured at cost 134 132 114 114
Inwestment funds l:d.:l 432 447 352 320
Wealth management products 10 — — —
Total 373770 209,404 2B 188,537

ia) Debt securitics analysed by location of counterpartics

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
In Mainland China

— povernments 97953 32,786 7,338 32,687
— policr banks 32,675 25762 32,675 25,762
— banks and non-bank financial insticutions 64,060 36,203 59,141 34,384
— corporates 75734 56,556 71618 52,399
Subtotal 270,422 171,307 261,772 165232

Ouiside Mainland China
— povernments 16,759 6,401 1,135 —
— banks and non-bank financial institutions 7,130 2,BEE 561 537
— public entities — 49 — —
— corporates 3.133 2,655 67 o8
Subtoal 27,022 11,993 1,763 635
Totl 297444 183,300 263,535 165,867
Listed in Hong Kong BAST 5.7o2 4,269 3.910
Listed ouwtside Hong Kong 258,974 156,774 254,004 155,864
Unliseed 30,013 20,734 4,602 6,093
Totl 297444 183,300 263,535 165,867

(b) Certificates of deposit analysed by location of counterpartics

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
In Mainland China

— banks 71053 22,772 64,945 20,650

Outside Mainland China
— banks 3,261 L116 — —
Toml 75,314 23.BEB 4,945 20,650
Listed outside Hong Kong 75,314 23,BRE 64,945 20,650
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24  Awailable-for-sale financial assets (Continned)

ic) Equity investments analysed by location of counterparties

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Mote 2015 2014 2015 014
In Mainland China
— corporates 115 1 565 114 1562
Outside Mainland China
— banks and non-bank
financial insticutions 126 38 48 38
— corporates 339 (%] — —
Toral 580 1,768 162 1. 700
Listed in Hong Kong 338 3 — —
Listed outside Hong Kang (i) 108 1534 48 1.586
Unlisted 134 132 114 114
Toral 580 1,768 162 1. 700
Pt
m Disbt securkcien tradad oo the China Demame Ioarbank Band Markar are inclided in “Limsd suesids Hang Kong”.
id) Investment funds analysed by location of counterparties
The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
Outside Mainland China
— banks and non-bank Fnancial
instltutlons 423 447 352 320
Total 422 447 352 320
Unlisted 422 447 352 320
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25 Held-to-marturity investments

Debt securities analysed by location of counterparties

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Decembier
Mores 2015 2014 2015 2004
In Mainland China
— FowErnments 50,066 45,031 50,066 45,031
— policy banks 15,738 17179 15.738 17179
— banks and non-bank financial
institutions B7.654 84,501 B7.654 84,501
— corporates 26,469 31,199 26,469 31,199
Subtotal 179,927 177.910 179927 177.910
Dutside Mainland China
— EOVEINMEnts —_ 2B —_ 2B
— banks and non-bank financial
insticutions 40 41 40 41
— public entities 4 19 4 19
Subtotal 44 BE 44 BE
Gross balance 179,971 177.998 179971 177.998
Less: Allowance for impairment losses a5 (41 {41] 410 (41]
Total 179,930 177.957 179.930 L77.957
Listed in Hnng Kung 272 208 272 208
Listed outside Hong Kong (i) 174,648 169,637 174,648 169,637
Unlisted 4,810 8,112 4,810 8112
Total 179,930 177.957 179.930 L77.957
Fair value 185,152 177.856 185,152 177.856
O whichr listed securicies 1B0L ] 169,845 160,31 169,545
Mate:
(18] Dbyt sscurichn irsded 2o cha Chins Demamc Iowr-bank Bard Mardest e incleded in “Lssd awedds Hang Eong®.
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26 Investment classified as receivables
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The Group The Banl
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Mot 015 2014 015 2014
Investment management praduces
managed by seouritles companies 825016 452,319 B11616 451 979
Wealth management products lssued
by financial institutions 147,605 78850 147,605 78859
Trust investment plans 135,971 108,535 139,971 108,335
Caorpomate bonds — 13,199 — 13199
Crthers S00 500 500 500
Gross balance 1,113,092 653412 1,110,692 653072
Less: Allowance for impairment losses a5 (B85) {1563 (885) {156]
Met balance 1,112,207 553,256 1, 109, 807 652916

As of 31 December 2015, RMB75,639 million (31 December 2014: RMB39.285 million) of investment classified as
receivables listed above wers managed by related companies of CITIC Corporation Limited (CITIC Lid.), the Bank’s
immediate parent company.

The underlying assets of investment classified as recelwables primarily include investment in rediscounted bills, corporate
loans, certificates of interbank deposit and wealth management products issued by other financial institutions.

27 Investments in associates
The Group
31 December 31 December
Motes 015 014
Imvestments in associates {a) ~{c) a97Th 870
Total a76 870

{a) The Group holds its investment in an associate through CIFH and details of the associate
as at 31 December 2015 was as follows:

Effective peroentage

Farms of of shares and
business Placeof  votiog rght hed Momina walue of
Nume of company snctre  Incorporition by the Gronp Principal acthrities ] durs
OTIC I janal Ausets Manape Carparasi Hang Fang L1 Ivesiment haldingand ~ HEDZ21E milica

(b} Financial information of the associate is as follow:
As at or for the year ended 2015

Total Total Total Operating
Mame of Enterprise assers liabilities net assets income Net profit
CIAM 2,709 239 2,470 450 179

304/408



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
ooOooodn

Notes to the Financial Statements

{Amomrts in millions of Renminb! ool othermwise sated)

27 Investments in associates {Continued)

ic) Movement of the Group’s interests in associates

CLAM
Initlal investment cost 893
HAsatl ]n.u.un:y 015 B70
Share of net profic of associates for the year 52
Share of other comprehensive income of associates for the year [
Dividend received (8)
Exchange difference 56
As at 31 December 201§ 976
CCHL CIAM Tatal
Mote ﬁ}
Initial investment cost 1038 B93 1,931
Asat 1 January 2014 1.338 B3R 2,176
Share of gain of asscciates for the year 133 a7 170
Diividend received (35 (€} (43)
Diispoeal (1,438) — i1.438)
Exchange difference 2 3 5
As at 31 December 201 4 — 7O BT
Bt
m CITC Capial Heldingy Limioed §5C0CHL) war dispossd during the year anded 31 Decerbar 2014
28 Investment in subsidiaries
The Bank:
31 Drecember 31 December
MNotes 2015 2014
Investment in subsidiaries
— CIFH L] 16,570 9797
— CHCEB (Hong Kong) Investment Limited

("CHCE Investment™) (i) L5377 BY

— Zhejiang Lin"an CITIC Runl Bank Corporation
Lirmited ("Lin’an Rural Bank™) (i) 102 lo2
— CFLL (i) EX —
Tatal 22,249 9.986

‘China CITIC Bank Corperition Limited
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28 Investment in subsidiaries (Continned)
Major subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

% of % of
vemershlp  awnership The
Particulars of directhy hdd by  Group's
Place of the Issued and Principal held by  subsidiaries  effective
Mame of company Incorporation  pald wp caplml activitles the Bank  of the Bank  interest
CIFH [Nete (if) Heng Eong HED7,503 million  Commerdal hanking and 100% = 100

other Anancal services

CMCE [vestment [Nece (ii)]  Hang Kong HKD1 589 million  Lending services 99.05% 0.55% 10
Lin‘an Rural Bank [Nece (i) Mainland China  BEME200 million Commerdial banking 1% = 1%
CFLL Moee (iv)) Mainland China  BMB4,000 million  Financial lease operations 100% — 10

Nowme

i CIFH 1a an lnvecoent holing campany ceglmced sod kadquamcsd in Heop Kang. ha basinen scops chraugh ti subridiaci covencommarcil banking
ard nea-banking Ananclal mevics. The Bank scquiced 70336 of CIFH's shama and voting Aghs chroagh buinen camhinaticn. ander cammen. conerel
en I} Ociober 200, The Bk lacad then noqy af tha g 204569 of TIFH's shars fram BBVA an I7 Asgux 213, msking the Bank

whaly-ssened helding company of CIFH.

M) (NCB Invewrsn, frmedy named as Chine Invesiment and Financs Lmbed, was founded In Heag Kang 1o 1994 wich mplsrad csplial of HED2
smillicn. Haling » menay lending licsnce tmssd by the Hong Kang Conpary Ragiurar, CHOB Lovstmant's busiss sceps includes zapted markae
invastmant, larding nd atbar relstsd srvice, As ot 2 Apet] 2014, the Bank, ar approved by China Banking Ragulaeey C: d lex zpled
tnvestmme i C3CE Lovestemen: by HED | A64 aillian, Afur the capied Injeceian, the ragticeed captial of CHCE lovenmans tncremed o= HED A0
illien, and the Bank holds 99.08% of CHCB Invertrns's sharer. A ar 37 Aagum 3018, che Burk acquired 20.66% squity nterert of CIFH bald by
BEVAL suck thae the Bunk becomes cha L00% aguity hoMer =f CTFH. Sirce CIFH kakda the rermaining 0959 squity Intenat of CHCE [nvcment, a
at 31 Tiecerabar J0L%, tha Burk affectaly beld 100% tharshelding in CHCE §

Anar 15 June 2015, CRCE loverimoame scquined 100 ¥ Inient in s mew subaidlary, Ass Rock Capital Grosp Limibed " Axts Reck™), for sceth consdersdan
of VED1.EF millon A+t the dams of scquidiicn, du camying smeant of Ada Reck’s nac squicy was 508002 milkon, remking in o gosdwill of US54
millicn (How 321,

) Lin‘an Rurd Bank was foarded in Zhejlang Province of Malolnd Ching tn 2011 with o ceghoecsd capied of RAB2 8] millien. [or principal sctiviies uw
commardal barking relsied burneme. The Bank kala 1% of Lic"an Rarsl Bank's shama and vailng cigher.

i The Bk enablaked lin wholy sohidiary CFLL ln 2018 with ragisared capled of RME4 billan b princips] baslnem scebvkbe s Ananctd lsng,
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29 Property, plant and equipment

The Group
Computer
Buildings Construction equipment
(Mote (1)) in progress and others Total
Cost or deemed cost:
As at 1 January 2015 12, 2o 1584 B.36E 11,316
Additions 1,227 300 1,258 2,785
Transfers 863 (B63) — —
Dispasals {10 — (216) (228)
Exchange difference 1B — 5B B
As at 31 December 2015 14,372 1,1x1 9468 24,961
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 1 Januacy 2005 (992) — (4, 586) (7.578)
Deepreciation charges (449) — (1,091) (1,540
Disposals 3 — 193 194
Exchange difference (14) — 42) (56)
As at 31 December 2015 (3.452) — (5.526) (B:978)
Met carrying value:
As at 1 January 2015 bW 1,584 3.7E2 14,738
As at 31 December 2015 (Mote (i) 10,920 1,121 3942 15,983
The Group
Computer
Buildings Construction equipment
(Mote (il)) in progress and others Total
Cost or deemed cost:
As at 1 January 2014 11,409 1.548 7.145 20102
Additions 863 136 1.420 2419
Disposals (100 — (197} (207)
Exchange difference 2 — — 2
As at 31 December 2014 12,264 1684 B.368 22,3146
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 1 January 2014 (2,557 — (3.811) (5.3658)
Diepreciation charges (438) — (944) (1.382)
Disposals 4 — 169 173
Exchange difference (1) — — (1
As at 31 December 2014 (2.992) — (4,586) (7.578)
Met carrying value:
As at 1 January 2014 8,852 1,548 3,334 13,7
As at 31 December 2014 (Mote (i) &IT2 16584 3782 14,738
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29 Property, plant and equipment (Cantinued)

The Bank
Computer
Buildings Constraction equipment
(Mote (ii)) in progress and others Total
Cost or deemed cost
As ar 1 January 2015 11,803 1,683 T 382 20,868
Additions 1,226 300 1,158 2,684
Transfers 863 (B63) — —
DHspasals (1) — (196) (206)
As ar 31 December 2015 13,882 L1320 B, 34 13346
Accumulated depreclation:
As ar | Janwary 2015 (2,778 — (3,869) (6,045)
Drepreciation charges (44600 — (990) (14300
DHspasals 3 — 174 177
As ar 31 December 2015 (3.213) — (4,685) (7-B98)
Met carrying value:
As ar | Janwary 2015 9,027 1,683 3513 14,223
As ar 31 December 2015 (Mote (i) 10,669 L1320 3,659 15,448
The Bank
Computer
Buildings Construction equipment
(Mote (ii)) in progress and others Total
Cost or deemed cost
As ar 1 Jamuary 2014 10,950 1,547 6,216 18,713
Additions B&3 136 1346 2,345
DHsposals (10) —_ (1800 (190)
As ar 31 December 2014 11,803 1,683 7382 20,868
Accumulated depreciation:
As ar 1 Jamuary 20014 {2.351) — (3.174) (5.525)
Drepreciarion charges (429) — (EE) (1,277
Dhsposals 4 — 153 157
As ar 31 Diecember 2014 (2.776) — {3.868) (5.545)
Met carrying value:
As ar 1 Jamuary 2014 8,509 1,547 3.042 13,188
As ar 31 Diecember 2014 (Mote (i)) 9,027 1,683 3.513 14,223
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29 Property, plant and equipment (Continned)

Hat:

(14 Aa a3l Dicarnbar 2014, cha oat beak valus of che radsoed propecties wu spprecimusly RME ], ESD millien (31 Deambar 2014 RME1921 milloo).
Tha Grosp baleves chs Incompleon mpinraticn procsduns dess nat sffece the dghin of the Group o tha lagal nuccenor oo chass prapscies.

M) Analysed by remalning cem oF lams

Tha nat carnging valus of premises o the mporiing dus i sabsed by cha rerabning e of de leses = follows

Tha Croup The Bank
Hum L 3l s : Ho i 31 Dy
2015 Z0l4 2015 a1 Y
Lung tarm Jaxsas faver 30 yaend), beld 4n Eang Koag =] 0 — —
Mlediur corm basea (1050 yean), beld o Heng Eong 1= 142 —_— —_—
Mediur corm beassa (1030 yean), bed n Malnleod Chim 1, 60 9,07 pLA= ageIr
Farmarant canm bewe, hald in ovenem 25 3 —_ —_
Teead i@,929 2,72 10, e pJerky
30 Intangible assets
The Group
Software Dihers Taotal
Cost or deemed cost
As at 1 January 2015 938 42 QR0
Additions 527 — 527
As at 31 December 2015 1,455 42 1,507
Amortisation
As at 1 January 2015 (5600 (13) (573
Charge for the year (131} (1) (132)
As at 31 December 2015 (69 1) (14) (705)
Met carrying value
Az at 1 January 2015 378 ] 407
As at 31 December 2015 T4 2B B2
The Group
Safrerare Orhers Total
Cost or deemed cost
Asarl ]mu.u)r 2014 Fird § 42 El3
Additions 167 — 167
As at 31 December 2014 938 42 QEO
Amartisation
As at 1 January 2004 (439) {11) [450)
Charge for the year (121} (2 (123)
As at 31 December 2014 (5600 (13) 373)
Met carrying value
As at 1 January 2014 332 31 363
As at 31 December 2014 78 29 407
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30 Intangible assets (Continued)

The Bank
Sofrware Ohthers Total
Cost or deemed cost
As ar 1 Jamuary 2015 938 i 980
Additions 526 — 526
As ar 31 December 2015 1,464 42 1,506
Amortisation
As ar | Jamuary 2015 (560) (13 (573)
Charge for the year (131) (1 (132)
As ar 31 December 2015 (691) (14) (7O5)
Met carrying value
As ar 1 January 2015 37E 9 407
As at 31 December 2015 T7E 28 BO1
The Bank
Sofrware Orehers Toial
Cast or deemed cost
As at 1 January 2014 771 43 813
Additions 167 — 167
As ar 31 Diecember 2014 L ET] 42 Q80
Amortisation
As ar 1 January 2014 (439) 11) (450}
Charge for the year {121} (2 (123)
As ar 31 December 2014 (S60) (13} (373
Met carrying value
As at 1 January 2014 332 3l 363
As ar 31 December 2014 e 29 407
31 Investment properties
The Group The Banl
31 December 31 Diecember 31 December 31 December
015 2014 015 2014
Fair value as ar 1 Jamuary 280 277 — —
{:".hn.nae in fair value 27 2 — —
Exchange difference 18 1 — —_
Fair value as ar 31 December 325 280 —_ —

Investment properties of the Grouwp are buildings held by subsidiaries and mainly located in Hong Kong and leased ta
third parties through operating leases. There are active real estate markets where the investment properties are located
and the Group is able to obtain market price and related information of similar properties, and thersfore makes
estimation about the fair value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2015.

All investment properties of the Group were revalued at 31 December 2015 by an independent firm of surveyors,
Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limived, on an open market value basis. The fair value is in line with the definition
of “IFR513 — Fair value measurement”. The revaluation surplus or deficic has been credited to the profit or charped
to the loss respectively. Prudential Surveyars (Hong Kong) Limited has among their staff Pellows of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category of properties being valued.
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31 Investment properties (Continaed)

{a) Analysed by remaining term of leases

The net carrying value of investment properties at the reporting date is analysed by the remaining terms of the

leases as follows:
The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
2015 2014 2015 2014
Long term leases (ower 50 years),

held in Hong Kong 16 14 — —

Medium term leases (10250 years),
held in Hnng Knn.g 276 237 — —

Medium term leases (10250 years),
held in Mainland China 33 29 — —
Total 325 280 — —

32 Goodwill

The goedwill brought forward from 31 December 2014 arcse from CIFH's previous business combination of its
subsidiaries not under common control. The additions during year ended 31 Diecembier 2015 was attributable to CHCB
Investment's acquisition of a new subsidiary Rock Asia Capital Group Limited (Note 28(i)).

The Groap
31 December 31 Dacamber
015 2004
As at 1 January T35 792
Additions 10 —
E:r_b.n.ug\e differ=nce 49 i)
As ot 31 December B854 795

Based on the result of impairment test, no impairment losses on goodwill were recognised as ar 31 December 2015
(200 4 Mil).

33 Deferred tax assets

The Groap
31 Drecember 31 Drecember
015 2014
Dieberred tax assets 7,981 9.317
Dreferred tax liabilities (10} —
Met 7971 9317
The Bank
31 December 31 Dacamber
015 2004
Dreferred tax assets T2 030 9.296
Met T 930 9,296
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33 Deferred tax assets (Contimued)

fa) Analysed by nature

The Group
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Deduceible/ Dreductible
(razable) Dreferred (taxahle) Dreferred
tempomary tax @ssets/ temporary tax assets/

differences {liabilizies) differenoes (liabilicies)
Dreferred tax assets

— allowance for impatrment losses 38,879 9,694 31.422 TA30
— far value odjustments 8, 060) (2,017) {1,031) (250
— employes retirement benefits and
salaries payable L81E o4 7595 1499
— othen (1,647) (400) (6E4) (162)
Total 31,990 7981 37.302 9317
The Group
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Deductible/ Dreductiblef

(tazable) Deferred (taxable) Dreferred
temporary tax assets/ temporary tax assets/

differences (liabilities) differences (liabilicies)
Drieferred tax liabilicies

— fair value adjustments (59) (10) — =
— others (1) — = =
Tortal (60) (19 — —
The Bank
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Dreductible/ Dreductible

(tazable) Dreferred (taxahle) Dreferred
temporary tax assets/ temporary tax assets/

differences {liabilizies) differences (liabilicies)

Dreferred tax assets

— allowance for impairment losses 38,511 9,628 L1110 Tarrd

— air value adjustments (8,093) (2,023) (941} (235)
— employee retirement benefits and

salaries payable 2,794 699 7.590 1,897

— athers (1.493) (374) (5750 [ 144)

Taral 31,719 7,930 37.184 9,296
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33 Deferred tax assets (Contioned)
(b Movement of deferred tax

The Group
Employee
Allowance retirement
for benefits Tatal
impairment  Fair value and wcorued deferred
losses  adjustments staff cost Orhers tax assets
As ar 1 January 2015 T.B30 (250) 1,899 {162} w3y
Recogpised in profit or loss 1,861 (335) (1,197] (238) 71
Recognised in other comprehensive
inoome —_ (1:438) F1 —_ (1.436)
Exchange difference 3 (4 — — (1
As at 31 December 2015 o004 (2037 T4 { 4003 771
As ar 1 January 2014 5459 1518 LE37 (18} 8434
Recogpised in profit or Loss 2,371 (2a) 55 18 262R
Recognised in other comprehensive
income —_ (1.742) [El] — (1,745)
As at 31 December 2014 7830 [250) 1,899 [162) 2,317
The Bank
Employee
Allowance retirement
for benefits Tatal
impairment  Fair value and wcorued deferred
losses  adjustments staff cost Orhers tax assets
As ac 1 January 2015 TR (2350 1897 {144} 9,296
Recogpised in profit or loss 1,858 (335) (1200 (2300 BS
Recognised in other comprehensive
income — (1453 F] — (1:451])
As ar 31 December 2015 9,618 (2023 699 (374) T 0¥
As ar 1 January 2014 5420 LiIF 1,636 (163} 8410
Recognised in profit or Loss 2,358 26) 54 19 2,615
Recognised in other comprehensive
income —_ (1.726) 31 — (1,729)
As ar 51 December 2014 7.778 [235) 1,897 [144) 9,206

There is no material unrecognised deferred tax assets or Habilitles as ar 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014:
Hil).
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34 Other assets

The Group The Banl
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Mates 1015 2014 15 2014
Prepayments for properties and

equipment (@) 12,555 11,447 12,412 11 406
Precious metal contracts 12,443 15061 12,443 15061
Fee and commission receivables LT 2,222 2,776 2,222
Leasehaold improvements 1,793 1.595 1,793 1.591

Advanced payments and settlement
acoounts 1,355 2,299 1,328 2,399
Prepaid rent 1,072 898 1,065 &9l
Repossessed assets (b} F60 739 60 739
Land use rights 851 a76 851 a76
Crthers fc) 6335 1,629 3,724 716
Total 4, 141 36,766 37352 35801

fa) Prepayments for propertics and equipment

Prepayments mainly represent payments that the Group made for office buildings and sofrware equipment.

(b) Repossessed assets

The Group The Banl:

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Maote 2015 2014 015 2014
Premises 1,045 446 1,045 446
Oithers a5 458 a5 458
Sross balance 1, 130 Q04 1, 130 a04

Less: Allowance for impairment
losses 35 (170 (165) (170) (165)
Met balance D60 739 60 739

() Others

On 29 January 2016, the Bank made an anncuncement that its Lanzhou branch was involbved in a risk incident
in relation to its rediscounted bill business with an EXposure af RMBa59 million. The incident is mrmu.ﬂy under
investigation by the local public security bureaw. As 31 Diecember 201 5, the Bank prudently recorded a provision
under impalrment losses on assets in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehenshve income.
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35 Movements of allowance for impairment losses

The Group
Year ended 31 Diecember 2015
Transfer
Asat 1 Charge for Heversal for Inl'(aut] Asatdl

Motes January the year the year Mote (1)  Write-afs  December

Place mencs with and Inans to banks and

non-bank Finandal instirutions 13 B — — — — B
[nterest receivable 1 1350 EN L E5T) 6 (2,223) 1,134
Lears and achances m customers 3 51.576 T4l (2,301) 40 (26,239 60,407
Availahle-for-sale financial assets a7 63 (& 6 — 168
Held-to- marurity investmenes 25 41 — 4] 4 — 41
[nvestment dassified as peceivables 13 156 T2 — — — B85
Other asset BEZ L3iT [L1]] [ (178) 189
Total 54,150 42390 (2,858) B2 (28,640) 65,724

Year ended 51 December 2014
Transfer
Asat1  Charpe for  Beveral for ini{out) Asat 3l
Motes January the year the year HNote (i) Writeeofi  December
Dlepasit with banks and non-bank Financid

dnstituians 17 — — i) B — —
Place ments with and Inans 6o banks and

non-berk Srmncal Instirotiens 18 15 — 27] 20 — ]
[nterest receivable 12 il 1460 [174] (14] [fea) 1,350
Leans and achances i costomers 13 41,254 25,420 [3.344] (142] [11.610) 51,576
Available-for-sale financial assets 157 10 [1@) [{:x]] — a7
Hed-to- marurity investments 25 48 — m — — 41
[nvesement dassified as receivables 26 — 156 — — — 156
Olcher assets 750 265 [ya) {10 [53) EE2
Total 42,912 7311 [3.642] {200 (12,251} 4,150

The Bank
Years ended 31 December 2015
Transfer
Asat ] Charge for Rewversal for Ini{out) Asat3l

Motes Jannary the year the year Mote (1]  Writeaffs  December

Place ments with and Inans to banks and

nondbank finandal instiruticns 18 ] — — — — B
[nterest receivable 1 L.3=w 3396 EsT 16 (2,223) 13
Loams and achances to costomers 13 51,136 36,713 (2,194) (5 (25872) 59,681
Availahle-for-sale financial assets L] 56 (s} 4 — 124
Held- to- marurity investmenes 25 41 — (4] 4 — 41
[nvestmient dassified as peceivables 13 156 T20 — — — BES
Olcher asset BE2 1,193 [} [ (178) 1813
Total 53.681 42,087 (2, 746 5 (28,373) 4,684
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35 Movements of allowance for impairment losses (Cantinued)
The Bank (Continued)
Years ended 31 December 2014

Transter
Koatl Ch.l.l:geﬁ:l: Reversal for Lu.l’[ou.l:!l M ar A1
Notes January the yrr the year Meee (i) Wrieofi  December
Diepos with banks and nen-bank nancial
- 17 — _ {8 & _ _
Placements with and leans to banks and
nen-burk financial inmitutions 18 15 = 27 n = B
[nterest recehable 2 GRE 1,459 [174) [16]) (568) 1,389
Loans and advance to cuseamen 13 40,851 khlvrod [3.303) (160 (11,489) 51136
Anvalable forsale finandal assens 14 = (L0} [45) — &
Held-te-maruriy investments 25 45 — M — — 41
[ovestment classified as receivables 26 — 156 = = — 15
Oher amets ™ 265 (63 {10) 153)
Tonl 42,455 7.7 [3.598) [203) (12,110 681
Mom:
0 Teansfar tnMaui) inchude the st of exdiangs rus iod dispesds durtng the yeae. Batie all Bar Loz Joesan abova, th Gooap alsa charged

impurmane ks for off-babnce sheet Lome. Dacsils o disclosed 1o Mom 12

36 Deposits from banks and non-bank financial institutions

Analysed 1:-}' types and locations of cou nterpartics

The Group The Banl
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
015 2014 015 2014
In Mainland China

— banks 396,463 299,416 396,587 299,436
— non-bank financial institutions 655,307 341,785 655,338 341,785
Subtotal LOSL, 770 541,201 L051,925 541,221

Crueside Mainland China
— banks 16,722 47026 17,704 57137
— non-bank financial institutions 52 (%] 1 4
Subtoal 16,774 47091 17,705 57.141
Total 1,68, 544 GEE,292 1,069, 630 GOE.362
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37 Placements from banks and non-bank fimancial institutions

Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 Decamber 31 December 31 Discember
2015 2014 2015 2014
In Mainland China
— banks 31,494 9,834 16,497 9,858
— non-bank fnancial institutions 13,729 512 13,729 512
Subtotal 45,223 10,346 30,226 10,370
Dutside Mainland China
— banks 4,025 9,502 1,173 B.333
Subtotal 4,025 9,502 1173 B.333
Taral 49,248 19,648 32,399 18,703
38 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
2015 2014 2015 2014
Shore position in debe s=curities — 573 — 573
Tatal —_ 573 — 573
39 Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
{a) Analysed by type and location of counterpartics
The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
2015 2014 2015 2014
In Mainland China
— PBOMC B.917 G450 8,917 G460
— banks 60,223 34218 60,223 34218
— non-bank financial institutions 1,970 T3 1,970 T3
Subtotal 71110 41,381 71110 41,381
Ourside Mainland China
— banks 58 238 - —
Subtotal 58 228 — —
Total 71168 41,609 71110 41,381
(b) Analysed by type of collateral
The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
2015 2014 2015 2014
Dhiscounted bills 27492 ¥ ] 27492 G460
Diebt securities 43,676 35,149 43,618 34,921
Total 71,168 41,609 71,110 41,381
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40  Depaosits from customers
fa) Analysed by nature

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 014
Demand deposits
— COTpOrEte CUStOmErs 1,187,929 953,292 1,156,445 Q38,909
— personal customers 178,917 147 558 iy, 207 135,223
Subtetal 1, 3sis, B4 1,110,950 1,316,652 1,072,132
Time and call deposits
— cOrporaEte CUSESMErs 1,446,939 1,365.914 1,366,291 1,300,408
— personal customers 6L, 433 366,491 305,326 320,838
Subtotal 1,809,372 1,732,405 1,671,619 1,621,246
Outward remittance and remittance
payables 6,557 6,219 6,555 6219
Taotal 3,182,775 2,849,574 2,994,826 2,609,507
(b}  Analysed by type of collateral
The Group The Banl:
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 014
Bank acceptance 292,556 268,607 292,489 268,544
Guarantees 21,775 15,283 21,320 13.364
Letters of credit 9,241 23,534 9,241 23,525
Orhers 121,310 149,327 109, 274 141540
Total 444, 882 456,851 432,324 447,174
41 Accrued staff costs
The Group
Year ended 31 December 2015
Additions  Reductions Transfer
As at during during out Asat 31
Notes 1 Janmary the year the year [(Nete (1)) Drecember
Shart-term emnployes benefics (a) 11,387 20,064 (19.512) (3.781) 8,158
Pmb-lmp]u}m:nt benefies
— defined comeribution plans k) 16 2,291 (2,275) — 32
Past-employment benefies
— defined benefit plans (<) 0 11 (2) — i
Oither lang-term benefirs 7B 1 (36) — &3
Total 11,521 11,387 [21,825) (3.781) 8,302
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41 Accrued staff costs (Caontion=d)

The Group (Continusd)

Year ended 31 December 2014
Additions Reductions

As ar during during Asat

Motes 1 January the year the year 31 Dlecember

Shori-term employee benefits {a) 10,369 19,506 (18,488) 11,387
Pu:t-em_p]n}rm-eul‘ benefits

— defined contribution plans L] 14 1,622 (1.522) 16
Post-employment benefits

— defined benefit plans (e 34 9 (3 40

Oither long-term benefits Bl 20 (23) TR

Total 10,500 21,157 (20,136) 11,521

The Bank
Yeur ended 31 December 2015
Additions Reductions Transfer

Asat during during out As at 31

Nates 1 ]I.I.H.IT the year the Fear {MNate (1)) Decamber

Short-verm employee benefits {a) Lo,737 18,877 {18,166 (3,781} TAET

Post-emnployment benefits
— defined cantribution p]l.ns I]::I 16 F R4 (2,269 j— 31
Post-ernployment benefics

— defined benefic plans (1] 40 11 (2 — 49

Other loog-term benefits T8 11 (36) — 63

Tatal 10,871 20993 (20,473 (3,781} TiH10

Year ended 31 Diecember 2014
Additions Reductions

As ar during during As at

Mores 1 January the year the year 31 Dlecember

Shori-term employee benefits {a) 9912 18251 (17.426) 10737
Pu:t-em_p]n}rm-eul‘ benefits

— defined contribution plans L] 14 1,555 (1.55%) 16
Pu:t-em_p]n}rm-eul‘ benefits

— defined benefit plans {c) 34 9 (30 40

Oither long-term benefits Bl 20 (23) TR

Taotal 10,043 19,835 (19,007} 10,E71
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41 Accrued staff costs (Continued)

{a) Short-term employee benefits

The Group
Year ended 31 December 2015
Additiens  Reductions
Asat during during  Transfer out As at
1 January the year the year (Mate (1)) 31 December
Salaries and bonuses 10,589 15,260 (14.934) (3.781) Tal3
Social insurance 19 Los7T {L,041) — 35
Welfare expenses —_ L,29% (1,296) — —
Howusing fund 25 L1l {1.210) —_ 26
Labor union expenses and employee
education expenses 711 b6 (432 —_ 915
Housing allowance I8 439 433 — G2
Others 15 165 (1&6) — 14
Toral 11,387 20,064 (19.512) (3,781) 8,158
Year ended 31 December 2014
Additlons Reductions
As at during during As ar
1 January the year the year 31 December
Zalaries and bonuses 0,742 15,149 (14,302) 10,589
Social insurance 24 933 (938) 19
Welfare expenses — 1.259 (1259 —
Housing fand 16 1,023 (1,014) 25
Labor union expenses and employee
education expenses 538 631 (458} 711
Housing allowance a6 37T (385) 28
Oithers 13 134 (132) 15
Total 10,359 19,506 (13,455} 11.387
The Bank
Year ended 31 December 2015
Additions Reductions
B at during during Transfer out As at
1 January the year the year (Mete (1)) 31 December
Salaries and bonuses 9,946 14,023 (13,738) (3, 781) 6450
Social insurance 19 L9 (1,025) — 33
Welfare expenses — 1,283 {1.283) —_ —
Housing fund 15 1,202 (1,200 — xy
Labor union expenses and employee
education expenses Tag 63l 427 — 93
Houwsing allowance 18 437 (431) —_ M
Others 10 62 (B2 — 10
Taoral 10,737 18,677 (18,16) (3,781) TAGT
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41 Accrued staff costs (Caontion=d)

{a) Short-term employee benefits (Continued)

The Bank (Continned)
Year ended 31 Diecember 2014
Additions Reductions
Asar during during As at
1 January the year the year 31 December
Salaries and bomuses 9,290 13.957 (13.301) 9,946
Social insurance 23 a15 (919) 19
Welfare expenses —_ 1,251 {1,251} —_
Housing fund 14 Lo17 {1.008) 25
Labor union expenses and
employee education expenses 536 628 (455 709
Housing allowance 36 ars (383) 28
Oithers 11 108 (109) 10
Total 2,912 18,251 (17.426) 10,737
Bt
[ 4] Thu dafarced I payubde v amp leyeen bn cerpece of meviom provided eo e Geeop. Soch omame will bedinnbesd sccording

b2 plans. As ot 3| Discernber 2015, tha deforred amokimme paysbls smeuried 1o RME3,78L millon and wa Incladed In oiber Labildes™
(Mo 45,

(b) Post-cmployment benefits-defined contribution plans

Post-employment benefits-defined contribution plans includes costs of smtutory retirement plan. Pursuant to
the reevant laws and regulations in the PRC governing labor and social security, the Group joins statutory
retirement plan for the employees as set out by city and provincial governments. The Group is required to
make contributions based on defined mtios of the salaries, bonwses and certin allowance of the employees o
the statutory retitement plan under the administration of the government.

In addition to the above statutory retiement plan, the Bank’s qualified employess have joined a defined
contrbution retirement scheme (the “Scheme™) which was established by the Group and managed by the CITIC
Group. The Bank has made annuity contributions ar 5% (2014: 4%) of s employee’s gross wages. In 2015,
the Bank made annuity contribution amounting to FEMES71 million l::ﬂﬂl‘i: RMBa40 m.iuhn}l.

The Group’s employees based in Hong Kong join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme with certain
contribution ratics pursuant to the relevant lows and regulations.

ic) Post-cmployment benefits — defined bencfit plans

The Group offers supplementary retirement benefits for certain of its qualified employees in Mainland China.
The retived staff can elect to join this supplementary retirement benefic plan. The amount that is recognised as
at balance sheet day presents the discounted value of benefit obligation in the famre.

The Group’s obligations in respect of the supplementary retirement benefic plan as at the reporting date are
based on the projected unic credit actuaral cost method and computed by a qualified professional actuary firm
{2 member of Soclety of Actuaries in the United States of America).

Save for the above, the Group has no other material obligation for payment of retirement benefits.

‘China CITIC Bank Corperition Limited @
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42 Taxes payable

The Group The Banl

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2015 2014 2015 014

Income tax 1,248 3,562 13 3.529

Business tax and surcharges 2,563 2,308 2,556 2,301

Orthers (118) 15 -t 7

Tatal 4,693 5.985 4,604 5.837

43 Interest payable

The Group The Banl:

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2015 2014 2015 014

D\qnﬂh from customers ZB, 701 28,876 2B, 180 28,352

Drebt securities issued 2,061 2052 2, e 1918

Orthees 7397 6,383 7138 5,289

Tatal 38,159 37.311 37,432 36,559

44 Provisions

The Group The Bank:

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2015 014 2015 014

Litigation provisions F] 5 F] 2

Total 2 5 2 2

{a) Movement of provisions:

The Group The Banl

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2015 2014 2015 014

As at 1 January 5 7l 2 7l

Accruals 3 8 2 4

Beversals (1) (36) (1) (36)

Payments (51 (38) (1) (37}

As ot 31 December z 5 z F
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45 Debt securities issued

The Group The Bank

31 December 31 Diecember 31 December 31 December

Mares 2015 2014 2015 2014

Lang-term debt securitles lssued {a) 31,295 16,302 31472 16,479
Subordinated bonds lssued:

— by the Bank L] TO434 75427 70434 75427

— by CIFH {c) 7,345 6,906 — =

Certificares of deposit issusd id) B.T05 11,167 — —

Certificares of interbank d.tpudl' lssued. I:E::I 17 1,356 23,686 171,356 23,686

Total 2ED.135 133488 273,262 115,592

{a)  As at the end of the reporting period, long-term debt securities issued by the Bank were as follows:

MNominal
Annual Value
Bond Type [ssue Date Maturity Drate Interest Rate RMEB
Fixed rate bond B Movember 2013 12 Hovember 2018 5.2% 15,000
Fixed rate bond 27 Febiruary 2014 27 Februany 2017 4.125% 1,500
Fixed rate bond 21 May 2015 25 May 2020 3.98% 000
Fixed rate bond 13 Movember 2015 17 Movember 2020 3.61% B.000
(b}  The carrying value of the Bank’s subordinated bonds issued as ar 31 December represents:
31 December 31 December
Motes 2015 2014
Subordinated Axed rave bonds maruring:
— in May 2020 (i —_ 5,000
— in June 2021 (i) 2,000 2,000
— in May 2025 (i) 11,500 11,500
— in June 2027 (i) 19.977 19,574
— in August 2024 vl 36,957 36,953
Total 7043 73427
Moox
[ 1] Tha Inoerart raos an th sebeedinaied freed rsce bords looed en 28 My 2010 10 4.00% per snnom. The Bank redserned dse bards chrough tha

wxarcise of s sarly mdempelon cpdon oo 28 Mwy 2014,

iy Tha tmmnue ra oo che mbardinesd fivsd ruw beods dnoed o 22 Jane 2006 10 4. 12% per anoum. The Bank bas an opdon o mdean the
bends on 12 [una B11€. [f they wre oot redesned, the noren: com of the bands will incewm to 7,196 per snun far the neax fies paan

) Thes tnimres race o the mbardineced. fied raw bands tmsed oo 28 May 2010 10 4. 308 per sooum. The Bank has an opdaon o cedesn tha
bends on 28 My 2020, [F they are nee redemed, cha Inmre ces of che beads will neodn ac 4. 390%: par anoum far e ot e yeace,

(] Tha dmmnue ra oo che mbardinesd fivsd ruw bends dnoed o 21 Jane 2012 10 5 15% per anoum. The Bank bas an opdon o mdeen the
bends on 21 Juns HZL [f they are oot redesned, the inocen: ceie of the bands will remadn s 9. 199 per snnom Far che nest B pasm.

] Tha incerert rain oo tha sberdinated fised rate bends leoed on 26 Augoe 2014 1 §.13% per annam. The Bk b o eption o edsem the
bends on 26 Augue 2019, [F they are nee redemed, che intret cace =f the bends vl remoln 6,196 par wnnum for th next fe poan.

‘China CITIC Bank Corperition Limited @
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45 Debt securities issued (Continued)
{8 The carrying value of CITIC Bank International Limited’s subordinated bonds issued as ar 31 December

rep resenks:
31 December 31 December
Motes 2015 2014
Subordinated fized rate bonds mataring
on 24 June 2020 (i 3,462 3.274
Subordinated fived rate bonds maturing
on 28 September 2022 (i) 1.933 1,808
Subordinated fived rate bonds maturing
on 7 May 2024 (i) 1,950 1.824
Tatal 7,345 6806
m Subzrdinated bends with nomina valus of US048 00 millon ae loenes e of §.E7 9% par annam wars lamsd oo 24 Jana 2000 by CTTIC Bank

[nmrracians] Limited. Tha konds arw lieed on SCX-ST.

111} Subzrdinated bendr with noninal valos of PS03 millien s domre cos of 38759 par anrom were doed =0 17 Sapeaber 3010 by QTIC
Bank Inermationad Limicsd.

(1] Suberdinated bards with noninal vaes of USD30 millon st ioenee o of §.00% per aooum sees iosed oo 7 Nowembar 2003 by CITIC
Bank Jowmationd Limiced.

(d)  These certificaves of deposit were issued by CITIC Bank International Limived with interest rate ranging from
0,460 to 3.73% PEr AN,

(e} As ar 31 December 2015, the Bank had issued certain certificates of interbank deposits, toraling RMB171.356
millicn, with yield ranging from 2.75% to 4.77% per annum. The original expiry terms are beoween 1 month

to 2 years.

46  Other liabilities

The Group The Banl:

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Settlement and clearing accounts %716 10,848 21,396 104232
Advances and deferred expenses 1,947 3,717 2,073 1.740
Precious metal contracts 1,935 7747 1,935 7747
Dieferred emoluments payable (Mote 41(i1) 3,781 — 3,781 —
Payment and collection accounts 541 262 539 2652
Accruesd EXpeEnses 3B9 170 325 170
Dlormant accounts 339 248 269 248
Crthers 7,002 4074 4,545 3,847
Tatal 41,652 26,066 35,863 24 436
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47  Share capital

The Group and the Bank
31 December 2015

Number
of shares MNominal
Mote {milions) Valae
B — m #4053 34,053
H-Share 14,862 14,882
Total 48,935 48,935

31 December 2014

MNumber
of shares Mominal
Mare {millions) Yalue
bt m 31,905 31905
H -Share 14,882 14,882
Total 46,787 465,787

Haim:

11} Oin 31 Decembar Z015, the Bank through privacs plecement laged 2147 459929 tharer ca Chine Kailenal Tobaces Corparscian (CHTC), & an bmuance
price =f RAMBA.54 par shars, raising RME]LESE millan In total sfte deduceian <fimsance sxpenses (including andesriting and ip Mip fasi]. Such
Iernancs rambesd in an ircrass I b csphial snd share preniun by RMEL L4 nilbizn snd RMED 740 milben, mpectivaly. CHNTC held 4. 30 thares
of the Bunk sfer the tmuince. KFMG Hushm lamed rdasd capled vetficscion npeet (KEMG Husbn Yan T Mo, 1500428) on 31 December 2015,

48 Capital reserves

The Group The Bank

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember

Motes 2015 2014 2015 2014

Share premium 4701 58,555 49214 61,359 51619

Drher reserves {1 Bl B2 — —

Total 58,636 49,296 61,359 51,619

Hatm:

(it] In Angusi 3018, che Bank compleied the scquiriticn. of 29.B&W of CIFH's sharme from BEVA The 41 [T d and tha reland

carrying amawnt =f CIFH's nar st af FAB0L4 Rilion war deblied 1o cupica pramiam (Moo 280 snd 0},

49 Other comprehensive income/ (loss)

Other comprehensive incomef(loss) comprises items that may be reclassified subsequently to profic or loss when
specific conditions are met, mainly include fair value changes of available-for-smle financial assets, exchange difference
on translating foreign operations etc; and ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss, such as net changes on

the measurement of defined benefic plan (Mote 41).

‘China CITIC Bank Corperition Limited
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50 Surplus reserve
The Group and the Bank

Year ended Year ended

31 December 20015 31 December 2014

As ar 1 January 19,394 15495
Appropriations 3,968 3899
As ar 31 December 23,362 19,394

Under the relevant PRC Laws, the Bank and the Bank’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to appropriate
10% of its net profit, as determined under repulations issued by the regulatory bodies of the PRC, to the statutory
surplas reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. Afer making the appropration to the
statutory surplus reserve, the Bank may also appropriate its net profit to the discreticnany surplus reserve upon approval
by equity holders at the Annual General Meeting. The Bank makes its appropdation on an anmual basis.

Subject to the approval of equity holders, statutory surplus reserves may be used for replenishing accumulated losses, if
amy, and may ke converted into capital, provided that the balance of statutory surplus reserve after such capitalisation
Is not less than 25% of the registered capital before the process.

51 General reserve

The Gronp The Bank

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

1015 2014 15 2014
As ar | January 50,447 44,340 50,350 44,350
Appropriations 14, 108 6,107 14,000 6,100
As ar 31 Diecember 64,555 0447 64,350 F0.350

Pursuant to relevant Ministry of Finance ("MOF”) notices, the Bank and the Group’s banking subsidiaries in Mainland
China are required to set aside a general reserve to cover potential losses against their asses. With the regulations
enforced from 1 July 2012, the minimum general reserve balance should increase to 1.5% of the ending balance of
gmss risk-bearing assets with a transition period of five years. The Bank makes its appropriation on an annual basis.
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52 DProfit appropriations and retained earnings

{a) Profit appropriations and distributions other than dividends declared during the year

The Gronp The Bank

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 Diecember 31 December 31 December

Mares 2015 2014 2015 2014

Appropriations to
— surplus reserve o 3,908 3.899 3008 3.899
— genenal reserve 51 14,108 6,107 14,000 6,100
As at 31 December 18,076 10,006 17,968 9.999

In accordance with the approval from the Board of Directors dated 23 March 2016, the Bank appropriated
BMEB3.968 million to statwtory surplus reserve fund and RMB14,000 million to general reserve for the year of
2015, The Group’s subsidiaries Lin'an rural bank and CFLL made appropriations to general reserve in accordance
with relevant regulatory requirements.

(b)  Om 23 March 20186, the Board of Directomns proposed a cash dividend of RMB2.12 per 10 shares in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2015, Subject to the approval of the equity holders ar the Annuval General Meeting,
approximately RMB10,374 millian is payable to those on the register of equity holders as at the relevant record
date. This proposal is a non-adjusting event afrer the reporting pericd and has not been recognised as liabilicy
at the reporting date.

[L‘] As at 31 December 201%, the retained samings included the statutory l'u.l:p]u.: reserves of certain subsidiaries
of RMB50 million (31 December 20141 FMB34 million), of which EMB16 million (2014: EMEBE11 million)
was the appropriation made by the subsidiades for the year ended 31 December 2015, Such statutory surplus
reserves in the retained earnings cannot be distributed.

53 MNon-controlling interests

As at 31 December 2015, non-controlling interests included an amount of RMB1.83 billion representing other equity
Instruments isswed by CBI, an entity ultimately controlled by the Group. Such instraments are perperual non-cumulative
subordinated additional ter 1 capital securities (the “Capital Securities™) with nominal value totalling TISD300 million
carrying a coupon mate of 7.25% per annum, payable semi-annually, until the first call date on 22 April 2019, The
coupon rate will be reset every five years to a rate equivalent to the prevailing five year US Treasury rate plus 5.627%
per annum. CBI may, at its sole discretion, elect to cancel any payment of coupon, in whole or in part, or redeemed
Capital Securities in whole on the first call date and any subsequent coupon distribution date. These Capital Securities
are classified as equity instraments.

‘China CITIC Bank Corperition Limited @
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54 Motes to consolidated cash flow statement

{a) Cash and cash equivalents

The Group
31 December 31 Diecember
015 2014
Cash T.355 7232
Cash equivalents
Surplul d:pnllt reserve funds 63,656 T, 168
Dieposits with banks and non-bank financlal institutions
due within thres months when ncqu.’lr:d T, B30 BO 284
Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank financial
institutions due within three months when n.cqu].l:nd o4, 458 4R 553
Investment securities due within three months when acquired D, D5 16030
Total of cash equivalents 219, 005 221,143
Toral 226, W64 228375

ib) MNeon-cash related investment and financing activitics

In 2015, the Bank injected further capital of RME1.49 billion into its wholly cwned subsidiary CMCE Investment
and established a wholly owned subsidiany CFLL with a capital of FMB4 billion. Such transactions had no cash
outflows at the Group level.

55 Commitments and contingent liabilities
{a) Credit commitments

The Group’s credit commitments take the form of loan commitments, credit card commitments, financial
puarantees, letters of credit and accepiance

Laan commitments and credit card commitments represent the undrawn amount of approved loans with signed
contracts and credit card limits. Financial guarantees and letters of credit represent guarantees provided by the
Group to guarantee the performance of customers to third parties. Acceprance comprises undertakings by the
Group to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Group expects the majority acceptance to be settled
simultaneously with the reimbursement from the customers.

The contractual amounts of credit commitments by category are set out below. The amounts disclosed in respect
of loan commitments and credit card commitments assume that amounts are fally drawn down. The amounts
of guarantees, letters of credit and acceptances represent the maximum potential loss thar would be recognised
at the reporting date if counterparties failed to perform as contracted.
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55 Commitments and contingent liabilities (Cantinued)

(a)

(B)

(c)

Credit commitments (Continaed)

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Decembier
2015 2014 2015 2004
Contractual amount
Loan commitments
— with an original maturity of within
one yEar 130,965 141,614 58,612 BOTET
— with an original maturity of
one year or abowe 69,948 46,724 68,092 45,557
Subtotal 200,933 188,338 126,704 126,344
Guarantess 133,567 124,008 131,094 123,004
Letters of credic 92,1604 134,766 20,373 130,002
Acceptances 631,431 712,985 628,790 711,552
Credit card commitments 149,138 124,106 141,993 117400
Tol L207.233 1,284,203 1,118,954 1,208,311

Credit commitments analysed by credit risk weighted amount

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
2015 2014 2015 2014
Credit risk welghted amount of
contingent liakdlities and commltments 391,ETE 455254 3BT.BE25 451,089

The credit risk welghted amount refers to the amount as computed in accordance with the rules set out by the
CBRC and depends on the status of counterparties and the maturity chanctedstics. The dsk welghting used
range from 0% to 150%.

Capital commitmenis

The Group had the following authorised capital commirments in respect of properties and equipment ar the
reporting date:

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
2015 2014 2015 2014
Contracted for 7119 8,369 6,979 8329
HAnthorised but not contracted for 113 4 113 4

‘China CITIC Bank Corperition Limited
2015 Ansuwal Report

329/408

ooOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
ooOooodn

Notes to the Financial Statements

{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi omless otharmise stated)

55 Commitments and contingent liabilities (Cantimsed)

id) Operating lease commitments

The Grmoup leases certaln properties and equipment under operating leases, which typically run for an initial
pericd of one to five years and may include an option to renew the leases when all terms are renepotiated. As ac
31 Diecember, the Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were as Follows:

The Group The Banl:

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014

Within one year 2, Bbd 2.583 2,649 2,392
After one year but within two years 553 2396 LITI 2,133
After two years but within three years 5173 2,143 2,036 2005
Afver three years but within five years 3,510 3417 3311 4,204
Afver Five years 3,699 3.545 3,586 3375
Tatal 14,799 14,084 13,955 13,209

e} Ourstanding contingencies including litigation and disputes

The Group has assessed and has made provision for any probable cutflow of economic benefits in relation to
commitments and contingent labilities ar the reporting date in accordance with its accounting policies including
litigarion and disputes. The Group believes that the final result of these lawsuits and other contingencies will
not have materal impact on the financial position or cperations of the Group.

As at 31 December 201%, the Group was involved in certain pending litipation with gross claims of RMB394
millicn (n.l at 31 December 2014: RMB330 mIJHDn}I. Based on the opinlon of internal and external L:Enl
counsels, the Group had made a provision of EMB2 million (as at 31 December 2014 EMB3S million) against
these litigation.

ifi PBonds rcdcmptinn. ob ligations

As an underwriting agent of FRC government bonds, the Group has the responsibility to buy back those bonds
sold by it should the holders decide to early redeem the bonds held. The redemption price for the bonds at any
time before thelr maturity dates is based on the nominal value phas any interest unpald and accrued up to the
redemption date. Accraed interest payables to the bond holders are calculated in accordance wich relevant rules
of the MOF and the PEOC. The redemption price may be different from the fir value of similar instraments
traded at the redemption date.

The redemprion obligations below represent the nominal value of government bonds underwritten and sold by
the Group, bur not yet matured at the reporting date:

The Group and the Bank

31 December A1 December
2015 2014
Bonds redemption obligations 13,371 12,107

The ariginal maturities of these bonds vary from one to five years. Management of the Group expects the amount
of redemption before maturiny dates of these bonds will not be material. The MOF will not provide funding
for the eardy redemption of these bonds on a back-to-back basis, but will settle the principal and interest upon
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Commitments and contingent liabilities (Cantinued)

(gl Commitment to share acquisition and disposal

On 26 Mn;r 2015, the Gmp and CTBC: Financial H-a]dLng Ca., Lid (hersinafrer referred to as ‘CTE{T'} anteresd
inte a private placement agreement. The Group agresd to acquire 602,678,478 ordinary shares representing
3.8% of CTBC"s total share cn.pitnl afrer this p]nc.u:u.enl:, for a cash consideration of NTD 13,090 million. On
the same day, CBI entered into an agreement to dispose its 100% shares in CITIC Bank International (China)
Limited to CTBC Bank Ca., Lid.. a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTBC, for a cash consideration of Hong Kong
Diollars equivalent to RMB2,353 million. As at the reporting date, these two agreements were still subject to the
approval of regulators in the relevant judsdictions and are conditional on simultanecus completion.

Pledged assets

{a) Financial asscts pledged as collateral

The carrying amount of Anancial assets pledged as collateral in the Group’s ordinary course of businesses,
including repurchase agreements, bormwings from central banks are disclosed as belown

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 Diecember 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
Drebt securities 115.553 64,738 115.553 64,491
Diiscounted bills 27492 G414 27492 G414
Orihers 137 &7 _ _
Totl 143,182 71,219 143,045 70,905

{b] Collateral nccc]:lt:d as securities for assets

The Group conducts resale agreements under usual and customary terms of placements, and holds collateral
for these transactions. As at 31 December 201%, the fair values of collateral held by the Group under resale
agreements for which the Group was permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default for the transactions
was ail (31 December 2014 RMB573 millian).

‘China CITIC Bank Corperition Limited
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(a)

(bl

Entrusted lending business

The Group provides entrusted lending business services to corporations and individuals, as well as entrusted
provident housing fund mortzage business services. All entrusted loans are made under the instruction or at
the direction of these entities, individuals or provident housing fund centre and are funded by entrusted funds
from them.

For entrusted assets and liabilities and entrusted provident housing fund mortgage business, the Group does not
take on credic risk in relation to these transactions, but acts as an agent to haold and manage these assets and
labilities at the instruction of the entrusting parties and receives fee income for the sepdces provided.

Trust assets are not assets of the Group and are not recognised on the statement of financial position of the
Group. Surplus funding is accounted for as deposits from customers. Income received and receivable for providing
these services is included in the statement of profic or loss and other comprehensive Income as fee income

At the reporting date, the entrusted assets and Habilities were as follows:

The Group and the Bank

31 Dacembiar 31 Decembear

2015 2014

Entrusted loans GG, 26 524,538
Entrusted funds 606,334 524538

Wealth management services

The Group’s wealth management services to customers mainly represent sale of wealth management products,
which are not subject to any guarantee by the Group of the principle invested or interest to be paid, to corporate
and personal banking customers. The funds raised by wealth management products from investors are imested
in varlows investments, 1|:|rJ.1.|.dLu£ debt securities and money market instruments, credic assets and other debe
instruments, equity instruments erc. Credic risk, Hquidity risk and interest rate risk assoclaved with these produces
are bore by the customers. The Group only eams commission which represents the charges on customers in
relation to the provision of custodian, sale and management services. The income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as commission income. The Group has entered into
placements transactions at marker interest raves with the wealth management products vehicles (Mote G3(k1)L

The assets and liabilities of these wealth management preducts are not assets and liabilities of the Group and
are not recognised on the statement of Anancial position.

MAs ar the reporting date, the assets and liabilities under these wealth management products were as follows:

The Group and the Bank

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

Underdying investments of wealth management products 659,118 393,413
Funds mised from investors of wealth management products 633,852 ATHALF

As ot 31 Diecember 2015, RMB7 2,549 million fas at 31 December 2014: BAMBSE, 225 m.iuhn}l of these wealth
management produces invested in investments in which certain subsidiades and associates of the CITIC Group
acted as trustess.
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Segl'“e“t re F‘O‘ rti “g
Measurement of segment assets and Habilities, and segment income and expenses is based on the Group’s accounting
policies.

Internal charges and transfer pricing of transactions between segments are determined for management purpose and
have been reflected in the performance of each segment. Met interest iIncome and expenses arsing from internal charges
and transfer pricing adjustments are referred to as “Intecnal net interest income/ expenses™. Interest income and expenses
earned from third parties are referred to as “External net interest income/expenses®.

Segment Income, expense, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to o segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment assets and labilities do not include deferred tax assets and liabilitles. Segment
Income, expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances, and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process. Segment capital expenditure is the total costs incurred during the year
to acquire assets (including both tangibles assets and intangible assets) whose estimared useful lives are over one year.

{a) Business SCEMENts

The Group has the following main business segments for management purpose:

Corporate banking

This segment represents the provision of a range of financial products and services to corporations, government
agencles and non-fnancial institurions. The products and services include corporate loans, deposit taking
activitles, agency services, remittance and settlement services and guarantes services,

Personal banking

This s=gment represents the provision of a range of financial produces and services to individual customers and
small enterprises. The products and services comprise loans, deposit services, securities agency services, remittance
and settlement services and guarantes s=rvices.

Treasury business

This segment conducts capital markets opentions, inter-bank cperations, and imvestment banking businesses,
which, specifically, includes inter-bank money market transactions, repurchase transactions, and imvestments
and trading in debt instruments. Furthermore, treasury business segment also carres out dedvatives instruments,
derivatives and forex trading for customers; and manages the Group’s liquidity position.

Others and pnallocated

These represent non-banking businesses provided by the Group’s subsidiaries (CIFH and CNCE Investment),
alone with head office assets, liabilitles, income and expenses that are not directly attributable to 2 segment.

Dhuring the year, the Group changed the allocation basis for corporate foreign currency depasits between the

corporate banking segment and the treasury business segment; and its internal funding pricing to better reflect
the pesources deployed by each segment. The related comparative fzures have been restated accordingly.

‘China CITIC Bank Corperition Limited
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58 Segment reporting (Continned)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2015
Corpornate Personal Treasury  Cihers and
Banking Banking Business  Unallocated Total
Extermal net interest income!{ezpense) #4316 17.19% 36,248 (3.340) 184,433
Internal net incerest incomed[ezpense) 20,981 (10,924) (8,710) (1,347 —
Met imerest income 65307 16,275 I7.538 [4:687) 104,433
Met fee and commission income Gl 17,077 12837 (258 35,674
Oither pet income Mot (i) (17 657 4674 124 5438
Oiperating Income 71,309 3,009 45049 (4,813 145,55
Operuting expenses
— depreciarion and amartisation (881) (295) (18) (360) (2A454)
— other (22,815) (11,275) (4,714) (144) (48,148)
Impairment Josses (28,518 (8,142} (Z440) (937 [48,037)
Revaluatian gain on iovestment properies — — — 7 7
Share of gain of asociates — — — 5 53
Profit/{loss] before tax 19,886 4,297 I6ITT (6,174) 54,9806
Income mx (13,246)
Met profitf{loss) 41,740
Capital expenditure 1,261 407 1,34 Fa 331z
31 December 2015
Corpara P d Ti vy (Oihers and
Banking Banking Business  Unallocated Total
Sepment assets 1,599,792 635,043 1057 56 421 444 5113335
Interest in associate — — — 976 976
Deferred tax assers T.9E1
Total asset 5,132,292
Sepment liahilities 1,553,460 S5TLOBY L577,136 3.1 4,802, 96
Deferred tax linbilities 10
Tostal Hahilities 4,802,606
(OfF-balance sheet credic commicmenes 955,931 149,138 92,164 — 1,207,233
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58 Sepgment reporting (Continned)
(a) Buosiness segments (Continued)

Year ended 31 Diecember 3014
Carporate Personal Treasury  Otthers and

Banking Bankirg Business  Unallocaced Totl
External net intersst income! expense] 50,200 0,385 25,661 (1505 M, 741
Intemal net interest income!{expense) 555 (5.589) (2,660 {1,310} —
Bdet incerest income A 14,796 25,001 (2,815) .74
Iet fee and cormission income 5,431 10,306 2,546 30 5313
Oither net income Mot (i) &0 131 374 ETD 4,785
Operating income 65,270 25,233 35,251 {1915} 124,839
(Olperating expenses
— depreciation and amortisation 952 [344) 1723) (173} (2,194
— oithers (21,518) {18,803) [3.234] [E45) (44602)
R (7.om)  (4760) |2 (W) (23673
Revaluarion gain on investment properties — — — 2 2
Share af gain of asscciates — — — 02 0z
Prafit/loss) befors tax 25,372 1,324 3140 (3.586) #.5T4
Income tx {L3,120)
MNet profir 41,454
Capital expenditure 1,21% 442 a1z al 2,660
31 December 2014
Carporate Persoral Treasury  Otthers and
Banking Bankirg Business  Unallocaced Tonl
Sepment asset 1,953,573 673,200 1,456,938 41,227 4,128,623
Interest in associace — — — E70 B7O
Diefieered tax asets 317
Total asset 4,138,015
Segment Liabilities 2,168,473 545,031 1,036, 166 121,799 3871469
Total labilities 3,871 460
O balance sheet credit commitmenis 1,025,331 124,106 134, TG — 1,284,208
Bt
" Otbr nat Ins=ma snstes of e mading gan, ser pain fram invasman ssourci, ree kedging palnflam) and ather operaing ircnms.
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58 Segment reporting (Continned)
(b} Geographical segments

The Group openates principally in Mainland China with branches and sub-branches located in 31 provinces,
autonomous regions and municipalities directly under the central government. The Bank’s principal subsidiaries,
CHMCB Investment and CIFH are registered and operating in Hong Kong. The other subsidiaries, Lin’an Rural
Bank and CFLL are registered in Mainland China.

In presenting information by geographical segment, operating income is allocated based on the location of
the branches that generated the revenue. Segment assets and capital expenditure are allocated based on the
peographical locatlon of the undedying assets.

Geographical segments, as defined for management reporting purposes, are as follows:

— “Yange River Delta® refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group are located:
Shanghal, Manjing, Suzhou, Hangzhou and Mingho, as well as Lin‘an Rural Bank;

—  “Pearl River Dielta and West Strait”™ refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group are
located: Guangehou, Shenzhen, Dongguan, Puzhou, Xiamen, and Hailkou

— “Bohai Rim™ refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group are located: Beijing, Tianjin,
Dialian, Gngdac, Shijizhuang, Jinan and CFLL;

—  “Central” region refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group are located: Hefed,
Zhengrhou, Wuhan, Changsha, Taiyuan and Manchang;

—  "Western” region refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group are located: Chengdu,
Chongging, Xi'an, Kunming, Manning, Hobhot, Urumgl, Guiyang, Lanzhou, Xining, ¥inchuan and
Lhasa;

—  "Mortheastern” region refers to the following areas where tier-1 branch of the Group is located: Shemyang,
Changchun and Harbing

f— *Head Office™ nEEulmH:.chﬂdqun.rbu DE'HIBEDEED&H:.EM[‘&I&QD[‘EL;LD&

— “Heong Kong™ indudes all the openations of CNCB Investment, CIFH and its subsidiaries.
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58 Sepgment reporting (Continned)
ib) Geographical segments (Continusd)
Veur mded 31 December 20135

Yongee  Pearl Lbrer
River Delaand  Bobal Hed  Hong
Dl WetSmlt Lo Cenrl Wesen Monthesen  Offke Koy Binbaise  Toal
Eiernal oot imperes: incoome leae 1B MM HIH Wdn 17 M L — g
nierral e ieces: bnocmel] expemse] LTS 3 e (L5 5 () 12 - -
Bt ‘merst iooame LT I ¥ L I LR ] PR IS R - Ii%
Bt ¢ wnd comabrian moame e R 4T T D WM m - mr
Db net imeramse (Wt (1) 1326 5 53 a7 an n Lo AL — 5%
[iperating ncome JpE 18215 MW WE) 16ME o Bm s — 555
Olpeaing epeas
— dypneiarion and amevtintion B pe) ) (o LTI — (s
— e (b3 (hpor)  B7H) (R EBeD a0 Y ) — (s
Irapuireest bnses FaE (o) BXY GAd dTH Qa0 B () - [iop)
Remghation PN e prpe ks — - — — _ _ _ — 7
Shure of pin af wrocaes - — - - - - - i1 — W
Prsfit ek tax a7 (157 1138 BB 5855 19 ITES L — W
[eeame nx (13.46)
Mt profit LR
Cagind espenditue W 131 45l m a7 M i u — a2
1 Decenber M11§
Tagw Pl N
finr  [doad hi Beal Hasg
e Wit it fin (andl Wom Fokeen  Ofie Ly Biniuia Toud
Semeatumay LOWAE L LLMGM N WS BE M DA AWM RIS
[iewst i i - - - - - - - w - ]
Delred e ums Tl
Tuel smri lnm
Segment ililia LSS TLE  WMIT EANE  BLML nML LS LR [MAN 4
Defrved e Iabiiies 0
Toud lisbitides SLee
(b o o vt i TRIE IIN IR TR 1A b - LEng
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58 Segment reporting (Continned)
(b) Geographical segments (Continued)

Tear ended 31 Dlacember 2004
YVasgze Fewd Rirer
Fir Debmand  Bobai Bad  Hoxg
Oks Wt e Rlim  Cooml Wemn Yootewm  Ofia Fay Himign  Ted
Enieroal art insenst income e 3 R N4 il 18 IBME 1 — M7
Tniered cer interms imcoaaelfapeee) LiW R 19 i g i w - -
Feei i erew: inmone (ST AT T 2 1) W e aa — MR
et fee and conosisvian fncome il LE O IME Tl LM B ok T e H
[eber sot oare (et [5) L] £ m b bl ¥ L% %7 — AT
Operaag kcame nmy 1 up ER I BRI b v O —  LMEW
Operatlng eapse
— depsistian 1nd enmrtiaivn (111 O T v/ TR 1y T ] {119
—oibes e Gnd o (an 63 Mg Dy o — (A
Imgaimnen: bass LTI R e I R VI T 1 — i
FRerdhativn pain an weesiment prpirties = = = = = = = ] = 1
Shure of o of manciaes - - - - - - - m - m
Pralic kebe tax GHE  LHD  ESE 6 Al MR 1am — i
lamos ax {31
et prsfit L
Capisd sxpesdinge 1 18 oW i b]] H B b} — 1
11 Db 14
Tgr Hadlor
T Dduwd  lai Hui B
Ddn W Siic o (onl Voo Nebwen e L Biciaien Teal
et st mE W NEM s LRI T R T
PP - - - - - - - ] - 0w
Dol o LN
Tud wen AL
Sepmos Lkl LT T T LU I TE R v TE VRT3 T
Tul abiitis 1L
(f bubacr et oedic omminems i e MM mum i AN g A — 1

it Oithar reet nceme canlme of o trading gain, nee gain fom Imnenen scordes, ne hedging pun and othe cpersdng Income.
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Financial risk management

This section presents information about the Group’s exposure to and its manapement and control of risks, in particular
the primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments:

—  Credit risk Credit risk represents the porential loss that may arise from the filure of a debtor or counterparty
to meet its contractual obligations or commitments to the Group.

—  Marlket risk Market risk arises from unfavourable changes in market prices (interest rate, exchange rate, stock
price or commadity price) that lead to a loss of on-balance-sheet or off-balance-sheet business
in the Group.

— Liguidity risk  Liquidity risk arlses when the Group, in mesting the demand ofliabilities due and other payment
obligations as well as the nesds of business expansion, is wnable to sufficienty, timey or cost-
effectively acquire funds.

— Operational risk Operational risk arises from inappropdate or problematic internal procedures, personnel,
IT systems, or external events, such risk includes legal risk, but excluding strategy risk and
reputational risk

The Group has established policies and procedures to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to constantly monitor the risks and Hmits by means of reliable and up-to-date management information
systems. The Group regularly modifies and enhances its risk management policles and systems to reflect changes in
markets, products and best practice sk management processes. Internal auditors alse perform egular audits to ensure
compliance with relevant palicies and procedures.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arse from a customer or counterparty’s failure to meet s
obligations when due. The Group identifies and manages this risk through its target market definitions, credit
approval process, post-disbursement monitoring and remedial management procedures. Credit dsk arises primarily
from credic business. In respect of treasury businesses, credic risk mainly represents impairment losses of deba
securitles due to default by issuers, and. inability of dervathve counterparties in fulfilling their obligations.

Credit buniness

In addition to underwriting standards, the principal means of managing credit risk are credit imit management,
credit approval process, post-disbursement monitoring procedures such as early warning and examination etc.
The Group has policles and procedures to evaluate the potential credit risk of a particular counterparty or
transaction and to approve the transaction.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit analysis and monitoring at several levels. The policles are designed o
promote early detection of counterparty, industry or product exposures that require special monitering. The Risk
and Internal Control Committee monitors ovenall portfolic risk as well as individual problem credic business,
both actual and potential, on a regular basis.

The Group adopts a credit risk classification approach to manage the portfolio sk Credic businesses are
classified as non-impaired and impaired based on the different risk level. When one or more event demonstrates
there is objective evidence of impairment and losses, corresponding credic businesses classified as impaired. The
allowance for impairment loss on impaired credit businesses is collectively or individually assessed as appropriate.

The Grmoup applies a seres of criteria in determining the classification of credic business. The credit business
classification criteria focuses on a number of factors, including (i) the financier’s ability to repay the credit
business, (i) the financier's repayment histony, (i) the Anancier's willingness to repay, (iv) the net realizable
value of collateral if any, and (v) the prospect for the support from any financially responsible guarantor. The
Group also takes into account the length of time for which payments of principal and/or interests on credit

business are overdue.
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Credit business (Continped)

The Group's retail credit policies and approval processes are designed with reference to the fact that there are
high volumes of relatively homogenesous, small value transaction in each retail loan category. Because of the
nature of retail banking, the credic policies are based primarily on the Group’s strategy and swtistical analyses
of risks with respect to different products and types of customers. The Group monitors its own and industry
experence to determine and periodically revise product terms and desired customer profiles.

The dsks imvolved in credit-relared commitments and contingencies are essentially the same as the credit risk
involved in extending credit business facilities to customers. These transactions are, therefore, subject 1o the
same credit application, portfolio maintenance and collatera] requirements as for customers’ application for
credit businesses,

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic, economic or industrial factors similarhy affect
the Group’s counterparties whose aggregare cred it exposure is material in relation to the Group’s toral exposures.
The Group’s portfolic of credic business is divensified along industry, geopraphic and produce sectoms.

Treasury business

The Group sets credit limits for treasury operations based on the credit risk inherent in the products, counterparties
and geographical area. The Group's system closely monitors the credit exposure on a real-time basis, regularhy
reviews its credit limit policies and adjusts the credit limits, taken into account vardous factors including market
condition at the time.

i) Maximum credit nsk exposure
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date without taking into consideration of amy
collateral held or other credit enhancement is represented by the net balance of each type of financial
assets in the statement of Anancial position after deducting any impairment allowance. A summary of
the maximum exposure is as follows:

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 Diecember 31 December 31 December
015 014 2015 4
Balances with central banks 503,83 531254 502,693 528,789
Dieposits with bank and non-bank financial
institutioms BilLBEd 93991 G4, B 81,689
Placements wich and loans to banks and
non-bank financial instinutions 118,776 (8,180 98,276 47,810
Financial assets at bir value through profie or los 6,19 17,507 25,349 7,501
Pasitive fair value of derivacives 13,788 B,226 1,384 5638
Financial assers held under resale apreements 138,561 135,765 137210 135,765
Interest receivables 30512 26,125 19,849 25,546
Loare and advances to costomers 2468283 2,136,332 2,304,874 2,012,542
Asailable-for-sale finandal assers TaTSe 207,188 ZEA480 186,517
Held -to-maturity investmenes 179,830 177957 175930 177,957
Investment classifisd as recevables 1,113,207 693,256 1,108,807 652,916
Oither financial e 36,212 21515 33439 20,E15
Subtotal 5.081,893 4,087 306 4,825,091 3,004,265
Coedit commitments 1,207,233 1,284,203 1,118,954 1,208,511
Maximum credit risk exposure 6,289,126 5371599 5,944,045 5,112,596
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)

{a) Credit risk | Continusd)

(&} [Nstrdbution by credit exposure of loans and advances to customeers, due from central bank and other
banks and non- bank finandal institutions, financial assets beld under resale apreements and in vestment
securities and investment classified as receivable are as follows:

The Gronp
31 December 2015
Dhue from
central
bank and
other
banks and  Finandal
Loans and  nen-bank  assets held lewest menis
advances to financlal under resale  Inwertment classifled as
Motes  customers Instirutbons agreements  secarities  recelvables
Impaired
Individually assessed
Greas halance IR,039 k1] — 128 —
Allowance for impairment losses (15.345) (8) — (120 —
Met balance 12,694 22 — B —
Collectively asmessed
Gross halance &011 — — — —
Allowance for impairment Josses (5,846) — — — —
Met balance 1165 — — — —
Overdue bot net impaired i}
— lemz chan three months 35,118 — — — —
— three months o ooe Fear 6418 — — — —
Gross balance 41,536 — — — —
Allowance for impairment Josses (5,544) — — — —
Mer balance 35,992 — — — —
Neither overdue nor Impaired
Gross halance 2,451,194 Taxin 138,561 578,956 1113092
Allowanee for impairment Joeses (id) (33.762) — — (571 (BES)
Ner balance LAITAD  TeR3 136561 STEEYY  LILLNT
Nat bilance of total assets 468,783 ToA413 138,561 STEOOT 1,112,207
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)

{a) Credit risk (Continued)

i}  [Distribution by credi exposure of loans and advances to customers, due from central bank and other
ban ks and non-bank fnancial instfwtions, Anancial assets beld under resale apr t¥ and investmen t
securities and i t classified as receivable are as follows ( Contin wed):

The Gml.p {Continued)

31 December 2014
Dhue From
ceniiral bank
and other
banks and ~ Financial
Leansand  non-bank  asses held Invescments

advances to financial under resale  Irvestment  clasified 2
Mites oxtomers  imetitutions  agresments securities  recefvables

Inpaired
Individualbr arsessed
Giross balance 22,846 20 = 07 —
Allvwance for impairment kezes [11,153) {H) — (123 —
et balince 11,693 21 — B4 —
Caollectivebr ansessed
Gorcss balance 5,60 = — — —
Allwance for impairment kezes 13,954 — — — —
et balance 1,654 — — — —
Owerdue but not lmpalred (i)
— less than thres monchs 42,313 = — — —
— three months to one year 5,285 — — — —
Gress balance 47,598 — — — —
Allowance for impaitment kezes 15,538 — — — —
Met balance 42,060 = — — —
Neither overdue nor impalred
Gorees balanice 2,111,85 693,404 135,765 412,568 693,412
Allowance for impaitment kezes (i) [30,931) —_ — — [156)
et balance 2,080,925 693,404 135,765 412,568 693,256
Net balance of total assets 2,135,332 693,425 135,765 412,652 653,256
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)

{a) Credit risk | Continusd)

(&} [Nstrdbution by credit exposure of loans and advances to customeers, due from central bank and other
banks and non- bank finandal institutions, financial assets beld under resale apreements and in vestment
securities and investment classified as receivable are as follows (Con tinued):

The Bank
31 December 2015
Dhue from
central
bank and
other
banks and  Finandal
Loans and  nen-bank  assets held lewest menis
advances to financlal under resale  Inwertment classifled as
Motes  customers Instirutbons agreements  secarities  recelvables
Impaired
Individually assessed
Gross halance 6,771 0 — 116 _
Allowance for impairment losses (15,089) (8) — (108) —
Met balance 11,682 12 —_ B —_
Collectively asmessed
Grees balance &,003 — — — —
Allowance for impairment Josses (5,839) — — — —
Met balance 1164 — — — —
Overdue bot net impaired i}
— Jems chan three months 32,187 — — — —
— three months o ooe year 6,226 — — — —
Gross balance 38,513 — — — —
Allowance for impairment Josses (5.513) — — — —
Mer balance 33,000 — — — —
Neither overdue nor Impaired
Gross balance 1,291,269 665,747 137,210 533,808 1,110,692
Allowanee for impairment Joeses (id) (33,241) — — (&7 (121
Net balance 1,258,028 GA5, 74T 137,210 53751  L109.807
Net balance of total assets 1,304,874 665,769 137,210 53759  L1o9.807
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)

{a) Credit risk (Continued)

i}  [Distribution by credi exposure of loans and advances to customers, due from central bank and other
ban ks and non-bank fnancial instfwtions, Anancial assets beld under resale apr t¥ and investmen t
securities and i t classified as receivable are as follows ( Contin wed):

The Bank {Continued)

31 December 2014
Dhue From
ceniiral bank
and other
banks and ~ Financial
Leansand  non-bank  asses held Invescments

advances to financial under resale  Irvestment  clasified 2
Mites oxtomers  imetitutions  agresments securities  recefvables

Inpaired
Individualbr arsessed
Gross balance 22,185 e} — 11E —
Allwance for impairment kezes [11,024) [} — (110 —
et balance 11,261 Il = B =
Caollectivebr ansessed
Gorcss balance 5,600 = — — —
Allwance for impairment kezes [3,948) — — — —
et balance 1,652 — — — —
Owerdue but not lmpalred (i)
— less than thres monchs 40,208 = — — —
— three months to one year 5152 — — — —
Gress balance 45,380 — — — —
Allowance for impaitment kezes [5,524) = — — —
Met balance 39,838 = — — —
Neither overdue nor impalred
Gorees balanice 1,590,233 630,267 135,765 391,967 633,072
Allowance for impaitment kezes (i) (30,640 — — — [156)
Plet balince 195,393 639,267 135,765 391,967 632,916
Mt balance of total assets 2,012,342 655,268 135,765 321,575 652,916
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (Continusd)

(&} [Nstrdbution by credit exposure of loans and advances to customeers, due from central bank and other
banks and non- bank finandal institutions, financial assets beld under resale apreements and in vestment
securities and investment classified as receivable are as follows (Con tinued):

Koon:

2] Callscaral ared athar credit enbancerrani for cvardua bae ot Impaiced losas snd advance

Jin e 31 Dy kar 2015, tha corp leans ared ad £ b Coroup which weras cvardua but nat impaiced s RMB N, P4 lmilion
fur ae 3] Docernbar 2014: FEAIBA0, 141 milbizn). Tha meund wd msscured pection of thess leans and sdvance wars RME17 S4B
millian {m = 31 Decamber 5114 RAMEZL, 34 millon) and AMBLETEY millien de x 31 Decambar 3114 RME]? 407 milion),
caspaccivaly. Tha Ealr valus af callseral beld sguine thass leans snd advacs amaunoed o RMEIL, 701 milbzn (@ o 31 Cacambar
2014: RAB30, AT millienl

As ut 3] Ducamber 201, the carperais laane snd =d of the Bank which wers overdas bur noe Impaired wers RMBE2,521
millian {3014: AABAS, 006 muillion). Tha meumd nd unmeored. portion of chass loans ind shance wers FEMBLETD milizn (2014:
RMEX,237 milliar] and RMEL |30 milinn (2014: RAME 16,650 millien] respeceivaly. Tha Fulr valus =F eolsesrs] hald sgaine these
lasrs and sdvances smaunced e2 FAMBLS, 2B million (20 14: RMBIS, 143 millan),

Tha fatr vadus af calaseal wa I by munag bamed an: the luseie avalabl evimal valuscians, IF sy, sdjused by cking
Inea soocant tha cacrent cedlaschan sxpecknce w well o marks douariea.

[ 4] Tha kalanca e 1} by smmed all af lmp Learar.

(§i) Loans and advances to customers analysed by indusery sector:

The Group
31 December 2015 3l Diecember 214
Loars und Leans and
advances advanas
Gram secured by Grom weured by
balance % collateral balance % colluienl
Corpanie ham

— manufarnuring 414,273 164 201,490 w452 7& 171,481
— wholksle ard rerail 260575 03 16T By 131 MRIY
— el mtate 2154591 1.1 216414 179477 i1 152514
— rental and basiness mrvices 147,798 54 A7,060 1340 34 AR
— tranmpertacian, thnge and pred services 147,535 54 TMM0 13EIM 61 6756
— warer, emdrament and publc oty naagemen 127,435 S0 &an 1M S s
— ConHTRCiion. 102,532 41 47940 101,3% i G4

— production and supply of dectric power,
g and warer T 21 0,219 j143: 14 15480
— pubilic manageneat and social argunimi W35 0.4 SM80 193M 13 4
— oehem 13673 a4 W96 NSRS 13 74,505
Subizal 1767422 88 ISl LKA JL&  BIR32
Perearal loans HE8A13 04 4msEr iAWY 1 40ETTE
Dtiscomnied bilk M5 i - 68043 3l -
Grosa Joans and advances 0 customers LA T 0o LA0IT L7 Lma L2170
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (Continued)
(iifl Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry sector: (Continued)

The Bark
31 December 2015 1 December 2014
Licans and Leans and
wlwinces ahances
Grms secured by Grag secured by
balance % collatenl balance % collaed
Cocpocate baans

— mambacturing 403,85 17T 1BEWT TR 183 L6365
— whlesale and weiail M5419 w4 ISTIE IRMEG 134 L4742
— real estate 14,673 95 MM li0En 73 LaIm
— renvial and business senices 146,115 6.2 BSA12 aL514 40 47,26
— tampartatios, warage and pamml rvices 144453 A TLATE 13635 4 65, B4l
— warer, evircamentand public iy mangement 120,704 §1  STAGL 111466 54 SN
— camtnictian 1il, 188 43 47,267 100,456 43 151

— praducticn ard nipply of elecric power,
gat and wamer 49,086 11 1501 51,46 25 16,0590
— public manazament and sacid argnizaticos 0,835 e 4,880 150 0a 4524
— cthers 171,615 7.1 TR ML 71 A5
Subbats] LAZLST3 688 MITE LSRR Fi I
Permaal baam [T s 441,262 RS2 261 LT
Discauried hils 19 7 — LT 23 —
Graw Jaans and adances t cusiomens 2364, 556 Wi 1,374011 D647 L T W [ P

As at 31 December, impaired loans and individual and collective impairment allowance in respect of
economic sectors which constitute 10% or more of total loans and advances to customers are as follows

The Groap
31 December 2015
Individually Calllectively
Impaired wssessed assessed Impairment Impaired loan
loans and impairment impairment churged written off
advinces allowance allowance during the year during the year
Manufacturing 10,338 5.378 5,894 %176 (7871}
Wholesale and retil 12,127 7475 6,313 14,140 {12,174)
Real estare 249 54 1505 (20 —
31 December 2014
[ndividualh Callectively
[mpaired ussesped assemed Impuirment  Impaired Joan
leans and impaitment impairment charged written aff
wdvances allowance allowance  during the year  during the year
Manufacturing 2,758 4465 7435 6,547 (3.456)
Wholsale and reil 11,025 5424 6,985 5522 (B.110]
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(§i] Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry sectorr {Con tin ned)

The Bank
31 December 2015
Individually Callectively
Impaired 1 1 Lmpal t Impaired lon
loans and impairment impairment charged written aff
advances allewance allowance during the year during the year
Manufacturing 10,163 5. 340 8,821 3,166 (7877
Whalesale and retail 11,991 7. 406 6,238 14,016 (12,213
Real estate 123 54 1503 (17 —
31 December 2014
Individually Collectively
Impaired aszessed assessed Impairment  Impaired loan
loans and impairment impairment charged written off
advances allowance allowance  during the year  during the year
Manufacturing 8470 4385 Ti4l2 6,518 (3:416)
Whalesale and retail 10,924 5.423 6,938 9477 (6,064)
(i) Loans and advances to customers analysed by pecgraphical sector:
The Gonp
31 Dvecember 2015 31 December 2014
Louns aad Leans and
advarces adwances
Grass secumed by Grom serured by
balance H callaperal balanee % callateral
Bohai Rim ({induding Head Oficx) GROBRE 169 315,853 S8 64 258,442
Yargtze River Dielea %3616 1.9 330,052 51224 14 188324
Pear] River Delta and West Senic WER5F 15.7 198,743 EILEL 146 130,55
Ceneral Haaez 138 5,182 6274 140 176516
Wesiem 026 13.5 01,575 132,793 13.4 172,627
Northeastern B L7 42,845 art 13 41,980
Outzide Mainlind China 138,368 5.5 55457 116598 §1 44,127
Tonl 1,518,780 1000 1450,117 147,508 L0au 12131
The Bask
31 Dvecember 2015 31 December 2014
Louns aad Leans and
advances advances
Gross secured by Girom secured by
balance H callateral balanee % callateral
Bohai Rim {induding Head O} [N 180 197,128 Sra1ia 74 257423
Yargtze River Dielea 50812 133 328,263 Jonded M7 JE7.069
Fear] River Delra and West Senaic 04884 16T 297,817 7Ta 154 129.7m
Central JagR2 14.7 5,182 6274 143 176,516
Weatem M6 14.4 Mm1,5Ts P B 142 172,527
Northeastern 6349 L3 41,845 ehol il 41,380
Tonl 135556 loag 13,01 Loes 478 [} 1165717
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (Continued)
{iv] Loans and advances to customers analysed by peopraphical sector (Continued)

As ar 31 Diecember, impaired loans and indbridual and collective impairment allowance in respect of
geographic sectors which constitute 10% or more of total advances to customers are as follows:

The Groap
31 December 2015
Individually Collectively
Impaired assessed assessed
loans and impairment impairment
advance allowance allowance
Bohai Rim (induding Head Cffice) B, BGY 3354 12,624
Yangtze River Drelta B.B38 4,124 9,398
Pearl River Dielta and West Strait THES 3,440 8,361
Central 5212 1,873 T.3E0
Westemn 2,443 1,281 5795
A1 Decembar 20014
Individually Caollectbrehy
Impaired assessed assessed
loans and impairment impairment
advance allowance allowance
Bohai Rim (induding Head O fice) 7151 1,962 10,756
Yangtze River Drelta 9,240 3766 9959
Pearl River Dielta and West Straic 5140 2G6BS 7318
Central 3,453 1,042 5,255
Westem 1,276 158 4923
The Bank
31 December 2015
Individually Collectively
Impaired assessed assessed
loans and impairment impairment
advance allowance allowance
Bohal Rim (induding Head Office) B.BED 3354 12,414
Yangtze River Delta B.7ED 4,113 92,364
Pearl River Dielta and West Strait TABZ 3,388 8355
Central 5:21Z 1,873 7380
Western 2,443 1,281 5. 795
31 December 2014
Individually Caollectively
Impaired assessed assessed
loans and impairment impairment
advance allowance allowance
Bohai Rim (induding Head Office) 7108 1,919 10,763
Yangtee River Drelta 9,231 3.765 9.940
Pearl River Dielta and West Straic 4,894 12,655 7.309
Central 3,453 1,42 ]
Westerm 1,276 458 4923
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
vl Loans and advances to customrers analysed by type of collateral

The Group The Bank
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
2015 2014 2015 2014
Unsecured loans 492,622 392,960 #7932 368,639
Guaranteed loans 493,005 513.735 435,395 469,234
Secured loans
— loans secured by collaterl 1,169,587 953,053 1,113,612 Q17,020
— pledged loans 2B0,531 260,117 260,398 248,697
Subtotal 2,436,035 2,119,865 1277337 2,003,590
Discounted bills 92,745 68,043 B7.219 59,868
Gross loans and advances to
customers 1,518,760 2,187,908 2,364,556 2,063,478
{vi] Rescheduled loans and advances to customers
The Gronp
31 December 2015 31 Decemnber 2014
% of total % of total
Gross loans and Gross loans and
balance advances balance advances
Rescheduled loans and advances BAAE2 .3 4% 13,724 0153 %
Less:
— rescheduled loans and
advances overdue more
than 3 months 5310 21% 6,501 0.32%
— rescheduled loans and
advances overdue less
than 3 months 3,172 h13% 6,823 0.31%:
The Bank
31 December 20015 31 December 2014
% of wtal % of total
Gross loans and Giross loans and
balance advances balance advances
Rescheduled loans and advances BATE O F0% 13,204 01,40
Less:
— rescheduled loans and
advances overdue more
than 3 months 5310 D2 2% 6,901 0.5353%
— rescheduled loans and
advances overdue less
than 3 months 3,162 O 14%% 6,303 0.51%

Rescheduled loans and advances are those loans and advances which have been restructured or renegotiated
because of deterioration in the Anancial position of the bomowers, or of the inability of the borrowers o
meet the original repayment schedule and for which the revised repayment terms are a concession that
the Group would not otherwise consider.
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (Continued)
{vii] [ebt instruments analysed by credit mting

The Group adopts a credit rating approach to manage credit risk of its debt securities portfolic. The
ratings are obtained from major rating agencies where the issuers of the securities are located. The carrying
amounts of debt securities imrestments analysed by rating as at the end of the reporting period ane as fallows:

The Groap
31 December 2015
Unratsd
[Moste (1) AL A4 A Belowid Total
Diebi securities ismued by
— peTErnments 126,538 17025 4,604 6818 L7 165,201
— palicy barks 50,416 — 5T — — 50,994
— public entities 4 — — — — §
— banks and non-hank financial
instituinns T2 143,357 16,040 13040 5314 253,383
— COCpOrates 1714 87,681 13,887 4,181 1,B61 109,324
Towl 154304 258,063 75,199 24039 7302 57507
31 Diecember 2014
Uneated
Mate (i} AL Al A Bedow & Tetal
Debi securities ismmed by
— povernments £5,200 B 52 — — BRI
— palicy barks 3301 = 100 - — 44,308
— public enities 13 — — o] — &8
— banks and non-bank financial
instiurions 117,285 48,142 11,348 [0 136 185,560
— corporates 11,711 7178 3032 3,546 1,993 ST 450
Toeal 257,519 125,326 15437 10,241 4,129 412,652
The Bank
31 December 2015
TUnrutsd
[Meste (1) AAA Ad A Belowi Toual
Diebe securities ismued by
— poTECnments 126,462 12461 — — — 148,923
— palicy banks 50,416 — 578 — — 50,994
— public entities 4 — — — — i
— barks and non-bank financial
institutions 513 143,357 10,929 1778 T2 131.33%
— corparates 526 BT.57H 12,713 1487 195 102,499
Towal 2151921 153,396 4,220 3.265 5T 533,759
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk |Continusd)
(vif] [ebt instruments analysed by credit mting (Continoed)
The Bank (Continued)

4] Dlecemnbeer 2014
Unrared
(Mote (i} LLTY AL A Below A Tonl
Diebt securiries isued by
— pmvEmments TRT0G - 5 - - TETE
— policy banks 43,300 — 1,005 — — 44305
— public entiries 13 — - - - 13
— banks and non-bank financial
insticutions 115747 48,142 11348 1725 Bl 177 50
— coTponate 10,582 i1 1,59 7oz 6l 91,050
Toral 48,38 125,198 15,004 1517 902 191975
Mo
5] Vrrmied dabe Iovwmmani bl by e Graop and the Bank sce bendrioued p by by cha Cl i polcy hnks, kanks,
and nen-bank Ananclal Inmdom.
{(b) Market nsk

Market risk refers to risks that may cause a loss of on-balance-sheet and off-balance sheet business for the Group
due to the adverse movement of market prices, including interest rates, forelgn exchange rates, stock prices and
commodity prices. The Group has established o market risk management system that formulates procedures o
identify, measure, supervise and contml market risks. This system aims to limit market sk to an acceptable
level through examining and approving new produces and limit management.

Risk and Internal Control Committee of the Group is responsible for approving market risk management policies,
establishing appropriate crganisational structure and information systems to effectively identify, messure, monitor
and control market risks, and ensure adequate resounces to reinforce the marker risk management. The Risk
Management Department is responsible for independently managing and controlling market rsks of the Group,
including developing market risk management palicies and authorisation Hmits, providing independent report of
market risk, to identify, measure and monitor the Group’s marker risk. Business departments are responsible for
the day-to-day management of market risks, including effectively identifying, measuring, controlling marker risk
factors associated with the relevant operation, so as to ensure the dynamic balance between business development
and risk undertaking,

The Group uses sensitivity analysis, foreign exchange exposure and interest rate re-pricing gap analysis as the
primary instruments to monitor market risk.

Interest rate risk and currency risk are major market risks that expose the Group.

Interest mte nsk
The Group’s interest rate exposures mainly arise from the mismatching of assets and liabilities” re-pricing dates,
as well as the effect of interest rate volatility on trading positions.

The Group primarily uses gap analysis to assess and monitor its re-pricing risk and ad just the ratio of fAoating and
fxed rate exposures, the loan re-pricing cycle, as well as optimise the term structure of i deposits accordingly.

The Group implements various methods, such as duration analysis, sensithvity analysis, stress testing and scemario
simulation, to measure and monitor interest risk limits and exposure, and; supervise, manage and report on a
regular basis.
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
(k) Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following tables summarise the effective intenest rates, and the next re-pricing dates or contractual maturity
date whichever is earlier for the assets and liabilities as at the end of each reporting date.

The Group
31 Deecember H015
Effective Betweer
Interest Mon-  Lew than three  Between
rate Iniemest three months and oneand Mo re than
(Wote (1) Total bearing months  oneymr  fveymm  five pan
Assets
Cash ard balances wich cenival bank 14T% 51118 14567 496412 — — —
Dleparics with lanks and nan-bank
Anancial institutins 1.22% B0.B03 — T4ITT 6726 — —
Placemenes wich and baans 1o barks and
non-hank finandal instinutians L59% 118,776 I1 TE,139 0,13 — 495
Financial asseis beld under perale
1preemenis 3.90% 138,561 — 138,320 141 100 —
I amsified a1 cecrivall 5.20% L112207 3583 45RL00  46L1ED 183372 11,568
Loars and advances i osmamerns
{Hate (i} 5.85%  1AGHIE3 M0 103517 W0SNE 428,157 14,01
[nvesiments (Mo (il J.B6% 5RO 1391 107371 111,567 116,121 133,746
Chthers 111577 109416 444 LTIT — —
Totl mmem 5121291 LI9BA0  L3RRI00  LADLO052  EITES0 160,301
Liabilicks
Barrowing from cenmal hanks 3.50% 37500 - 15,500 24000 - -
Dleparics from banks ard nan-bank
financial institutinms JB0% 1068544 L3z 536,885 518,017 1010 1000
Placemenes From banks and non-bank
financial institutions LE1% 49248 — T 11,674 335 —
Financial asseis sold mnder repurchase
ppeLmenis Lidt 71168 — 67376 1 — —
Dieparies from cistomers Llg% 3182775 16,163 L1376l 665,174 3ELAOL 985
Diebe seruricies ismurd 465% 183,135 — BT 96,859 .5 To434
Chtheers 104,238 101,302 [0 1,318 — —
Total liabilides 4000606 119197 LETSATE  L33lABE 404081 T2A0
Interest rate gup 19686 106 (493.274) 190568 423819 BT,581
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b) Market risk {Continusd)
Taterest mte dsk (Continped)
The Group (Continued)

31 December 2014
Berween
Effective Non- Less chan thoee Berween
interest rare imerest theee  menths and coeand  More chan
[Mote (i) Tonl bearing manths  aneyear  Freyears  fiveyeas
Jemets
Cash and bdances with central hank LAw%  S1add6 Tn 15125 - - -
Diepesits with hanks and nan-bank
finandal instinutions 3.24% 391 — o] 2642 1510 -
Placemenis with and Joans to hanks and
nan-hank financial instirwcions 3.96% 3,130 2 2,611 15,0a5 — 4§53
Financial amsets held under resale
agreements 1.I7% 135763 — 13471 Ele B2 -
[rwesrment clatified @ receivables 6.17% £53.256 — LE5430  370HE 117,174 —
MWate [iil) 651%  LI1I6AIZ kL 9e£930  SMLTIS 13,39 o
Lomesmments (Note (ifl) dmm 4570 LS9 TeDEE anldl lEnEl BRI
Others s BT 5431 5,957 - _
Total amsts 413,815 WET  LMOTT 1485226 43659 105,397
Liabilities
Beerowing from cenenl banks 3.50% jooio — o0 o — -
Diepesity frum harks and noa-bank
firandal instinudans S.08%  £3dzar L¥8 fndm ndEm 10,579 -
Placemenis fram banks and non-bank
Finmndal institutans L.15% 19,648 = 14179 4406 1,DE3 —_
Financial ameis mld under repurchase
sgreements 3. 60 §1609 — o L1680 — —
Diepasics From custamers 1AVE  LEn5T4 13,55 18Eh466 s 61,16 3755
Dleb saurities dmed 5% 133484 = 21,008 13519 20,260 7E701
Chihen AEE0E 5,147 3513 4575 57 =
Total linbilites 3471460 HETL  LJELOFE  EISM3 201 E2.436
Intersst rate gap 267,16 454  [M22B  G4nE4 140,892 23,461
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
(k) Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
The Bank
31 Deecember 2015
Effect ive Between
Interest Mo Lew than thres Between
rate Iniemest three months and oneand Mo re than
(Wote (1) Total bearing months  oweymr  fveyeanm  five yean
Assets
Cach ard balances wich cenimal bank 14T% 509851 14371 495,480 —_ —_ —_
Dleparics with lanks and nanbank
financial instinutions 1.52%: 4,800 — 58,421 6,379 — —
Placemenes wich and Jaans o barks and
non-hank finendal instinidans L94% 98,275 2 60,593 3T 066 —_ 495
Financial smeis beld under reale
ipTeEmeEmis ERIL 137210 —_ 136,968 141 100 —_
[nvesiment damsified & receivables 5.20% 1109807 3.583 452,100 461,113 182,082 10569
Loars and advances i cssamers
(Nate (ii]} 5.99% 1I048T4 —  B¥ESM 96966 435,132 14,081
[nvestments Mot (ii}] 395% 55651 11,763 B3 114,866 203,565 131315
Cithers 102,955 102231 ] ] — —
Totl mses 4.284.295 143570 LIB3T03  L5BA.333 Blo.B2Y 156,850
Liabilick=
Barcewing from ceniral hanks 3.50% 37400 — 13,500 13500 - -
Dlepasics from banks and nanbank
Rnancial instiutines JEI% L0630 596 539,007 518,017 1,010 L
Placemenes From hanks and pon-bank
financial instinutions 1.73% 12am — 18,540 385 — —
Financial ameis sol under repurchase
pTeements Lid% 71118 — 67318 3192 — —
[Dteparics from cwinmen L% 19M4BN 6555 1983706 E107 AT S8
Dtebe eeruricies isnued 481% 173262 — T 90758 .4n 70434
Other BB 9106 65 23 - -
Total liabilites 45TIHST 98147 LTIETS  L193161 7605 72420
Lnterest rate gap 1438 45323 (SEITZ) 96T 414875 B 440
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b) Market risk {Continusd)
Taterest mte dsk (Continped)
The Bank (Continued)

31 December 2014
Berween
Eifective Non Less chan thoee Berween
interest rare imerest theee  menths and coeand  More chan
[Wote (]} Toul bearing manths  aneyerr  Freyeas  fivepeas
Jemets
Cash and bdances with ceniral hank L5  §36E1L 7.2 e - — —
Dleposits wich hanks and non-bank
finandal instiudans 34V 41,649 — Tnix 2629 1510 —
Placemeniz with wnd Joans to banks and
nan-bank financial insirucions 4.700% 47.EL0 kAl .15 15,178 —_ 453
Financial ameis hel under resake
agreEmEnts 1.I7% 135763 — 131471 Ele B2 —
[rwesmment clarified a receivables 6.17% G296 = LE5.430 AT00EE 117,134 =
(Wae (il G47%  LOLZMZ = a73.7E0 64493 152,101 11,968
Lovesaments (e (i) dmw sl m4%6 Toafs afeED  1Mow Baw
Cithers 91312 Ti5 5831 9957 — —
Total asets 962636 3,001 1EETIE7  145L333 425784 105219
Liahilitles
Beerowing from cenenl banks 3.50% fo,000 — Sap0 — = =
Dleposits frum barks and pon-bank
Finmndal instinutons 5.17% 633,362 ng §E1.485 106,072 10,57 =
Placemenis fram banks and non-bank
Finmndal institutans 105 18,3 = 13765 4406 512 =
Financial ameis mld under repurchase
ETEEMENTS 1.79% 4131 = B 1180 = =
Diepasics From custamers 148  LeanSay 219 1776811 &51,413 21419 735
Dlebe saurities dmued 5.01% 155z = 14,433 153 16479 Th427
Cithers 13278 74617 3513 4,575 51 -
Total lisbilites 706213 ELED  24792% FEt =] 289,562 73,162
Interest rate gup 235723 571 (391972 &73445 134,222 26,057
Moo
80  Effacchs inanen ca repressnis iha rain of inmres Incomsl s o svecsgs dncams buaring seinlshiliies during tha v,

W) For lozrs and shancs o= cusivmen s Groap leesl the "Lom than chres mentba” cicegary Inclades cvardue smeanis et =f dlasance for
i patrraent |oaes) of AMEBST,E7D muillien s s 31 Discornbar 3019 fa ot 31 Diacernber 301 4: AMEBA3 496 millica.

For lears and sdvarcer ea curtomers o Bank level, che "Lam dun thess mendu™ caegory inchider cverdoe smeunis fnee of slowancs foe
Impalernant loane) of RMEB44,EY2 milion w x 31 Dwcsmbar 215 {o ar 31 Dacembar 101 4: RMEB43 436 millien).

[ 1TH] lovenmme inchuds the finenclal st fur valus dhecogh prefie oo loas, srallable-far-mde fi | arsair, hald aricy and

lmenmomantr In umcciner.
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
(k) Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group uses sensichity analysis to measure the potential effece of changes in interest raves on the Group’s
net interest income. The following table ses forth the resules of the Group’s interest rate sensitivity analysis as
at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Oreher Oeher
Met interest comprehensive Met interest  comprehenshve
income income Income income
+100 basis points (2753) (2065) (552) (686)
-100 basis points 2,753 B06 552 [0

This sensitivity analysis is based on a static interest rate risk profile of the Group’s non-derbvative assets and
liabilities and certain assumptions as discussed below. The analysis measures anly the impact of changes in interest
rates within one year, showing how annualised interest income would have been affected by repricing of the
Group’s non-derivative assets and liabilities within the one-year pedod. The analysis is based on the following
assumptions: (1) all assets and Habilities that reprice or mature within the three months bracket, and the afer
three months but within one year bracket are both reprice or mature at the beginning of the respective periods,
(i} it does not reflect the potential impact of unparalleled yield curve movements, and (iii) there are no other
changes to the portfolio, all positions will be retained and rolled over upon maturity. The analysis does not ke
Into account the effect of rsk management measures taken by management. Due to the assumptions adopted,
actual changes in the Group's net interest income and other comp rehensive income resulting from increases or
decreases in intersst rates may differ from the results of this sensitivige analysis.

Currency nisk

Currency sk arises from the potentlal change of exchange rates that cause a loss to the on-balance sheet and
off-balance sheet business of the Group, the Group measures its currency risk with foreign currency exposures,
and manages its currency risk by spotr and forwand foreign exchange transactions and matching its foreign
currency demominated assets with corresponding liabilities in the same currency, as well as using derbvative
financial instruments, mainly forelgn exchange mwaps, to manage its exposure
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b) Market risk {Continusd)
Courren cy sisk { Cas thamed)
The exposures at the reporting date were as follows:

The Group
31 December 2015
BME UsD HED Cihers Total

Bssets
Cash and balances wich central bank 465,281 45,102 613 133 511,189
Dieposits with banks ind non-bank

financial instinations 37,835 19019 9,860 4,089 80,803
Placements with and Joans w banks and

non-bank financial institutions T.TTE 13,751 6,615 246M 118,776
Financial asets held under resale

agreements 137,210 1351 - — 1383561
lovestment classified as receivables 1,109,512 2,595 — — 1,112,207
Loans and advances m costomers 2,2¥7. %6 168,536 63,532 B840 2 468,283
Iovestments 527396 4,883 15,299 13.318 5B0,896
Others 98,924 B.541 3.B85 7 111577
Total assets 4,683,400 09,778 99,804 19310 5,12L,3%2
Liabilities
Barrowings from central banks 37500 —_ — — 37500
Deeposits from banks and non-bank

financial institations 1,028,229 34,148 B47 5320 1,068,544
Placements from banks and non-bank

financial instinations 38,814 F.714 — i 3,248
Financial amets sold under repurchase

ugreements 71,168 — — —_ 71,168
Dieposits from custamers 1,854,718 192475 9,858 BAM  FIBLTTS
Diebt securities issued 173,085 14,350 1,700 — 289,135
Oichers 89,850 6,748 3257 4,381 104,236
Total liabiliies 4,393,364 25T A5 105,692 46,115 4,802,606
Met on-balince sheet position 290,036 52343 (5.888) (16,B05) 319,686
Credit commitments 1,053,858 110,380 35,143 7852 1.207,233
Deerivatives Mate (i) (26,270) 8,141 1,257 27,360 11,088
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
Carsency sk (Contia ged)
The Group (Continued)

31 Diecember 2014
RMB usD HED Oithers Total

Asseis
Cash and balances with central bank 526,072 10,145 2,078 191 538,485
Dieposits with banks and non-bank.

Financial institutions 17,389 67694 5,908 3000 03,5231
Placements with and loans to banks and

nan-bank financial instinations 45,714 21,359 315 792 68,180
Financial assets held under resale

agreements 135,104 571 — — 135,765
[nvestment classified as receivables 652,033 1,223 — — 553,25
Loans und advances ta customers 1918137 154,673 4,167 9,355 2,136,332
[nvestments 388,142 15,468 8403 3727 415,740
Otthers 90,525 7597 3,309 434 97,065
Total assets 3775206 273,930 74,180 17 499 4,132,815
Liabilities
Borrowings fiom. central banks 50,050 — — — 50,080
Dleposits fram banks and non-bank

Ffinancial institutions 661,496 21,950 92 4,454 GBE,292
Placements from banks and noo-bank

financial institutions 5413 13,218 = 1007 19,648
Financial assets sold under repunchase

agreements 41,381 13 = —_ 41,609
Dleposits fram cusbomers 2,518,282 225951 TE,RIB 16,523 2,849,574
Dlebst securities issued 117,576 10,824 2488 2600 133,488
Others BO,E39 2,379 3,181 2,400 BE,BOR
Toral liabilities 3.4B5,047 274,530 84,879 26,993 5871469
Met on-balance sheet position 288,159 (620} [10,695) [9.494) 267,346
Credit commitments 1.137,10% 113,081 27,163 6,854 1,284,203
Derivatives (Note (i)) (19,902) (14,7 98) 25,585 17 B48 B, 733
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)

(b} Market risk (Continued)

Courrency dsk { Con tin ned)
The Bank
31 Drecember 2015
BME UsD HED Orhers Total

Bssets
Cash and balinces wich central bank 464,442 44 817 415 77 500,851
Dieposits with banks ind non-bank

Financial institations 34,439 6,301 650 3A10 4, B
Placements with and Joans  banks and

non-bank financial institutions 76,912 19,945 1419 — 98,276
Financial amets beld under resale

igreeme s 137,218 — — — 137,210
lovestment classified as receivables 1,107,212 2,595 — — 1,109,807
Loans and advances m costomers 2,190,187 105,614 1779 6,204 2304874
Iovestments 529,093 10,594 16,570 265 556,522
Olthers 94,148 5,113 19 665 102,955
Total assets 4,633,643 217949 21,852 10811 4,584,195
Liabilities
Barrowings from central banks 37,400 — — — 37400
Dieposits from banks and non-bank

financia] instinations 1,029,474 4,059 ™ 5320 LDiE9,630
Placements from banks and non-bank

financial instinations 23,023 8554 — TH0 3L399
Financial amets sold under repurchase

igreeme s TLIlG — — — TL1l0
Dieposits from custamers LB15,265 147624 6,009 23,918 294,826
Diebt securities issued 373,262 — — — 73,263
Oichers 57,209 5,194 7 1620 4,030
Total linbilities 4,336,745 195531 6,803 33578 4S5TLOST
Met on-balince sheet position 296,898 12458 15,049 (22767 311,638
Credit commitments 1,048,159 61,845 1,594 7356 1,118,954
Derivatives (Nate (i)} (26,277 8,172 1,227 17867 11,089
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
Carsency sk (Contia ged)
The Bank (Continued)

31 Diecember 2014
RMB usD HED Oithers Total

Asseis
Cash and balances with central bank 524,902 Vi LE79 165 536,811
Dieposits with banks and non-bank.

financial institutions 17,292 61,336 T 1054 B1,680
Placements with and loans to banks and

nan-bank financial instinations 32,103 15.510 197 — 47,810
Financial assets held under resale

apreemenis 135,104 571 — — 135,765
[nvestment classified as receivables 651,693 1,223 — — 552,918
Loans and advances to custamers 1,899,740 1030 1,203 B.345 2,012,342
[nvestmenis 35,708 TE03 — 450 403,581
Oichers B, 641 5,124 18 339 91322
Total assets 3,742,453 204,285 4,264 11,633 5,962,636
Liabilities
Borrowings from central banks 50,000 — — — 50,000
Dleposits fram banks and non-bank

Ffinancial institutions 671,786 21,838 e 1) 4,454 698,362
Placements from banks and noo-bank

financial institutions 5,063 12,633 —_ 1,007 18,703
Financial assets sold under repunchase

apreements 41,381 — — — 41,381
Dleposits fram cusbomers 2,496,448 18B.5% 6,989 7606 2,699,597
Dlebst securities issued 115,502 — = — 115,592
Others 76,598 4,463 191 2,026 B3,278
Toral liabilities 3,496,858 227486 7466 15,093 5,706,913
Met on-balance sheet position 285,585 {25,200) (3,202) (3.460) 255,723
Credit commitments 1,131,175 T1.045 188 5,903 1,208,311
Dierivarives (Mote (1)) (8,388) 4,522 1,840 11,790 2,564

Mot
v Thin et ropermsmnct tha et sl st e a1, Inchdling undslhvarsd Earsign sxchangs s, foego aschmps forward,

farign sxchanpe resp and curmency cpticn.
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b} Market risk (Continued)
Courrency dsk { Con tin ned)

The Group uses sensithrity analysis to measure the potential effece of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
on the Group’s profit or loss. The following table sets forth, as ar 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
the results of the Group’s foreign exchange rate sensitivicy analysis.

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Orther Oeher
Profit comprehensive Prfit  comprehensive
before tax income before tax income
1% appreciation 407 (18] 139 (3
1% depreciation (407) 18 (139} ]

This sensitivity analysis is based on a static forelgn exchange exposure profile of assets and liabilities and certain
assumptions as follows: (i) the foreign exchange sensitivity is the gain and loss recognised as a result of 100 basis
point fluciuation in the forelgn currency exchange rates against RMB, (i) the exchange rates against RMB for
all forelgn currencies change in the same direction simultaneously and does not take into account the comelation
effect of changes in different foreign currencies, and (iid) the foreign exchange exposures calculated include both
spot forelgn exchange expasures, foreign exchange derbvative Instruments, and; all positions will be retained and
molled over upon maturity. The analysis does not take into account the effect of risk management measures taken
by management. Due to the assumptions adopted, actual changes in the Group’s profit resulting from increases
or decreases in foreign exchange rates may differ from the results of this sensitivity analysis.
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
ic) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Group, in meeting the demand of Habilities due and other payment obligations
as well as the needs of business expansion, is unable to sufficiently, timely or cost-effectively acquiee fands. The

Group’s liquidity risk arises mainly from the mismatch of assets to liabilities and customers may concentrate
their withd rawals.

The Group has implemented overall liquidity risk management on the entity level. The headquarters has the
respansibility for developing the whaole Group's liquidigr rsk policies, strategies, and implements centralised
management of Hguidity risk on the entty level. The domestic and forelgn affiliates develop their owm liquidicy
policies and procedures within the Group’s liquidicy strategy management framework, based on the requirements
of relevant regulatory bodies.

The Group manages liquidity risk by setting various indicators and operational limits according to the overall
position of the Group’s assets and liabilities, with referencing to marker condition. The Group holds some assets
with high liquidity to meet unecpected and material demand for payments in the ordinary course of business,

The toaols that the Group uses to measure and monitor liquidity sk mainly include liquidity gap analysis,
liquidity indicators (including but not limited to regulated and internal managed indicators, such as loan-to-
deposit ratio, liquidity matio, liquidity gap rate, excess reserves rate) monitoring, scenario analysls and stress
testing. (On this basis, the Group establishes regular reporting mechanisms for liquidicty risk to report the larest
situation of liquidity sk to the senlor management on a timely basis.

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of assets and lia bilities

The Group
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T
Reprmls ca teemih  Beivemoseand Nir thn Undird
doand  Wihin i menthe el et paar e fre e [ [ Tod
L
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il iy ] L [*] - - - L
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Liskilives
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
ic) Liguidity risk (Continusd)
Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of assets and liabilities { Con tinped)
The Group (Continued)

11 lomber L4
Yovens
[T T O— Barda o
dmad  Wiin ) manis el ot Freyus frpen e il T
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
ic) Liquidity risk {Continned)
Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of assets and lia bilities (Cont in ped)

The Bank
1 Thecember W15
e
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
ic) Liguidity risk (Continusd)
Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of assets and liabilities { Con tinped)
The Bank (Continued)
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)

ic) Liquidity risk {Continned)

Credic Commitmenis include loan commitment, bank asooeptance, credit card co mmitments, Fuarantess and letters
of credit. The tables below summarise the amounts of credit commitments by remaining contractual mataricy.

The Group
31 December 2015
Less than
1 year 1-5 years  Ohver 5 years Tatal
Bank Acceptance 631,431 — — 631431
Credit Card Commitments 149,138 — — 149,138
Guarantees 81,573 S0887 1,106 133,506
Lean Commitments 0,501 62,712 4770 200933
Letter of Credit 9,406 750 — 92,165
Torl 1,044,049 114,358 48,826 1,207,233
31 December 2014
Less than
1 ypear 1-5 years  Ohwer 5 pears Total
Bank Acceptance T12,985 — — 712,985
Credit Card Commitments 124,106 — — 124,106
Guarantees 926,815 25,560 1,633 124,008
Lean Commitments 87225 62412 3B T03 188,338
Letter of Credit 133,009 1,757 — 134,766
Taral 1,154,138 89,729 40,336 1,284,203
The Bank
31 December 2015
Less tham
1 year 1-5 years  Ohrer 5 years Tatal
Bank Acceptance 628,790 — — 628,790
Credit Card Commitments 141,993 — — 141,993
Guaraneees 80,215 49,773 1,106 131,094
Lean Commitments 20,646 58342 47,716 126,704
Letter of Credit BWGE3 690 — 90373
Torl 961,327 108,805 48,822 1,118,954
51 December 2014
Less than
1 ypear 1-5 years  Ohwer 5 pears Total
Bank Acceptance T11.552 — — 711,552
Credit Card Commitments 117 409 — — 117409
Guraneees 25884 25487 1,633 123,004
Lean Commitments I7 GGE 59,5978 38,658 126,344
Letter of Credit 128,922 &0 —_ 130,002
Taral 1,082,435 85,545 40,331 1,208,311
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59 Financial risk management (Continued)
ic) Liguidity risk {Continned)
Moo
®  For cash md belancm wifh ced ks, the mxfxind pacied G regremts sesbory depe rse el s Racel degesis micine]
with the FBOC. For placenants with wnd loans ez bk ared bank Anancial losra wred agh ] nd

the undwed perlod smosnt mpeesnt tha balsnces belng Impared ar sverdus Far mees than ma modh. Equliy lmsoments acs sl mperied
undar andued pead

M) The baleno of Jaum and sdvances tn custemen which s everdus within one menth bue oo impaived ae included in repaysbls o demand.

Irvastments Inchide the finsnctal asets s fair vakis through profie oe loas, wvallable-far-sbs finarctal assets, held-to-manuicy iovenmens ind
In Far tha g term o mutaricy doe nee promnt che Greup™s trmcded haling pariod.

id) Operational risk

Operaticnal risk refers to the risk of loss arsing from inapprop rate or problematic internal procedures, personnel,
IT systems, or external events, including legal risk, but excluding strategy risk and reputational risk.

The Group manages operational risk through a control-based emvironment by esablishing a sound mechanism
of operational risk management in crder to identify, assess, monitor, control, mitigate and report operational
risks. The framework covers all business fanctions ranging from finance, credit, accounting, settlement, savings,
treasury, intermediary business, computer applications and management, special assets resolution and legal
affairs. Key controls inclades

—  establishing matrix and centralised authorization mechanism, strict prohibition of unautho rised activities;

— through consistent legal responsibilicy framework, taking strice disciplinary actlons against non compliance
in order to ensure accountabilicy;

—  promoting operational risk management culture throughout the crganization; building a team of operaticnal
risk management professionals. Through formal training and performance appraisal system in mising risk

Management AWansness;

—  strengthening cash and account management in accordance with the relevant policies and procedures,
intensifring the monitoring of suspicious transactions. Ensure our staff are well-equipped with the
necessary knowledge and basic skills on anti money laundering through continuous training;

—  backup systems and disaster recovery plans covering all the major activities, especially back office operations
in arder to minimise any unforeseen intermuption. Insurance cover is armnged to mitlgate potential losses
associated with certain dismptive events.

In addition to the above, the Group improves its operational sk management information systems on an
ongoing basis to efficienty identify, evaluate, monitor, contm] and report its lewel of operational risk. The
Group’s management information system has the functionalities of recording and capturing lost data and events
of operational rsk to further support operational risk control and sdfassessment, as well as monitoring of key
sk indicators.
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60 Capital Adequacy Ratio

Capital adequacy ratio reflects the Group’s operational and rsk management capability and it is the core of capital
management. The Group’s capital management objectives are to meet the legal and regulatory requirements, and to
pradently determine the capital adequacy ratic under realistic exposures with reference to the capital adequacy ratio
levels of leading global banks and the Group’s opemting situations.

The Group considers its strategic development plans, business expansion plans and risk variables in conducting s
scenarlo analysis, stress testings and other measures to forecast, plan and manage capitl adequacgy mtio.

The Group’s management monitors the Group’s and the Bank’s capital adequacy regulardy based on regulations issaed
by the CBRC. The required information is filed with the CBRC by the Group and the Bank semi-annually and
quarterhy, respectively.

From 1 Jamuary 2013, the Group commenced the compuration of its capital adequacy matios in accordance with
“Regulation Governing Capital of Commercial Banks (provisional)” and other relevant regulations promulgated by the
CBRC in the year of 2012, The requirements pursuant to these regulations may hawe certain differences comparing to
those applicable in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions.

Under the “Regulation Governing Capital of Commercial Banks (provisional)™, the Bank is required to meet the
minimum core tier-one capital adequacy ratie, tier-one capital adequacy matio and capital adequacy matio of 7.50%,
B.50% and 10.50%, respectively, by the end of 2018, In addition, overseas subsidiaries and branches are directhy
regulated by the respective local banking regulators and the requirements of capital adequacy ratios differ by country.
During the period, the Group has complied in full with all it externally imposed capital requirements.

The capital adequacy ratics calculated in accordance with *Begulation Governing Capital of Commercial Banks
{provisional)™. According to the requirements, for credic risk, the capital requirement was measured using the weighting
method. The market risk was measured by adopting the standard approach and the operational risk was measured by
using the basic indicator approach.
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60 Capital Adequacy Ratio (Continued)
Relevant requirements promulgated by the CBRC are listed as below.

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio 9. 12% B.093%
Tier-one c,nplinl n:rlnql.ncy ratio D17 % B.99%,
Capital adequacy rato 1L87% 12.33%
Components of capital base
Core tier-one capital:

Paid-in capital

Share capital 48,935 46,787

Oualified portion of capital reserve SE, 636 40305

Orther comprehenshre income/(loss) 3,584 (1.833)

Surplus resenne 23,362 19,394

General reserve 64,555 50,447

Fetained earnings 118,668 95,586

Qualified portion of non-controlling interests 75 4311
Total core tier-one capital 317,815 THF,. 988
Caore tier-one capital deductions:

Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liabilicy) (854) (793)

Oither intangible assets other than land use right

{mex of related deferred tax lHabilicy) (BZ) (407)

Met core tier-one capital 316,159 22, TBG
Dther tier-one mpdl:nl Mate (1) 1,828 1,706
Tier-one vmpdl:nl 317.987 64,582
Tier-two capital:

Qualified portion of tier-two capital instruments issued

and share premium 9,299 73,618

Su.rplul allowance for loan impalrment 24,447 23,123

Qualified portion of non-controlling interests 7 1,525
Met capital base 411,740 362,848
Total risk-welghted assets 3,468,135 2,941,627

Hatm:

0% Az 3] Decerabar 2015, che Grosp's other ther-cos capied 1s the qualfled percion of nan-conirslling incme, mainly rprasnis the Capital Sacartdes
[Hoea 53],
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61 Fair value

Fair value estimates are generlly subjective in nature, and are made as of a specific point in time based on the
characteristics of the financial instraments and relevant market information. The Group uses the following hierarchy
for determining and disclosing the fair walue of Anancial instraments:

Lewvel 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Habilities that the Group can access
ar the measurement date. This level includes listed equity securities and debt instruments on exchanges
and exchange-traded derivatives.

Leve 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 are chservable for assets or liabilities, eicher

directly or indirectly. A majority of the debt securities classified as level 2 are Renminbi bonds. The
fair values of these bonds are determined based on the evaluation results provided by China Central
Drepository 8¢ Clearing Corporate Limited. This level also includes a majority of OTC dervative
contracts, the evaluation method of which includes Forward Pricing Model, Swap Modal and Option
Pricing Model. Input parameters are sourced from the Open market such as Bloomberg and Reuters.

Leve % inputs for assets or llabilities are based on unobserrable parameters. This level includes equity investments
and debt instruments with one or more than one significant unobservable parameters. Management
determine the fair value through inguiring from counterparties or using the valuation techniques. The
medel incorporate unobservahle parameters such as discount rate and market price volatilities.

The fair value of the Group’s Anancial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

— Iferaded im active markets, fairvalues of financial as=t: and financial liabilitie: with standard terms and conditions
are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices, respectively;

— 1f not traded in active markets, fir values of financial assets and Anancial liakilities are determined in accordance
with genenlly accepred pricing models or discounted cash Aow analysis using prices from ohservable current
market transactions for similar instruments. If there were no available observable current market transactions
prices for similar instruments, quoted prices from counterparty is used for the valuation, and management
performs analysis on these prices. Discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration
of the instruments is used for dervatives other than options, and option pricing models are used for option
derhvarives.

The Group has established an independent valuation process for financial assets and financial liabilities. The Risk
Management Diepartment performs an independent review of the valuation methodologies, inputs, assumptions and
valuation results. The Operations Department records the accounting for these items according to the result generared
from the valuation process and accounting policies. The Finance and Accounting Department prepares the disclosure
of the financlal assets and financial Habilities, based on the independently reviewed valuation.

The Group’s valuation policies and procedures for different types of financial instruments are approved by the Risk
Management Commictes. Any change to the valuation policies, or the related procedures, must be reparted to the Risk
Management Committee for approval before they are implemented.

PFor the year ended 31 December 2015, there was no significant change in the valuation techniques or inputs used to
determine fair value measurements.
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61 Fair value (Continned)

{a)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair valoe

Financlal assets and Habilities not carded at fair value of the Gmu.p include Cash and balances with central banks,
Dleposits with banks and non-bank Anancial Instttions, Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank
fnancial Institutions, Pinancial assets held under resale agreements, Loans and advances to customers, Held-to-

maturity imvestments, Investment classified as recetvables, Bormowings from central banks, Deposits from banks
and non-bank financial Institutions, Placemants from banks and non-bank financial Institutions, Financial asses
sold under repurchase Agreements, Dieposits from customers and Debt securities issued.

Except for the items shown in the tables below, the maturity dates of aforesald financial assets and Habilities are
within a year or are mainly floating Interest rates, as a result, their carrying amounts are appoximately equal

to their fair value.
The Group
Carrying values Fair values
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
2015 2014 2015 2004
Financial assets:
Held-to-maturity imvestments 179,930 177.957 185,152 177,856
Investment classified as receivables 1,112,207 &53.256 1,124,181 G56.435
Financial Babilities:
Diebt securities issued
— certiflcates of deposic
{mot for trading purpose) lssued B, 705 11,167 B.70G 11,193
— debt securities issued 31,295 16,302 31.361 16,656
— subordinated bonds lsswed T e 82,333 E3:161 B3.715
— certiflcates of interbank deposit lssued 17 1,356 23,6B6 171,501 24,978
The Bank
Carrying values Fair values
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Diecember
2015 2014 2015 2014
Financial assets:
Held-to-maturity investments 179,930 177.957 1E5,152 177.B56
Investment classified as recaivables 1,109,807 552,916 1,121,853 G55,088
Financial Habilities:
Diebt securities issued
— debit securities Issued 31472 16,479 31,558 16,834
— subordinated bonds lssued TO434 75427 75506 76,566
— certificates of interbank deposit issued 17 1,356 23,686 171,501 24,978
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61 Fair value iCantinued)

{a)  The fairvalue of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value (Continued)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities abowve at fair value hierarchy is as follows:

The Group
31 December 2015
Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Held-to-maturity investments 833 184,319 — 185,152
Investment classified as receivables — 1,124,181 — 1,124,151
Financial liabilities:
Diebt securities issued
— certificates of deposit (mot for trading
purpose) issued — 8,706 —_ 8,706
— debt securities lssuesd — 32,381 — 31,381
— subordinated bonds issued 7H15 75,566 —_ B3 1561
— certificates of interbank dcpmit jssued — 171,501 — 171,501

31 December 2014

Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financlal assets:
Held-to-maturity investments 1,365 176,491 — 177 856
Investment classified as receivables — 696,435 — 556,435
Financlal liabilities:
Diebt securities issued
— certificates of deposit (mot for trading
purpose) issued — 11,193 — 11,193
— debit securities lssued — 16,856 — 16556
— subordinated bonds issued 7.149 TE566 — 83,715
— certificates of interbank deposit issued — 4 978 — T4 ATE
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61 Fair value (Continned)

{a) The fair vahie of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value (Continued)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities abowve at fair value hierarchy is as follows: (Continued)

The Bank
31 December 2015
Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Total
Financial assets:
Held-to-maturity imvestments B33 184,319 — 185,152
Investment classified as receivables — 1,121,853 — 1,121,853
Financial Habilities:
Diebt securities issued
— debt securities issued — 31,558 — 32,558
— subordinated bonds lssued — 75,566 — 75,566
— certiflcates of interbank deposit lssued — 171,501 — 171,501

31 Drecember 2014

Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Held-to-maturity imvestments 1,365 176491 — 177,856
Investment classified as receivables — G608 — G56,0R8
Hinancial Habilities:
Drebt securities issued
— debit securities issued — 16,834 — 16,834
— subordinated bonds lssued — 76,566 — Th. 566
— certificates of interbank deposit issued — 24 078 — 24 078
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61 Fair value iCantinued)
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(b) The year-end fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value

The Group
Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3
(Mote (1)) (Note (i) (Note (1)) Total
As gt 31 December 2015
Recurring fair value measurements
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Trading financial assets
— debit securities 479 8057 — B.536
— investment funds — — 1 1
— certificates of interbank deposit — 15,226 — 15,226
Fimancial assets designed at fair value
through profic or loss
— debt securitles — 2,457 — 1,457
Drerivative financial assets
— intersst rave derbrathres — 1,288 3 1,291
— currency dervatives 17 11,472 — 11,489
— precious metals derivatives — 1,008 — 1,008
Available-for-sale financial assets
— debt securities 0,313 257,120 11 297,444
— imvestment funds — 352 T 422
— certificates of deposit and certificates
of interbank deposic 671 74,643 — 75314
— wealth management products — 10 — 10
— equity instruments 424 — 2 446
Total fimancial assets measured at fair value 41,90 TG 107 413,644
Liabilities
Drerivative financial liabilities
— intersst rave derbrathves — (992) (5] (995)
— currency derivatives (1) (10,1 L&) — (10,119)
— precious metals derbvatives — (304) — (3041
Total fimancial liabilities measared
at fair valme (1) (10414) 3 (11,418)
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61 Fair value (Continned)

{b) The year-end fair valoe of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value
{ Continued)

The Group (Continmed)

Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3
(Mote (1)) (Mote (1)) {More (1)) Total
Az gt 31 December 201 4
Recurring fair value measurements
Assers
Financlal assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Trading financial assets
— debt securities 1616 11,130 — 12,746
— investment funds — — 2 2
— certtficuirs of lnterbank depast — 13,923 — 13,523
Financlal assets designed at fair value
through profit or loss
— debt securities — E3B — B8
Drerivative financial assets
— interest rate derivatives — o732 5 ory
— cumrency dervatives 10 5,390 — 5,405
— precious metals derivatives — Bd3 — B3
Available-for-sale financial assets
— debt securities 23,055 160,233 12 183,300
— Investment funds —_ 320 1z7 447
— certificates of deposit and certificates
of interbank deposic 228 23,660 —_ 23,688
— equity Instruments BY 1,548 — LE37
Total finandal asseis measured at fair value 4,008 219,863 145 245,007
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through
pmﬂ.‘t or loss
— Short position in debt securities (573 — — 573
Dlerivative financial lHabilities
— interest mate dervatives — (744) (1o} (754)
— cumrency derhvatives W] (6.207) — (&, 208)
— precious metals derbathres — (&%) — (385)
Total financial liabilities measared at
Fair value (574) (7.338) (10} (7 920)
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61 Fair value iCantinued)

{b) The year-end fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value

{Continmed )
The Bank
Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3
(Mote (1)) (Note (1) (Note (i1} Total
As ot 31 December 2015
Recurring fair value measurements
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profic
or loss
Trading financial assets
— debi securities 300 B,057 — B.357
— certificates of interbank deposit — 15,226 — 15,226
Financial assets designed at fair value
through profic or loss
— debit securities — 1,766 — 1,756
Dherivative financial ass=ts
— intersst rate derivatires — 1,039 3 1,042
— currency dervatives J— 8334 — 8,334
— precious metals derbvarives — 1,008 — 1,008
Available-for-sale financial assets
— debit securities 7030 256,497 B 263535
— investment funds — 352 — 352
— certificates of deposit and certificates
aof interbank deposic — 64,945 — 64,945
— equity instruments 4B — — 48
Total fimancial assets recurringly measured
at fair valae 7378 357,224 11 4613
Liabilities
Drerivative financial liabilities
— interest rate derivatives — (951) 3 (954)
— currency dervatives — (7:181) — (T:181)
Total fimancial liabilities measared
at fair valae — (B:436) (3) (8437
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61 Fair value (Continned)

{b) The year-end fair valoe of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value
{ Continued)

The Bank (Continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Lewel 3
(Mote (1)) (Mote (1)) (More (1)) Total
Az gt 31 December 201 4
Recurring fair value measurements
Assers
Financlal assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Trading financial assets
— debt securities 1,609 11,131 — 12,740
— certificates of interbank deposic — 13,923 — 13,923
Financlal assets designed at fair value
I:hmu.z]:. pmﬂt or loss
— debt securities —_ B3E — B3R
Dlerivative financial assets
— interest mate derivatives — T1B 5 723
— cumrency dervatives — 4,072 — 4,072
— precious metals derivatives — Bd3 — B3
Available-for-sale financial assets
— debt securities 6,832 159,026 9 165,857
— investment funds — A20 — 320
— certificates of deposit and certificates
of interbank deposic — 20,650 — 20,650
— equity instruments 38 1,548 — 1,586
Total finandal assets measured at fair value 8,479 213.069 14 221,562
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
— Short position in debt securities (573 — — 573
Dlerivative financial lHabilities
— interest rate derivatives — (703) (1) (713)
— cumency derhvatives — (3.903) — (3.902)
— precious metals derbrathes — (&%) — (385)
Total finandal liabilities measared
at fair value (573 (4.990) (1o} (5.373)
Moo
" During tha carret yuar, chera wers i dgaifican: marfer beiwasn Levsl 1 and Lol 2 = cha fur valus hierarchy.
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61 Fair value iCantinued)

{b) The year-end fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value
{Continmed )
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61 Fair value (Continned)

{b) The year-end fair valoe of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value
{ Continued)

Moo [Ceatinmd)
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61 Fair value iCantinued)

{b) The year-end fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value
{Continmed )

Hate (Cantininad)
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62 Related parties

{a) Relationship of related parties

(i The Group is controlled by CITHC Corporation Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong), which owns
67.13% of the company’s shares. The ultimate parent of the Group is CITIC Group (incorporated in
China).

(i)  Related parties of the Group include subsidiaries, joint vemtures and associates of CITIC Corporation
Limited and CITIC Group as well as BEVA, which held 3.12% and 9.60% interests in the Bank as at
31 December 2015 and 31 December 201 4, respectively.

For the year ended 31 Dlecember 2015, the financial statements of the principal subsidiaries stated above
were audited by the firms within the worddwide network of PricewatethouseCoopers.

ib) Related party transactions

Dhuring the relevant years, the Group entered into transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of its
banking businesses including lending. assets transfer, wealth management, imvestment, deposit, settlement and
clearing; and off-balance sheet transactions. These banking transactions were conducted under normal commercial
terms and conditions and priced at the redlevant market rates prevailing at the time of each transaction.

In addition, transactions during the relevant year and the comesponding balances cutstanding at the reporting
dates are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2015

Ultimate holding
company and fellow
entities BBVA Assoclates
Profit and loss
Interest income 268 —_ —_
Fee and commission income and
other operating Income 154 — —
Interest expense (649) — —
Met rrnd.'lng Enlnufﬂnu] 56 383 &
Orther service fees (67 3) — —
Year ended 31 Diecember 2014
Ultimate holding
company and fellow
entities BEVA Assoclares
Profit and loss
Interest income 385 — —
Fee and commission income and
other operating income 423 — —
Interest expense (1.593) (2) —
Net trading gain/(loss) 380 (124) —
Other service fees (B48) — —
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62 Related parties (Contimed)

(b} Related party wransactions (Continued)

31 December 2015
Ultimate holding

company and fellow
entities BEEVA Associates
Assets
Interest recebvable (] — —
Gooss loans and advances to customers 14,793 1,094 —
Less: collectively assessed allowance
for impairment loss {151) — —
Loans and advances to customers (net) 14 62 1,094 —
Placements with and loans to banks
and non-bank financlal institutions 22 — —
Deerivative financlal assets (3] L0 —
Investments Hiin — 976
Orther assets 9,271 988 —
Liabilities
Depul'l.l: from customers 40555 — 22
Dherivative financial liabilities 11 112 —_
Dieposits from banks and non-bank
financial institutions 21887 —_ —_
Interest payable 11d —_ —_
Other liabilivies 1,550 — —
Off-balance sheet items
Guarantees and letters of credic GLE 255 —
Acceptances R — —
Guarantees received B.A74 — —
Mominal amount of derbatives 2.7ED 3T —
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62 Related parties (Contimacd)

ib) Related party transactions {Continued)
31 December 2014

Ultimate holding
company and fellow
entities BEVA Assoclares
Assers
Gross loans and adwance:s to customers 5,588 — —
Less: collectively assessed allowance
for impairment loss (51) — —
Loans and advances to customers {net) 5537 — —
Gross amount of deposits with banks
and non-bank Finamcial institutions 183 573 —
Placements with and loans to banks
and non-bank financial institutions 28 — —
Less: Allowance for impatrment losses 7 — —
Placement with banks and non-bank
financial institutions {net) 21 — —
Investments 252 — BT
Orther assets 7.759 152 —
Liabilities
Dcpc:l'l: from customers 36,350 — 30
Dleposits from banks and non-bank
financial institutions 35,233 470 =
Placements from banks and non-bank
financial instliutions 512 457
Drerivacive financial liabilities 8 103 —
Interest Pﬂ.jﬂ]'.'f]l! 194 — —
Other liabilices 26 — —
Off-balance sheet items
Guarantess and letters of cred it 204 T —
Acceprances 258 — —
Guarantees recebred 10 a3 —
Mominal amount of derbvatives 3,001 19,789 —

The Bank entered into banking transctions with its subsidiardes at arm’s length in the ordinary course of
business, These transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

ic) Key management personnel and their close family members and related companies

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activitles of the Group, directly or indirectly, including directors, supervisors and executhve officers.

The Group enters into banking transactions with key management personnel and their close family members
and those companies controlled or jointly controlled by them in the normal course of business. (ther than those
disclosed belowr, thers are no matedal transactions and balances betwesn H:.:Gmup and these individuals, their
close family members or those companies controlled or jointly controlled by them.
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62 Related parties (Contimed)

i) Keymanagement personnel and their close family members and related companies (Cantinned)

The aggregate amount of rlevant loans outstanding as ar 31 December 2015 to Directorns, Supervisors and
Executive officers amounted 1o RMB11.63 millicn (as at 31 December 2014 EMEB12.74 millicn).

The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services is shown below:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 20015 31 December 2014

RMB 000 RMEB 000

Salaries and other emoluments 13,669 13051
Discretio nary bonuses 17,042 194601
Caontributions to defined contribution retirement schemes 2,719 2,279
33,440 34831

{d) Contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes and supp]cmtntnry retirement
benefits

The Group has established a supplementary defined contribution plan for its qualified employees which is
administered by CITIC Group (Mote 41(k)).

(€] Transactions with state-owned entitics in the PRC
The Group operates in an economic regime currenty predominated by entities directly or indirectly cwned by the

PRC government through its government authorities, agencies, affiliations and other organisations {oollectively
referred to as “state-owned entities”).

Transactions with state-owned entities include but are not limited to the following:

—  lending and deposit taking;

—  taking and placing of inter-bank balances;

— derivative transactions;

—  entrusted lending and other custody services;

—  imsunnce and securities agency, and other intermediary services;

—  mle, purchase, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by state-cwned entities;

—  punchase, sale and leases of property and other assets; and

— rendering and receiving of wtilities and other services,

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary cowrse of the Group's banking business on terms similar to
those that would have been entered into with non-state-owned entities. The Group has also established ics
pricing strategy and approval processes for major products and services, such as loans, deposits and commission
income. The pricing strategy and approval processes do not depend on whether the customers are state-cwned

entitles or not. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships, the Directors are of opinion that none
of these transactions are material related party transactions thar require separate disclosure.
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63  Structured entities

{2) Unconseclidated structured entities sponsored by third party instiutions in which the
Group holds an interest

The Group invests in a number of unconsclidated structured entities which are sponsored by other entities
for imvestment return. Such structured entities include wealth management products, imvestment management

products managed by securities companies, tnust imvestment plans, asset-backed financings and investment
fands and the Group does not consclidate these stractured entities.

The following table sets out an analysis o f the carrying amounts of interests held by the Group asat 31 December
2015 in the structured entities sponsored by third party instioutions, as well as an analysis of the line items in
the statement of financial position in which relevant assets are recognised:

31 December 2015

Carrying amount
Held-to- Awailable for  Investment

maturity sale financial classified as Madmum

investments assets receivables Total loss exposure

Wealth management products — 10 147,605 147,615 147,615
Investment management
products managed by

securities companies — — 825,016 B25,.016 825,016

Trast imvestment plans — —_ 139,971 139,971 139,971

Asset-backed securities 5, 30 B — 5,314 5.314

Investment fands —_ it —_ T T

Total 5,306 B& 1,112,592 1,117,986 1,117,986

31 December 2014
Carrying amount
Held-to-  Avallable for  Investment

maturity  sale financial  classified as Maximum

imvestments assets receivables Total lass exposure

Wealth management products — — 78,850 78,859 TE.B59
Investment management
pmduch m.n.u.ﬂaad by

securitles companies — — 452,319 432,319 452,319

Trast imvestment plans = = 108,535 108,535 108,535

Asset-backed securities Talld 9 — 7119 7119

Investment fands — 127 — 127 127

Total 7.110 136 639,713 46,959 646,959

The maximum exposures to risk in the above wealth management products, trust investment plans, imvestment
management products managed by securities companies and investment funds are the fair value or the carrying
value (whichever is higher) of the assets held by the Group at the reporting date. The maximum exposures to
risk in the asset-backed Anancings are the amortised cost or fair value of the assets held by the Group ar the
reporting date in accordance with the line items of these assets recognised in the statement of financial positions.

‘China CITIC Bank Corperition Limited @
2015 Ansuwal Report
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63 Strmctured entities {Continned)

(b) Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored by the Group

Unconsolidated struciured entities sponsored by the Group mainly include non-principal or interest guaranteed
wealth management products. The nature and purpose of these structured entities are to generate fees from
managing assets on behalf of imvestors. These structured entities are financed through the isue of notes to
investors. Interest held by the Group includes fees charged by providing management services.

Dhuring the year of 2001 %, the amount of fee and commission income earned from the above mentioned strucrured
entities by the Group was EMBE35,808 million (2014: RMB 3,958 millicn), the amount of interest income earned
from the placements by the Group to the above mentioned structured entites is EMBE390 million (201 4: RMB401
million). As atr 31 December 201%, the carmying amounts of management fee and interest receivables being
recognised in the statement of financlal position was RMBAET million (31 December 2014: RMB&57 million).

As ar 31 December 2015, the amount of assets held by the unconsolidated non-princlpal or interest guarantesd
wealth management products which are sponsored by the Group was RMB659,118 million (31 December
20014 EMB393.413 millicn]).

As at 31 Diecember 2015, the amount of the placements from the Group with non-principal or interest guaranteed
wealth management products sponsored by the Group is RMB252,66 million (31 December 2014: RMB16,800
millicn). During the year of 2015, the maximum exposure of the placements from the Group with non-principal
or interest puarantesd wealth management products sponsored by the Group is RMB36,675 million (2014
EME30.420 million). The transactions wers conduceed under normal business terms and conditions.

The aggregated amount of the non-princlpal or interest guaranteed wealth management products sponsared
and issued by the Group after 1 January 2015 and matured before 31 Decernber 201 5 was RMB&04.2 billlon
(201 4: RMBE393.9 billion).

64 Transfers of financial assets

The Group enters into transactions in the normal course of business by which it transfers recognised Anancial assets ta
third parties or to stractured entities. In some cases where these transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of
the financial assets concerned. In other cases where the transferred assets do not qualify for derecognition as the Goup
hias retained substantially all the risks and rewards of these assets, the Group continued to recognise the transferred assets.

The Group enters into securitisation transactions in the normal course of business by which it transfers credit assets
to structured entities which issue asset-backed securities to investors. The Group may retain interests in the form of
subordinated tranches which would ghve rise to the Group’s retention of risk and rewards on the transferved assets. The
Group will assess whether to derecognise the asets or not based on the extent of rsks and rewards retained. In 2015,
the Group has derecognised loans and advances of RMB7.52 billion in the asset-backed securitisation transactions
(2014: RMB&.20 billion). As ar Drecember 2015, the Group neither transferred nor retained substantially all risks and
rewards of cwnership of certain transferred assets and retained the control of the transferred assets. The management
recognised RMEBE0.29 billion in both assets and Habilities representing its continuing imvolvemnent in this connection
{31 Diecember 2014: Mil). In addition, the 'Gn:u.p also d.’upnlzdad:'itl loans and advances to customers in the a:d.Lu.:u]r
course of business during the year ended 31 December 2015.

65 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Pinancial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of Anancial position
wheen there is a legally enforceable dght to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realize the asset and settle the liabiligr simultanecusly (“the offset criteda™.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not enter into enforceable master netting armngements with counterparties
and therefore there were no offsettings of any assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of fnanclal position.
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66 Statements of financial position and changes in equity of the Bank

Statement of financial position
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 509,851 536,811
Depu:ll:l with banks and non-bank fnanclal institutions o, Rl 21,5680
Precious metals 1,191 411
Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank Anancial

imstitations 98,276 47,810
Financial assets ar fair value through profit or loss 25,349 27.501
Drerivative financial assets 1, 384 5,638
Financial assets held under resale agreements 137,210 135.765
Interest receivable 29,849 25,546
Loans and advances to customers 2, 304,874 2,002,342
Mvailable-for-sale financial assets 328,994 188,537
Held-to-maturity investments 179930 L77.957
Investment classified as recebvables 1, 100, BT 52,014
Interests in subsidiaries 22,249 9,986
Property, plant and equipment 15,448 14,223
Intangible assets 01 407
Dieberred tax assets 7930 9296
Drther assets 37,352 35,801
Total assets 4,884,295 2,062,636
Liabilities
EDI.TU'I’LI:I.EI from central banks 37, 4 0,000
Dreposits from banks and non-bank Anancial instiotions 1, 69,630 G98,362
Placements from banks and non-bank fnanclal institutions 32,399 18,703
Financial liabdlities ar fair value through profit or loss — 573
Drerivative financial Habilities B.439 5,000
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements T1,110 41,381
Dreposits from customers 1,994,826 2,699,597
Accrued staff costs 7610 10,B71
Tazes payable 4,694 5.B37
Interest payable 37422 36,559
Provisions z 2
Diebt securities lssued 273,262 115,552
Oriher liabilities 35,863 24436
Total Habilities 4575657 3,706,913
Equity
Share capital 48,935 46,787
Capital reserve 61,359 51,619
Diiher mmprd:.endu income &, T 435
Surplus reserve 23,362 19,394
General reserve 64,350 50,350
Retained sarnings 106,842 87,138
Total equity 311,638 255,723
Total Habilities and squity 4,884,295 2,062,636

‘China CITIC Bank Corperition Limited
2015 Ansuwal Report
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66 Statements of financial position and changes in equity of the Bank (Contioued)

Statement of changes in equity

Dither
Sham Capital comprebersive Surplus Gememl  Retalned Toral
capital ressrre Income reserve reserve sarmings squlty
Asat 1 January 2015 46,787 51619 435 19,304 50,350 BT.138 155,723
[i} Net profe — — — — — 39,672 39,671
[ii) Diher comprebensive inmme — — 4,355 — — — 4,355
Totl comprehensive income — — 4355 — — 33672 +Ha027
i) Prcceeds from shares ismance 2,148 9,740 — — — — 11,BE8
[iv) Profic appropriatinns
— Appropristicns o surplus ceserre — — — 3,968 — (368 —
— Appropriaticons t genenl reseree — — — — 14000 (14,000 —
Asat 31 December 2015 48,935 61,359 4,790 23,362 4350 108,842 311,638
Asat 1 January 2014 45787 51819 (4732 15435 H,250 69,937 223,35
i} Net profe — — — — — 38,290 385
(i) Other comprehensive inmme = — 5167 — — — pAly
Tonl comprehensive income — — 5,167 — — 38,950 4157
[iiil) Prcdit appropriations
— Appropristicas o sucplus ceserre = = — 3599 — (3,899 —
— Appropriaticns o genenl reseree — — — — &,100 (6,100} —
— Appropristions m equity holdecs
of the Bank — — — — — {11,790} (11,790}
As at 31 December 2014 46,787 514619 435 19,394 5035 7,138 255723
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67 Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors

(a) Directors and supervisors emoluments

The remuneration of every director and supervisor is set out below:
Far the year ended 31 Dlecember 201 %
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w M. L1 Cingping, Mr. Chang T3 . Mr. The Xaschuang, Mr. Dios Jissshegn, Mr. She Yang, Mr. Theng Xoeos did not rcstva sny fes
from the Geoop. Ther smalumenis were beera by ch majer Equity Holden of the Bank.
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67 Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors (Continued)

{a) Directors and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

Far the year ended 31 December 2014 (restated):

Certain of the comparathve information of directors and supervisors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 Diecember
2014 previously disclosed in accordance with the predecessor Companies Ohrdinance have been restated in order
to comply with the new scope and requirements by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622).
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(b} Orther benefits and interests

Mo direct or indirect retirement benefits and termination benefits were paid to directors
as at 31 December 2015 (2014 Nll).

Far the year ended 31 Diecember 2015 and 31 December 2014, the balance of loans and advances from the
Group to Directors, Supervisors or certain controlled body corporates and connected entities of the Directors
or Supervisors was not significant.

Ma significant transactions, arrangements and contraces in relation to the Growp’s business to which the Company

was a party and in which a director of the Company had a materal interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subslsted at the end of the year or at any time during the year 2015 (2014: Mil).
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
13.05 13.77 17.31 19.78 20.37
11.94 12.07 13.89 16.39 18.55
12.34 12.65 15.80 17.23 19.35
12.33 13.69 16.74 19.47 18.56
100
2015 2015 2015 2015 10 2015 11 2015 12
20.25 20.33 18.99 19.07 19.37 19.26
19.67 18.55 18.70 18.73 19.06 18.55
20.08 19.53 18.87 18.91 19.23 18.87
100
16.18 2016 13

100
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|ndependent auditor's report to the sharehol ders of

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

(ajoint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financia statements of China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “ Group”) set out on pages 138 to 272,
which comprise the consolidated and Bank statements of financial position as at 31 December
2014, the related consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give atrue and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determineis
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. Thisreport is made solely to you, as abody, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether dueto fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statementsthat give atrue and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
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opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (continued)

(ajoint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince's Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong,

20 March 2015
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of Chinawith Limited Liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 134 to 276,

which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015,

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give atrue and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give atrue and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
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the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial
position of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their financia
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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